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Chairman’s Review

I am delighted to present the annual report 
showcasing our company’s remarkable achievements 
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. We are 
thrilled to report a profit after tax of Rs 36.45 billion, 
marking an impressive increase of 40.55% compared 
to the previous year. This achievement stands as a 
testament to our resilience, strategic acumen, and 
unyielding dedication to excellence.

The primary drivers of this substantial profit growth 
are manifold. The increase in profit is mainly 
attributable to positive impact of Rupee/US$ parity 
in oil and gas prices, coupled with exchange gains 
on financial assets and enhanced income from bank 
deposits due to favorable interest rates. This increase 
is off-set to some extent by increased exploration cost 
and decrease in production. 

Throughout the year, we steadfastly pursued our 
core activities of exploration and development. Our 
exploration cost of Rs 6.72 billion, encompassing 
drilling of two dry wells cost and seismic acquisition/
processing activities. During the year, three developed 
wells and two exploratory wells were drilled. These 
ventures, while not without challenges, reflect our 
ongoing commitment to driving innovation and 
progress.

Our investments in seismic data acquisition, 
processing, and interpretation have yielded 
substantial progress. Notably, the completion of 3D 
Seismic data acquisition at Hisal and Pindori blocks, 
coupled with ongoing data processing, signifies our 
dedication to harnessing cutting-edge technology for 
strategic decision-making. Further seismic acquisition 
is underway at Nareli Block, with plans to extend 
efforts to Langrial, North Dhurnal & Turkwal blocks for 
enhanced prospects generation.

As we look ahead to the fiscal year 2023-24, we 
remain steadfast in our pursuit of excellence. Plans 
are in place to initiate two (02) exploratory and six 
(06) development wells, with a significant investment 
to expand our reserve base. We embrace these 
challenges with optimism, buoyed by our strong 
balance sheet, cash generation, and, above all, the 
commitment of our devoted employees. 

I extend a warm welcome to the new members 
joining our esteemed Board of Directors. I also wish 
to express my heartfelt appreciation to our outgoing 
members for their insightful contributions during 
Board meetings. Their exploration of innovative 

avenues and adeptness in navigating complex 
decisions have indelibly shaped our organizational 
culture and fueled our growth.

Our Board of Directors, comprising of seven 
individuals, including two independent directors, 
three non-executive directors, and two executive 
directors, brings a wealth of diverse experience from 
fields such as petroleum, finance, corporate sectors, 
and regulations. Their collective expertise have 
been instrumental in guiding our strategic direction, 
fulfilling fiduciary responsibilities, and ensuring 
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Our Board remained actively engaged with the 
management, aiding in confronting unforeseen 
challenges. Throughout the year, five Board of 
Directors’ meetings were convened, during which 
the Board played an instrumental role in reviewing 
financial statements and internal controls. The Audit 
and Human Resource & Remuneration Committees 
further contributed invaluable insights, reflecting 
our commitment to best practices in corporate 
governance.

Our commitment to professionalism and ethical 
conduct remains unwavering, as demonstrated by 
our annual performance evaluation mechanism. This 
mechanism, encompassing the Board, its members, 
and its committees, reflects the effectiveness of 
our governance practices and paves the way for 
continuous improvement.

I extend heartfelt gratitude to our dedicated 
management and non-management staff, regulatory 
authorities, and Government officials for their 
unwavering support, without which our achievements 
would not be possible. To our shareholders, your 
continued faith and support fuel our drive for success.

May the momentum of our growth persist in the years 
to come.

Laith G. Pharaon
Chairman Attock Group of Companies

Rawalpindi
August 29, 2023
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of the Company take pleasure in 
presenting Annual Report along with financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Financial Results
These are summarized below:

Rs (000)
Profit for the year after providing for 
all expenses including depreciation, 
exploration, amortization and 
workers’ funds. 49,658,659 
Less: provision for taxation (13,206,077)
Profit after tax 36,452,582 

In the fiscal year, our company accomplished 
a commendable profit after tax of Rs 36,453 
million, a substantial surge of 40.55% compared 
to the same period last year (2022: Rs. 25,935 
million). This remarkable performance translates 
into earnings per share of Rs 128.42, reflecting a 
substantial increase from Rs 91.37 per share in 
the previous year (2022).

The prominent factor fueling this impressive 
surge in profits is mainly attributable to positive 
impact of Rupee/US$ parity in oil and gas prices, 
coupled with exchange gains on financial assets 
and enhanced income from bank deposits due to 
favorable interest rates. This increase is off-set to 
some extent by increased exploration cost and 
decrease in production.

In the exploration segment, we witnessed an 
increase in exploration costs by Rs 5,843 million, 
i.e; amounting to Rs 6,720 million (2022: Rs 
877 million). This escalation is attributed to the 
prudent decision to charge the costs associated 
with two dry wells, located at DG Khan and 
Margala Blocks. Despite this, our resolute 
commitment to exploration remains unwavering, 
as we continue to seek promising opportunities 
in this domain.

While the year presented its share of challenges, 
such as a 9% decline in Crude Oil production, an 
8% dip in Gas production, and a 4% decrease 
in LPG production compared to the previous 

year, these trends are primarily attributable 
to the natural depletion of reservoirs. Our 
steadfast commitment to optimizing production 
efficiencies will remain a cornerstone of our 
strategy moving forward.

Furthermore, on a consolidated basis, the 
company achieved a noteworthy profit after tax 
of Rs 37,300 million (2022: Rs 26,777 million), 
translating into consolidated earnings per share 
of Rs 131.29 (2022: Rs 94.28)

Details of the exploration activities are covered in 
detail geographical area wise later in subsequent 
paras

Directors
At the twenty-second (22nd) Extra Ordinary 
General Meeting held on June 12, 2023, a new 
Board of Directors was elected for a term of 
three years with effect from June 27, 2023 as 
under:

1. Mr. Laith G. Pharaon
2. Mr. Wael G. Pharaon
3. Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
4. Mr. Sajid Nawaz
5. Mr. Abdus Sattar
6. Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
7. Mr. Agha Sher Shah

Formation of Committees:

Audit Committee
The Board has formed an Audit Committee 
comprising the following directors:

1. Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 
Chairman

2. Mr. Abdus Sattar 
Member 

3. Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 
Member  
Alternate Director to Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

4. Mr. Agha Sher Shah 
Member 

In the name of ALLAH, the most Gracious, the most Merciful
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Human Resource & Remuneration (HR&R) 
Committee
The Board has formed Human Resource & 
Remuneration (HR&R) Committee comprising 
the following directors:

1. Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 
Chairman  
Alternate Director to Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

2. Mr. Shuaib A. Malik 
Member  
Also Alternate Director to Mr. Laith G. Pharaon

3. Mr. Abdus Sattar 
Member

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents increased by Rs 37,428 
million during the year (2022: by Rs 20,150 million). 
Cash flows provided from operating activities were 
Rs 29,164 million (2022: Rs 27,906 million).

Contribution Towards The 
Economy
The Company continues to play a vital role in the 
oil and gas sector of the Country. During the year, 
the Company saved foreign exchange in excess 
of US$ 419 million (2022: US$ 538 million) for 
the country. The contribution to the national 
exchequer, in the shape of royalty and other 
government levies, was Rs 29,227 million (2022: 
Rs 25,231 million).

Dividend
The Directors have recommended a final cash 
dividend @ 600% (Rs 60 per share). This is in 
addition to the interim cash dividend @ 200 % 
(Rs 20.00 per share) already declared and paid 
to the shareholders thereby making it a total 
cash dividend of Rs 80 per share for the year 
2022-23 (2021-22:  Total cash dividend of Rs 
70.00 per share).

Production
Comparative Production figures from the 
Company’s fields including proportionate share 
from operated and non-operated joint ventures 
are given below:

June 30, 
2023

June 30, 
2022

Crude Oil (US Barrels) 1,829,336 2,017,581
Gas (Million Cubic Feet) 23,726 25,825
LPG (Metric Tonnes) 53,177 55,418
Sulphur (Metric Tonnes) 609 475
Solvent Oil (US Barrels) 18,334 18,605

The Company’s share in production, including 
that from joint ventures, for the year under 
review averaged 5,012 barrels per day (bpd) of 
crude, 64.98 million standard cubic feet per day 
(mmscfd) of gas, 145.68 metric tonnes per day 
(MTD) of LPG, 1.67 MTD of Sulphur and 50 bpd of 
solvent oil.

Directors’ Report



Producing Fields
Balkassar Deep-1A well was spudded on April 
26, 2023, drilling is in progress at 10,300 ft. 
The prognosed total depth of the well is 14,410 
ft. The main objective of the well is to test the 
hydrocarbon potential of Chorgali and Sakesar 
formations of the second sheet underneath main 
Balkassar structure.

At Pindori Lease (operated by POL with a 35% 
share), 3D seismic acquisition project of 60 
square kilometers has been completed and 
data processing is in progress to evaluate the 
prospectivity of Chorgali formation and to evaluate 
the possibility to produce un-drained oil. 

At Tal block, (operated by MOL, where POL has 
a pre-commerciality share of 25%), Makori East-
5 sidetrack has been approved for the up-dip 
location.  Moreover, delineation of suitable drilling 
locations for development of Tolanj West and 
Makori East fields is in progress

Tolanj West-2 a developed well drilled down to 
target depth tested three formations, production 
from this well has been started and currently 
producing around 18 million cubic feet of gas per 
day and around 19 barrels of oil per day.

At Adhi field (operated by Pakistan Petroleum 
Limited, where POL has 11% share), Adhi South-7 
has been spuded on April 14, 2022 drilled down 
to its target depth, presently this well has been 
connected to the production line. and currently 
producing around 0.7 million cubic feet of gas per 
day and around 404 barrels of oil per day

Adhi South-5 tested to the target depth and not 
produced any hydrocarbons, frac job was also 
not successful, after that this well was also side 
tracked, tested 216 barrels of oil per day and 0.22 
million cubic feet of gas per day.

Adhi-35 was spuded on January 27, 2023, drilled 
down to target depth. Tested Khewra formation 
which was found water wet and preparation for 
testing of Tobra formation is in progress. 

Adhi South-6 was spuded on June 18, 2023 and 
drilling at 5,000 ft is in progress.

Adhi South-8 and 9 have been approved by the 
Joint Venture Partners.

At Ratana Development and Production Lease 
(operated by Orient Petroleum Limited, where POL 
has 4.54% share), Ratana 5/A has been approved 
by the Joint Venture Partners.

Exploration Blocks
At Ikhlas block (operated by POL with 80% 
share), Jhandial-3 has been finalized, start of 
drilling is expected in September 2023. Langrial 
3D seismic data acquisition project could not be 
completed due to permitting issues in the area. 
New plan through bidding process has been 
initiated. 

At DG Khan block (operated by POL with a 70% 
share), DGK-1, exploratory well drilled down to 
15,206 ft but clearance of hole was not achieved 
to acquire hole logs. During conditioning 455 ft 
of fish left in hole and despite several attempts 
no success was made to recover the fish. Placed 
cement plugs and tested Chiltan formation but 
no hydrocarbons were flowed. Finally, the well 
was plugged and abandoned. Remaining leads of 
DG Khan Block are under evaluation.

At North Dhurnal block (operated by POL with 
60% share), design study has been completed 
to acquire 285.3 square kilometers 3D seismic 
data acquisition and bidding process for data 
acquisition is in process.

At Margala block (operated by MOL where 
POL has 30% share), Tarnol-1 was spuded 
on September 20, 2022. During drilling, the 
prognosed formations were not encountered at 
the prognosed depth and the well was plugged 
and abandoned.

At Tal block (operated by MOL where POL has 
pre commerciality share of 25%), an exploratory 
well Razgir, a development well Makori-3 and 

Directors’ Report

Exploration & 
Development Activities
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sidetrack of Makori East-5 has been approved 
by the Joint Venture Partners. 3D seismic data 
interpretation of Makori, Makori Deep, Billitang, 
Kot South, has been completed while seismic 
interpretation on Kahi North, Sarozai, Sarozai 
Deep, Manzalai South, Manzalai Deep leads is in 
progress. 

Production from Mamikhel South-1 well has been 
started. The Government has approved sale of gas 
to third party. Presently, the well is producing at 
lower choke sizes due to capacity constraints of 
the buyer.

At Hisal block (Operated by Pakistan Petroleum 
Limited where POL has 25% share), 3D seismic 
data acquisition of 235 square kilometers has 
been completed and processing to carry out the 
fracture identification study is in progress. 

At Gurgalot block (operated by OGDCL where POL 
has 20% share), 3D seismic data interpretation 
has been completed and subsurface location of 
Gurgalot X-1 has been finalized and well planning 
is in progress.

At Taung block (operated by Mari Petroleum 
where POL has 40% share), 340.94 square 
kilometers 3D Seismic data acquisition and 
interpretation has been completed for the 
identification of leads.

At Nareli Block (operated by Mari Petroleum 
where POL has 32% share), 2D seismic data 
acquisition program of 456-line kilometers-firm 
and 164-line kilometers-contingent was approved 
and data acquisition work is in progress.

In the recent bidding, POL won Multanai Block as 
an operator (100%). The post bidding process of 
award is in progress with DGPC. 

On November 22, 2022, Chah Bali Exploration 
License was awarded to OGDCL (Operator with 
70% share) and POL (30 % share). 

Subsidiary - Capgas (Private) 
Limited (Capgas)
CAPGAS earned a profit after tax of Rs 65.4 
million (2022: Rs 27.8 million). It has declared a 
total dividend of 955% for the year 2023 (2022: 
400.60%). During the year, CAPGAS received an 
average of 22 MTD LPG.

Crude Oil Transportation
Khaur Crude Oil Decanting Facility (KCDF) & 
other pipelines of POL continued to operate 
satisfactorily. During the year, a total of 8.9 million 
barrels (2022: 8.6 million barrels) of crude oil 
from Nashpa, TAL and others were pumped to 
Attock Refinery Limited through these facilities 
and pipelines.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

Risks & 
Opportunities 
The Board remains committed to the philosophy of effective business risk management 
as a core managerial competency. The Board has established a structured approach to 
risk management through the formulation of a risk management policy and system. 

The Company is in a continuous process to implement, monitor and improve its risk 
management policy. Risks are identified, prioritized and incorporated into a risk 
management response to effectively address risks. 

Following are some material risks being faced by the Company along with mitigation measures:

1. Oil price volatility: The pricing for the 
Company’s oil and gas production is 
benchmarked with international prices 
of crude oil and related products. Any 
unfavorable variance in the international 
prices adversely affects the Company’s 
profitability.

2. Exploration risk: Exploration activity is 
prone to the risk of not finding commercial 
quantities of hydrocarbons due to a 
number of factors such as incorrect 
selection of exploration acreage, poor 
quality of seismic data, error in processing 
or interpretation of seismic data, 
incorrect selection of drilling site. The 
Company is mitigating exploration risks 
by using latest technologies and hiring 
experienced professionals. The Company 
is in continuous process to explore new 
opportunities and increasing the chances 
of success by joining hands with other E&P 
companies by way of farm-in and farm-out 
agreements.

3. Drilling risk: Oil and gas drilling by its very 
nature is a high risk activity. The Company 
is exposed to a number of hazards during 
drilling of wells including well blow out, 
fishing, fire hazards and personal injury. 
In addition, the risk of not discovering oil 
and/or gas as expected, would have an 
adverse effect on earnings. The Company is 

mitigating these risks by selecting efficient 
and professional teams and also by having 
strict criterion for selecting rig and other 
allied services/equipment. Further, the 
Company also obtains well insurance cover 
for all drilling wells.

4. Underperformance of major oil and gas 
fields: The Company’s future earnings 
and profitability is dependent upon the 
production and reserves of its oil and gas 
fields. The actual production from fields 
may differ materially from estimates due to 
possible under performance of the oil and 
gas reservoirs or other production related 
factors.

5. Procurement planning related risk: 
Vulnerability to the procurement process 
is a possible threat to the Company’s 
profitability.

The vulnerability can give rise to the 
following risks

• Commercial risks
• Operational risk– not having materials
• Contractual risk– exposure to liquidated 

damages 

The Company is mitigating these risks by 
preparing detailed well prognosis before 
the spud date and timely placement of 
procurement orders for long lead items.

ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 65



6. Reservoir engineering and process: The 
over estimation of reserves and production 
can lead to investment of significant 
capital in the form of plant design by the 
engineering function. As far as practical, 
the Company obtains third party reserve 
certification to mitigate this risk.

7. Laws & Environmental regulations: The oil 
and gas industry is regulated by a number 
of government regulations which are 
required to be strictly followed. Default in 
this regard can have serious consequences. 
E&P Companies must take extra precaution 
to ensure they are complying with all 
mandatory regulations when proceeding on 
a project. The risks of non compliance can 
include cost overruns, fines, prosecution, 
work stoppage and physical security 
threats. The Company is cautious about 
where they are drilling and be well 
informed and aware of the applicable laws.

8. Increased competition: With increased 
competition in the oil and gas exploration 
and production sector, particularly in 
relation to the application and award of 
exploration concessions, the Company 
may be faced with increased competition. 
The Company is in a continuous process 
to explore new opportunities by joining 
hands with other E & P companies by 
way of farm-in and farm-out agreements. 
The Company’s LPG marketing business 

may also be adversely affected due to 
increased competition, decline in margins 
or disruption to LPG supply sources. In 
LPG marketing business, the Company has 
established a good storage capacity for 
continuous supply to keep margins intact 
and it continues to explore sustainable 
cost-effective sources of further supplies.

9. Information technology failures: The 
Company’s operations may be adversely 
affected due to information technology 
failures especially in today’s environment 
of reliance on IT systems, regulation and 
reporting deadlines. The company has a 
separate IT wing to control and monitor all 
related functions especially in relation to 
back up policy for continuous functioning.

10. Economic and political risks: Uncertain 
economic and financial market conditions 
resulting from economic or political 
instability.

11. Joint Venture Partners: Joint-venture 
operations are becoming increasingly 
common across E&P companies as these 
improve their business by leveraging the 
expertise and resources of other participants. 
In particular, when some fields/blocks are 
new and too challenging to be handled 
exclusively and the operational costs are 
high, then companies opt to have another 
partner in order to have their expertise 
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and to share the costs involved. POL is also 
operating in a joint venture environment and 
many of our projects are operated by other 
partners. Our ability to influence partners is 
sometimes limited, due to our small share in 
non-operated ventures. Non-alignment on 
various strategic decisions in joint ventures 
may result in operational and production 
inefficiencies or delay. We mitigate this risk 
by continuous and regular engagement with 
joint venture partners in operated and non-
operated projects and by providing them 
necessary resources/information/approvals 
required for flow of work.

12. Terrorist attacks: A terrorist attack could 
have a material and adverse effect on the 
Company’s business. The Company has 
taken a terrorist insurance cover of all its 
material installations to mitigate this risk.

13. Third party liability: A third party liability 
could have a material and adverse effect on 
the business. In order to mitigate the risk, 
the Company is continuously evaluating the 
areas where insurance cover is required 
and it has also taken a third party liability 
insurance which covers its drilling areas, 
pipelines and material installations.

14. Human Resource Risks: Lack of 
succession planning may lead to 
hierarchical breakdown. The Company has 
prepared department wise organogram 

and jobs descriptions. Requisitions for new 
positions and replacements are promptly 
processed and advertised accordingly.

15. Lost in hole/damage beyond repair: 
During drilling, costly equipment are run 
in the hole for several jobs at different 
depths. In order to mitigate the risk, the 
Company maintains strong control and has 
also taken insurance coverage.

16. Increase in fuel cost: The Company is 
trying to switch to cheaper alternatives 
from diesel to gas in order to keep the 
operating cost low and keep the fields 
economically viable.

17. Increase in the SNGPL line pressure: Due 
to ever increasing SNGPL line pressure, it 
has become difficult to inject gas into the 
SNGPL network. In order to avoid flaring of 
produced gas the Company is continuously 
monitoring the SNGPL line pressures and 
has initiated the process of increasing its 
delivery pressures.

18. Overdue receivables : The Company 
issues the invoices at the earliest possible 
time and is continuously monitoring 
the receivables position with the help 
of reports generated through Business 
Intelligence module. Where required, the 
Company adopts a strong follow up with 
refineries and SNGPL for swift payment of 
its invoices.



Directors’ Report

Business Process Reengineering 
(BPR) / Development Activities

Seismic data acquisition, processing and 
interpretation during geophysical activities involve 
selection of optimum data acquisition parameters 
through careful experimental investigation in the 
field. The Company undertakes comprehensive 
analysis to calculate the volume of sub-surface 
hydrocarbon’s trap of any area, also uses latest 
sub-surface imaging technology, before drilling any 
prospect. 

Research is also conducted by in-house and 
outsourced G&G and reservoir studies. Research is 
also conducted to enhance and/or maintain recovery 
from the fields. 

Apart from drilling of development wells already 
mentioned earlier by geographical location, major 
business development projects under taken during 
the year are as follows:

POL IT Up-gradation 

Human Resource Management System 
Successfully implemented Online Leave 
Management Module in Head Office.

Planning for HRMS changeover according to new 
Technology.

Local Area Network
• Phase wise replacement of obsolete Network 

Switches across POL.
• Local Area Network Expansion – POL Balkassar 

Hospital.

POL Process Historian
• Integration of POL Pipe Line data with 

historian server.
• Khaur power house data integration. 

CCTV Monitoring and Control
• Installation of CCTV system at KCDF.
• Upgradation of POLGAS Dhulian CCTV setup.
• Recovery of lost, deleted and malware 

damaged files and their versions
• Secured encrypted retention of user data for 

record and future reference

The Company believes that quality and an unyielding commitment to continuous 
improvement are indispensable ingredients to achieve success. All processes are 
subject to continuous evaluation and improvement. Being an Oil and Gas Exploration 
and Production company, research is an essential activity.

68 Pakistan Oilfields Limited



Directors’ Report

Corporate Social  
Responsibility (CSR)
Strong commitment of the Company to corporate social responsibility (CSR) is reflected 
by a comprehensive program introduced by it with particular focus on the socio 
economic uplifting and development of the regions in which the Company is operating.

Our CSR vision is aimed at:

• Protecting our 
environment.

• Operating in a socially 
responsible manner.

• Developing the 
communities in which we 
operate.

• Maintaining standards 
of excellence in our work 
and advocating healthy 
lifestyles.

• Acting with integrity and 
adhering to the highest 
ethical standards.

• Promoting diversity in our 
work force and partnering 
with diverse suppliers.

• Ensuring a safe, healthy 
workplace.

The Company has discharged 
its mandatory social welfare 
obligations by depositing the 
social welfare obligations 
into joint bank accounts 
maintained with respective 
deputy commissioners, where 
applicable.

The Company has taken a 
leadership role in contributing 
to society through a structured 
social investment program. 
Investing in the communities 
in which we operate is not just 

a demand that must be met; it 
is philosophy that we buy into. 
As part of its core values, the 
Company places tremendous 
importance towards 
contributing to the wellbeing 
of the communities in which it 
operates.

Our CSR initiative covers a wide 
spectrum of activities from 
the construction of roads and 
bridges to building schools, 
colleges and healthcare centers, 
conducting sports events and 
support to humanitarian and 
social work organizations. We 
are proud of our progress, but 
there is still much that we plan 
to do. 

Recent devastating floods 
in the country have affected 
millions of people and rendered 
them homeless and jobless 
with major damages to 
infrastructure including roads, 
bridges, livestock and crops.

As a pioneer E&P Company, 
Pakistan Oilfields Limited (POL) 
stood by the suffering of the 
people in this tragic moment 
for the nation. To contribute 
towards the national rescue 
and relief operations, POL & 
its Staff contributed Rs 31.28 
million to the Prime Minister’s 
Flood Relief Fund 2022 through 

The Attock Oil Company Limited 
(AOC). 

Some of our Corporate Social 
Responsibilities programs 
implemented are summarized 
below (details are also annexed 
to the Annual Report):

1. Education
• Dr. Rashad Institute of 

Technical Education

• Dr. Rashad Degree 
College 

• POL Model Secondary 
School

• POL Vocational Training 
Centre

2. Healthcare and hospital
• Khaur Hospital

• Other Healthcare 
Facilities

• Community Health 
Program

3. Sports, Cultural & Religious 
Activities

4. Infrastructure Development

5. Supporting Drinking Water 
Schemes

6. Health, Safety and 
Environment
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Occupational Health & Safety 
(OH&S)
POL Management is highly committed to ensure 
and promote the highest degree of safe and healthy 
working environment in entire organization. 

Our primary objectives are to ensure the 
safety of our people in occupational and 
operational environments and to ensure safe and 
knowledgeable use of hazardous materials during 
operations.

HSE department monitors health, safety 
and environment of the organization under 
International ISO 45001:2018 and ISO 14001:2015 
certifications. With the team spirit HSE department 
ensures effectiveness of OH & S systems, policies 
and programs to reduce workplace risks and 
promote safe and healthy working environments.

In addition to regulatory requirements and 
international standards, occupational HSE activities 
at POL are also guided by internal policies. 
Department heads and managers all have the 
responsibility to ensure occupational health, safety 
and environmental protection. 

Third party ISO 45001:2018 (OH&S) and ISO 
14001:2015 (EMS) audits are conducted to ensure 
the integrity of management systems in true spirit.

The Company has instituted a safety management 
system built on comprehensive and structured 
programs designed to reduce accidents and 
eliminate injuries at all our locations. The structure 
of Emergency Response Teams is well defined 
and the required contingency plans have been 
established which regulate emergency organization, 
responsibilities, list of key personnel, important 

telephone numbers, communication plans and 
sequence of activities to mitigate the situation.

Comparison of workplace accidents, during last 
three years given below:

Incident 2020 2021 2022
Fatal 0 0 0
Fire 4 2 2
Reportable Incident 
(Serious Injury) 0 0 0

Reportable Incident 
(Minor Injury) 2 0 0

Property loss 0 1 0
Major Environment 0 0 0
First Aid Cases 5 3 4
Near Misses 5 4 1

Procedures and processes are regularly reviewed to 
ensure that the standards set are linked to industry 
best practices. Health and safety training is 
provided to employees to ensure that they perform 
their work in accordance with the Company’s 
standards. In this respect, in-house training for 
fire safety, first aid, safe driving and occupational 
health and safety is imparted regularly.

The Company ensures that employees and where 
applicable, contractors are aware of potential 
hazards and of the Company’s requirements for 
healthy, safe and environment friendly working 
practices. POL issues a monthly Safety bulletin 
for all employees. These initiatives have helped in 
reduction of workplace injuries.

Emergency drills for different scenarios are 
carried out regularly to ensure that the state of 
preparedness is well maintained. Safety planning 
is carried out for each concession area of the 
Company separately. Tool box talks and on Field 
training sessions are conducted by HSE department 
in each field on regular basis. 
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Following are details of trainings given by HSE department during the last three years:

Year 2021 Year 2022 Year 2023

No. of Trainings
No. of 

Participants
No. of Trainings

No. of 
Participants

No. of Trainings
No. of 

Participants
2,226 29,794 2,375 34,731 2,286 33,808
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Helping our Environment
We are committed to minimize and manage 
environmental impact of our operational 
activities on our employees, contractors, 
surrounding neighborhood and earth’s resources 
without affecting ecosystem. In view of our 
continual environment friendly activities, POL 
has achieved ISO 14001:2015 certification for 
LPG plant site at Meyal.

The mitigation measures taken to neutralize 
environmental impact include technology, up 
gradation of systems, increased monitoring level 
of environmental parameters, preparation of EIA 
reports for new projects, IMC reports for ongoing 
projects as per EPA applicable rules regulations, 
good industrial environment practices and waste 
management. 

Projects Completed
• 2nd Surveillance audits of ISO 45001:2018 

for Khaur, Meyal, Balkassar and SCR Rig.

• 2nd Surveillance audits of ISO 14001:2015 
for LPG plant Meyal.

• Refurbishment of Fire Tender (HT-3) of 
Pindori Field.

• POL ensured effective contribution in safe 
rig movement & assembling activities of 
CCDC Rig-27 at Balkassar Deep-1A through 
continuous monitoring, risk assessments & 
gap analysis of rig movement & assembling 
activities. Any gaps and shortcomings were 
timely addressed and mitigated by taking 
effective control measures. As a team effort, 
the whole activity was completed safely 
without any minor incident or accident.

• Quarterly Environmental monitoring of all 
POL fields and SCR rig.

• POL won Environment Excellence award 
2022 and 2023 arranged by National Forum 
for Environmental & Health (NFEH).

• POL won Fire and Safety Awards 
2022 arranged by National Forum for 
Environmental & Health (NFEH) and Fire 
Protection Industry of Pakistan (FPIP)

• Environment monitoring (IMC) reports for 
Balkassar Deep-1A well.

• Ensured in time calibration / inspection 
of fixed and portable LEL and H2S gas 
detection, flame detection systems, 
Automatic foam suppression system at fields 
and SCR Rig through third party.

• Calibration/ inspection of Addressable 
smoke detection system at POL House 
Morgah and POL solar panel projects.

• NIFT training sessions attended by POL 
Employees.

• POL conducted in house first aid training 
sessions at all fields/SCR Rig.

• EIA preparation for well Jhandial-3 and IEE 
preparation of Balkassar Deep-1A well

• Extension of Fire Water Network at Khaur 
Offices area Balkassar and Installation of 
sprinkling system at Balkassar Bowser filling 
shed 
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Ongoing/New targets
• Recertification of ISO 45001:2018 for Khaur, 

Meyal, Balkassar and SCR Rig.

• Recertification of ISO 14001:2015 for LPG 
plant Meyal.

• POL will participate in Fire and Safety 
Awards 2023 arranged by National Forum 
for Environmental & Health (NFEH) and Fire 
Protection Industry of Pakistan (FPIP)

• EIA preparation for well Kirther-2D and 
Dhurnal 3D seismic surveys.

• Quarterly Environmental monitoring of all 
POL fields and SCR rig.

• Environment monitoring (IMC) reports for 
Balkassar Deep-1A, Jhandial-3, Dhurnal 3D 
and Kirther-2D seismic surveys. 

• External Trainings NEBOSH (IGC) and H2S 
Level-II.

• Process Safety Management training.

• Monthly HSE Dashboard

• To conduct in house first aid training at all 
fields/SCR Rig.

• Assessment of HSE performance for field’s 
staff for annual award in all POL fields/SCR Rig.

• 3rd party hydro testing of CO2 dumping system 
cylinders of Khaur Power House, Khaur Sub 
station and SCR Rig to be carried out.

• Emergency stair case POL House Morgah 

• Emergency escape stair case for POL House 
Morgah.

• H2S services at Balkassar Deep-1A through 
POL Own cascade Breathing Air system.

• Extensive awareness sessions of JOs staff 
POL (Technical and Non-technical)

• Emergency response and Emergency handing 
awareness sessions at POL House Morgah.

• Extension of Fire Water Network at Stores 
area Balkassar and Installation of sprinkling 
system at Joyamair Bowser filling shed 

Human Resource
POL believes that adoption of effective Human 
Resource (HR) management and development 
policies are vital for achieving organizational 
goals and objectives as HR polices have a 
measurable impact on the growth of the 
organization.

POL considers its employees the most valuable 
asset. The selection procedures and employment 
policies are geared to attract and retain capable 
and qualified employees who are willing to 
contribute their best efforts to accomplish 
the objectives of the Company. Employees are 
trained on soft and technical skills to narrow the 
gap between actual and required performance.
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Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance

a) The financial statements, prepared by 
management, present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of account of the Company 
have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the 
financial statements. Accounting estimates 
are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment.

d) Accounting & Reporting Standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
the preparation of the financial statements.

e) The system of internal control is sound 
in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored.

f) There are no doubts upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from 
the best practices of corporate governance, 
as detailed in the listing regulations.

h) Significant deviations from last year’s 
operating results have been disclosed 
as appropriate in the Directors’ Report / 
Chairman’s review and in the notes to the 
financial statements, annexed to annual 
report.

i) The Company does not envisage corporate 
restructuring or discontinuation of its 
operations in the foreseeable future.

j) Key operating and financial data of the last 
six years in summarized form is annexed to 
annual report.

k) All major Government levies in the normal 
course of business, payable as at June 30, 
2023, have been cleared subsequent to year-
end.

l) The values of investments in employee 
retirement funds based on financial 
statements of June 30, 2023  are as follows:

Management Staff  
Pension Fund  Rs 1,406  million

Gratuity Fund  Rs    758  million

Staff Provident Fund Rs   695  million

General Staff  
Provident Fund  Rs       71  million

Directors and Board Meetings
Total number of directors is seven as per the 
following:

a. Male: 7
b. Female:  None 

The composition of Board is as follows:

Category Names
Independent Directors * Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan

Mr. Agha Sher Shah
Other non-executive 
directors 

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon **
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon***
Mr. Abdus Sattar 

Executive Directors Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
Mr. Sajid Nawaz

*  Independent Directors qualify criteria of 
independence under regulation 6(3) of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019.

** Alternate Director - Mr. Shuaib A. Malik, Chairman 
and Chief Executive of the Company

*** Alternate Director - Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz

The board has formed committees comprising of 
members given below:

a) Audit Committee 

Name Role
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan Chairman
Mr. Abdus Sattar Member
Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz Member
Mr. Agha Sher Shah Member
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b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

Name Role
Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz Chairman
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik Member
Mr. Abdus Sattar Member

During the year, the Board of Directors met five times. The number 
of meetings attended by each director during the year is as 
follows: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director Board of 
Directors 
Meetings

Audit 
Committee 
Meetings

HR & R 
Committee 
Meetings

1 Mr. Laith G. Pharaon 5*
2 Mr. Wael G. Pharaon 5* 4* 1*
3 Mr. Shuaib A. Malik 5 1
4 Mr. Abdus Sattar 5 4 1
5 Mr. Sajid Nawaz 4
6 Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 5 4
7 Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan 5 4

* Overseas directors attended the meetings either in person or through alternate 
directors.

Board Meetings Held Outside Pakistan
All Board meetings were held in Pakistan except 530th Board 
meeting dated February 27, 2023 held in Dubai, UAE.

Directors’ Remuneration
The Board of Directors is authorized to determine, review and 
amend from time to time the fee structure for attending the 
meetings of the Board or any committee of Directors. A Director 
may also be paid for travelling, hotel and other expenses properly 
incurred by him in attending and returning from meetings of the 

Directors or any committee of 
Directors or General Meetings 
of the Company.

The aggregate amount 
charged in these financial 
statements in respect of fee 
to 7 directors (2022: 7) was 
Rs 11,859 thousand (2022: Rs 
9,139 thousand). This includes 
Rs 7,702 thousand (2022: 
Rs 5,618 thousand) paid to 
4 non-executive directors 
(2022: 4) of the Company.

Security Clearance 
of Foreign Directors
Foreign Directors elected on 
the Board of Pakistan Oilfields 
Limited requires security 
clearance from Ministry of 
Interior through SECP. All legal 
formalities and requirements 
have been met and fulfilled in 
this regard.

Trading in Shares 
by Directors and 
Executives
All direct or indirect trading 
and holdings of the Company’s 
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shares by Directors, Chief 
Executive, substantial 
shareholders, executives or 
their spouses notify in writing 
to the Company Secretary 
along with the price, number 
of shares, form of share 
certificates and nature of 
transaction which are notified 
by the Company Secretary to 
the Board within the stipulated 
time. All such holdings have 
been disclosed in the Pattern of 
Shareholdings. 

Conflict of Interest 
Among Board 
Members
A formal code of conduct is 
in place governing the actual 
or perceived conflict of 
interest relating to the Board 
members of the Company. 
Under the guidelines of code 
of conduct, every director is 
required to disclose his interest 
in any contract, agreement 
or appointment etc. These 
disclosures are circulated to 
the Board and it is ensured that 
the interested director does not 

participate in decision making 
and voting on the subject. 
These facts are recorded in 
minutes of meeting. Any such 
conflict of interest is recorded 
in Company’s statutory register 
while disclosures of related 
party transactions are provided 
in financial statements.

Role of Chairman & 
Chief Executive 
The Chairman heads the Board 
meetings and ensures effective 
functioning of the Board. The 
Chairman acts as a liaison 
between management and 
the Board. He has power to set 
agenda, deliver instructions 
and signs the minutes of the 
board meeting. The Chairman 
ensures that the Directors 
are properly informed and 
that sufficient information is 
provided to enable them to 
form appropriate judgments. 
The Chairman evaluates 
annually the effectiveness of 
the Board as a whole. 

The Chief Executive is the 
executive director who also acts 

as the head of the company’s 
management. He is responsible 
for leading the development 
and execution of the Company’s 
long term strategy with a 
view to enhance value for 
shareholder. He is responsible 
for day-to-day management 
decisions and for implementing 
the Company’s long and 
short term plans. The Chief 
Executive also communicates 
on behalf of the Company to 
the shareholders, employees, 
Government authorities and 
other stakeholders. 

Performance 
Evaluation of the 
Board 
The Board of Directors acts 
as governing trustees of the 
Company on behalf of the 
shareholders, while carrying 
out the Company’s mission and 
goals.

Under requirement of Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 
2019, a formal and effective 
mechanism is put in place for 
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an annual evaluation of the 
Board and of its committees.

The Board of Directors sets the 
following evaluation criteria to 
judge its performance. 

a. Review of the strategic 
plans and business risks, 
monitor the Company’s 
performance against the 
planned objectives and 
advise the management on 
strategic initiatives. 

b. Working as a team, the 
Board has the right blend 
of skills, expertise and 
the appropriate degree of 
diversity. The Board focuses 
on significant matters such 
as strategy and policy.

c. Establishing adequate 
internal control system 
in the Company and its 
regular assessment through 
self assessment mechanism 
and internal audit activities.

d. Relations with key 
Stakeholders like 
Regulators, Employees, 
Shareholders and CBA are 
maintained through regular 
and open communication.

e. Building interaction with 
the Management to seek 
and obtain sufficient input 
from management to 
support effective Board 
decision-making.

f. Ensuring that the Directors 
have full & common 
understanding of their role 

and responsibilities in the 
light of Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of 
the Company and as per 
prevailing laws.

g. Monitoring and evaluating 
the management’s 
performance.

Performance 
Evaluation of the 
Chief Executive 
The Chief Executive, being 
part of the Board, is present 
in every meeting of the Board. 
He provides an overview of the 
Company’s performance to 
the Board and addresses any 
specific questions by the Board 
members. The performance of 
the Chief Executive is assessed 
through the evaluation system 
set by the Company. The main 
factors of evaluation include 
financial performance, business 
processes, compliance, 
business excellence and people 
management.

Formal Orientation 
at Induction 
When a new member is taken 
on board, it is ensured that 
he is provided with a detailed 
orientation of the Company. 
Orientation is mainly focused 
on the Company’s vision, 
strategies, core competencies, 
organizational structure, 
related parties, major risks 
(both external and internal) 

including legal and regulatory 
risks and role and responsibility 
of the directors as per laws 
applicable in Pakistan along 
with an overview of the 
strategies, plans, marketing 
analysis, forecasts , budget and 
business plan.

Directors Training 
Program 
The Company ensures that 
it meets requirements of 
Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan 
relating to Directors’ Training 
Programme (DTP). Five 
directors meet the exemption 
requirement of the DTP. The 
remaining two directors have 
obtained certification under 
DTP.

Internal Financial 
Controls 
The system of internal control 
is sound in design and has 
been effectively implemented 
and monitored. Appropriate 
accounting policies have 
been consistently applied in 
preparation of the financial 
statements. We have developed 
effective policies and 
procedures over period of time 
in all areas of our activities. 
These controls/policies have 
been put in place to ensure 
efficient and smooth running 
of the business, safeguarding 
the Company’s assets, 
prevention and detection of 
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fraud and errors, accuracy 
and completeness of books of 
account and timely preparation 
of reliable financial information. 
Internal financial controls are 
periodically reviewed to ensure 
that these remain effective 
and are updated with changing 
laws, regulations and/or 
accounting standards.

IT Governance Policy
With the increasing volumes of 
digital exchange, information 
technology governance is 
regarded as a core part of 
POL overall governance 
program. Keeping in view the 
shareholders interest, the 
company investment in IT is 
aligned to support its strategic 
objectives. In POL we are 
unequivocally dedicated to 
incorporate best and most 
recent IT advancements 
and framework to empower 
productive and convenient 
basic decision-making process.

IT governance policy consists of 
following:

• Promoting governance, 
transparency, 
accountability and dialogue 
about technology that 
facilitates effective strategy 
adoption

• Ensuring compatibility, 
integration and avoiding 
redundancy

• Securing the company’s 
data 

• Keeping the IT function 
proactive from an 
innovation perspective 
providing ideas to the 
business

• Maximizing return on 
technology investment 
with controlled spending, 
while providing POL with 
a coherent and integrated 
IT architecture and 
management structure

• To create a culture of 
paperless environment 
within the company

Safeguarding 
Company’s Record 
POL effectively ensures the 
safety of records. All records 
are retained as long as they 
are required to meet legal, 
administrative, operational 
and other requirements of the 
Company.

Furthermore, the Company 
keeps systematic backup 
of the record on daily basis 
for protection of data and 
its recovery in case of any 
catastrophe.

Related Party 
Transactions 
All transactions with related 
parties are reviewed by 
the Audit Committee and 
recommended to the Board 
for approval on quarterly basis 
fulfilling the requirements of 

section 208 of the Companies 
Act, 2017.

Operating Segments 
The financial statements have 
been prepared on the basis of 
a single reportable segment. 
Revenue from external 
customers for products of the 
company is disclosed in note 25 
of the financial statements.

Revenue from two major 
customers of the Company 
constitutes 79% of the total 
revenue during the year ended 
June 30, 2023 (June 30, 2022: 
75%).

Issues Raised at Last 
AGM 
Apart from general 
clarifications requested 
by the shareholders about 
the Company’s financial 
performance and published 
financial statements during the 
71st Annual General Meeting 
held on September 20, 2022 no 
other issue was raised.

Stakeholders’ 
Engagment
Stakeholders’ commitment is 
a key component of corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) and 
accomplishing the triple main 
concern. Organizations draw 
in their partners in exchange 
to discover what social and 
financial issues matter most to 
them about their execution, so 
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as to enhance basic leadership 
and responsibility in order 
to improve decision-making 
and accountability. At POL, 
a vigorous engagement take 
place between all stakeholders 
to understand and respond to 
every stakeholder’s legitimate 
concern either social, 
environmental or company 
financial related issues. Our key 
stakeholders are:

• Shareholders
• Customers (POLGAS 

distributors) 
• Suppliers
• Banks
• Employees 
• General public
• Government and regulatory 

authorities 

The frequency of engagement 
is based on business needs 
and corporate requirements 
as specified by the Code of 
Corporate Governance, or as 
contracted, under defined 
procedures.

Addressing 
Investors Grievances 
The interest of small investors 
and minority shareholders is 
of prime importance to the 
Company. In order to keep a 
vigilant eye and to provide a 
platform to the investors for 
voicing their concerns, a team 
under corporate section has 
been designated to ensure 
that grievances/ complaints 
of the investors are heard 
and redressed, in a quick and 
efficient manner. 

Mechanism of lodging any 
complaint/issues is detailed 
on the website of the 
Company. Designated contact 
numbers and email address 
of the Company / Regulator is 
disseminated among investor 
through company broadcasts. 

In order to promote investor 
relations and facilitate access 
to the Company for grievance, 
an ‘Investors’ Relations’ section 

is also maintained on POL’s 
website www.pakoil.com.pk

Access of 
Shareholders to 
Company’s Website
All our shareholders and 
general public can visit the 
Company’s website “www.
pakoil.com.pk” which has 
dedicated section for investors 
containing information 
related to annual, half yearly 
and quarterly financial 
statements and to have a 
glance on shareholders’ related 
information. 

Share Price 
Sensitivity 
The Company disseminates all 
material and price sensitive 
information to Pakistan Stock 
Exchange (PSX) through 
Pakistan Unified Corporate 
Action Reporting System 
(PUCARS).
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Auditors
The auditors, Messers A.F. 
Ferguson & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, retire and being 
eligible offer themselves for 
reappointment. 

Pattern of 
Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding 
as at June 30, 2023 is also 
annexed to the Annual Report.

Holding Company
The Attock Oil Company 
Limited, incorporated in 
England, is the holding 
company of Pakistan Oilfields 
Limited.

Consolidated 
Financial Statements
The consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and 
its subsidiary are annexed to 
the Annual Report.

Future Outlook
Our oil & gas prices are linked 
with the international oil prices, 
which is uncontrollable factor 
for us and the industry as well. 
During the year, international 
oil prices decreased and this 
decrease was compensated by 
increase in Rs/ US parity which 
eventually resulted increase in 
the Company’s profits. 

Plans are in place to initiate two 
exploratory and six 

development wells during the 
next year. On the production 
side, we are pretty much 
hopeful to maintain our existing 
production volume and sales, 
as Pakistan is energy deficient 
country and will be able to 
absorb all local oil and gas 
production easily. We have 
all resources to complete our 
development and exploration 
activities as mentioned in the 
earlier part of our report. 

Acknowledgement
The results for the year could 
not have been made possible 
without the loyalty, devotion, 
hard work and commitment 
of all employees. The Board 
of Directors acknowledges 
and deeply appreciates 
their contribution towards 
achievement of the Company’s 
goals.On behalf of the Board

 

 

Shuaib A. Malik Abdus Sattar
Chairman & Chief Executive  Director

Rawalpindi
August 29, 2023
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Performance Indicators
(Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY

Net  sales
Crude oil  17,598  22,374  17,264  17,940  29,718  33,564 
Gas  8,573  13,618  12,481  11,714  12,269  15,841 
POLGAS-Refill of cylinders  6,306  7,420  6,567  6,190  9,673  11,029 
Solvent oil  180  246  220  189  285  490 
Sulphur  8  10  8  9  -    29 

Total Net Sales  32,665  43,668  36,540  36,042  51,945  60,953 
Cost of sales  15,529  18,258  14,172  14,409  17,997  19,215 
Gross profit  17,136  25,410  22,368  21,633  33,948  41,738 
Exploration costs  2,990  2,049  1,405  494  877  6,720 
Administration expenses  170  181  192  195  206  312 
Finance costs  1,919  3,774  2,212  260  5,549  9,620 
Other charges  967  1,728  1,383  1,545  2,026  2,489 
Other income  3,262  7,177  4,558  1,539  11,697  27,062 
Profit before taxation  14,352  24,855  21,734  20,678  36,987  49,659 
Provision for taxation  2,969  7,983  5,358  7,296  11,052  13,206 
Profit for the year  11,383  16,872  16,376  13,382  25,935  36,453 
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization (EBITDA)  18,897  29,798  25,643  24,357  41,786  52,440 
Dividends  10,053  14,193  14,193  14,193  19,870  22,708 

BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY
Paid-up capital  2,365  2,839  2,839  2,839  2,839  2,839 
Reserves  1,760  1,758  1,758  1,758  1,758  1,758 
Unappropriated profit  28,643  33,475  35,670  34,766  46,467  63,091 
Long term deposits  837  845  861  873  895  925 
Deferred liabilities  15,643  17,057  20,027  19,978  24,970  30,761 
Current liabilities  20,917  25,516  30,441  34,130  41,125  59,665 
Fixed assets (less depreciation)  9,405  8,499  7,542  6,680  6,702  5,903 
Development & decommissioning costs  12,597  11,054  12,356  13,673  10,209  7,825 
Exploration & evaluation assets  2,591  53  2,773  512  3,020  1,761 
Long term investment  9,616  9,616  9,616  9,616  9,616  9,616 
Other long term assets  15  26  27  37  30  36 
Current assets  35,943  52,242  59,282  63,826  88,477  133,898 

CASH FLOWS
Operating activities  19,327  21,425  23,263  19,480  27,906  29,164 
Investing activities  (3,361)  137  (2,706)  452  (921)  3,879 
Financing activities  (10,022)  (11,570)  (14,170)  (14,163)  (14,162)  (10,395)
Exchange rate effect  1,407  4,236  900  (1,245)  7,327  14,780 
Opening Balance  14,182  21,533  35,761  43,048  47,572  67,723 
Cash and cash equivalents at year end  21,533  35,761  43,048  47,572  67,723  105,151 

OTHER INFORMATION
Contribution to national exchequer  (Rs millions)  10,981  18,601  14,142  16,864  25,231  29,227 
Foreign exchange savings(US $ million)  465  520  320  344  538  420 
Customer satisfaction Index1  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Stores & spares as %age of Assets  5.09  4.81  4.91  4.94  4.87  3.78 
Maintenance cost as %age of Operating expenses  0.59  0.56  0.82  0.65  0.57  0.85 
Market Capitalization (Rs millions)  158,909  115,214  99,528  111,799  115,191  114,044 
No. of Shareholders  4,954  5,756  7,090  7,597  7,858  8,372 
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(Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Profitability Ratios
Gross profit %  52.46  58.19  61.22  60.02  65.35  68.48 
Net profit to sales %  34.85  38.64  44.82  37.13  49.93  59.81 
EBITDA margin to sales %  57.85  68.24  70.18  67.58  80.44  86.03 
Operating leverage Time  0.83  1.12  0.88  0.88  1.11  1.07 
Return on equity %  34.74  44.32  40.67  34.00  50.79  53.85 
Return on average capital employed %  35.43  47.63  41.81  33.61  57.36  61.39 
Shareholders funds (Rs millions)  32,769  38,071  40,267  39,362  51,063  67,687 
Shareholders' fund %  46.70  46.72  43.96  41.72  43.25  42.56 
Return on shareholders' funds %  34.74  44.32  40.67  34.00  50.79  53.85 
Total shareholders' return % 37.35% -47.02% -25.93% -1.93% -14.74% -20.71%

Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Time  1.72  2.05  1.95  1.87  2.15  2.24 
Quick ratio Time  1.53  1.87  1.78  1.71  1.99  2.13 
Cash to current liabilities Time  1.03  1.40  1.41  1.39  1.65  1.76 
Cash flow from operations to sales %  59.17  49.06  63.66  54.05  53.72  47.85 
Cash flow to capital expenditures %  22.18  3.92  18.37  3.64  6.75  8.22 
Cash flow coverage ratio 4 %  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover 1 Days  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Debtors turnover Time  5.66  5.09  4.42  4.81  6.00  5.37 
Average collection period Days  64.49  71.71  82.58  75.88  60.83  67.97 
Creditors turnover 1 Time  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Average payment period 1 Days  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total assets turnover Time  0.51  0.58  0.42  0.39  0.49  0.44 
Fixed assets turnover Time  1.31  1.98  1.73  1.66  2.55  3.44 
Operating cycle 1 Time  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investment / Market Ratios
Earnings per share - basic 2 Rs  48.13  59.44  57.69  47.14  91.37  128.42 
Earnings per share - restated 3 Rs  40.10  59.44  57.69  47.14  91.37  128.42 
Price earning ratio Times  13.96  6.83  6.08  8.35  4.44  3.13 
Price to Book ratio Times  5.82  3.03  2.47  2.84  2.26  1.68 
Cash dividend yield %  7.52  9.28  13.22  13.43  17.51  19.81 
Cash dividend payout %  88.31  84.12  86.67  106.06  76.61  62.29 
Cash dividend cover %  113.24  118.88  115.38  94.29  130.52  160.53 
Cash dividend per share Rs  42.50  50.00  50.00  50.00  70.00  80.00 
Bonus shares %  20.00  -    -    -    -    -   
Market value / share at year end Rs  671.79  405.89  350.63  393.86  405.81  401.77 
Market value/share-high during the year Rs  719.00  680.00  486.00  443.00  424.90  460.00 
Market value/share-low during the year Rs  419.90  363.51  223.03  304.50  328.00  340.00 
Market value/share-average during the year Rs  587.07  504.21  374.43  392.19  378.67  405.21 
Break-up value (Net assets/shares) Rs  138.53  134.12  141.86  138.67  179.89  238.46 
Free Cash Flows (Rs millions)  14,552  20,025  16,526  17,746  23,336  23,383 
Economic value added (EVA) (Rs millions)  7,268  9,745  10,399  6,939  15,980  24,995 

Capital Structure Ratios
Financial leverage ratio 4 %  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Weighted average cost of debt 4 %  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Debt: equity ratio 4 %  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Net Assets per share Rs  247.19  287.08  322.69  332.37  415.90  560.28 
Interest cover 4 Time  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Notes:
1- Not applicable in view of the nature of the company's business. 3- Calculated on shares outstanding as at June 30, 2023.
2- Calculated on shares outstanding as at June 30, of each year. 4- Not applicable as the Company does not have debt.
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies  
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the Members of Pakistan Oilfields Limited

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Pakistan Oilfields Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the 
requirements of regulation 36  of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the 
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight 
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries 
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, 
the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with 
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2023.

Further, we highlight content of paragraph 1 of the statement where the matter of representation of 
female director on the Board of Directors of the Company has been explained. 

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad
Date: August 30, 2023

UDIN: CR202310053KQTOCwSMd
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2023

1. The total number of directors are seven as 
per the following, - 

a. Male: 7
b. Female: None

The regulation related to representation 
of female director on the Board is not 
yet applicable as the manner and terms 
and conditions are not specified by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan at the time of election of Directors 
of the Company.

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names
i. Independent 

Directors ***
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
Mr. Agha Sher Shah

ii. Other Non-
Executive 
Directors 

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon *
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon**
Mr. Abdus Sattar

iii. Executive 
Directors

Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
Mr. Sajid Nawaz

* Alternate Director Mr. Shuaib A. Malik, Chairman & 
Chief Executive Pakistan Oilfields Limited

** Alternate Director Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz

*** Best practices of corporate governance entail having 
an optimal number and mix of board members with 
adequate skills and experience. The current Board 
of Directors of the Company adequately meets this 
requirement. Further, existing independent directors 
play an effective part within the Board and make 
valuable contribution. Therefore, the fraction (2.3) has 
not been rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none 
of them is serving as a director on more 
than seven listed companies, including this 
company;

4. The company has prepared a “Code of 
Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate 
steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the Company along with its 
supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. The 
Board has ensured that complete record 
of particulars of significant policies along 
with their date of approval or updating is 
maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by the Board/shareholders 
as empowered by the relevant provisions of 
the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided 
over by the Chairman. The Board has 
complied with the requirements of the 
Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes 
of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and 
transparent procedures for remuneration 
of directors in accordance with the Act and 
these Regulations;

9. Out of seven directors, five directors meet 
the exemption requirement of the Directors’ 
Training Program and two directors have 
obtained the Directors’ Training Program 
certification in prior years; 

10. The Board has approved appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary 
and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations. The 
Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer is the same person, however, duties 
of both positions are distinct and clearly 
spelled out. Since long both these positions 
are handled by one person who has in-depth 
knowledge required by both positions and 
the Company is very much satisfied. Further, 
it has less financial burden on the Company. 

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following manners:
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11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer duly endorsed the financial 
statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees 
comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Name Role
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan Chairman
Mr. Abdus Sattar Member
Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz Member
Mr. Agha Sher Shah Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Name Role
Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz Chairman *
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik Member
Mr. Abdus Sattar Member

* Chairman of HR & Remuneration Committee is 
a non-executive director having vast experience 
of management and the Board considers him the 
most suitable for this position who has the required 
knowledge and experience.

 A constitutional petition filed by the Company 
is currently pending in the Sindh High Court 
challenging compliance with below mentioned 
requirements and to declare that the impugned 
provisions, namely Section 166, proviso to 
Section 154 of the Companies Act 2017; 
Regulations 6,7,9,16,28 and 29 of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 [which are now replaced by 
Regulation 6, 7, 9, 27, 28 (Regulation 16 of 2017 
Regulations deleted) of the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019]; S.R.O 556(i)/2018; and S.R.O 73(i)/2018 
relating to appointment of independent directors 
on the Board of Directors, appointment of 
independent director as Chairman of the Audit 
Committee and HR & Remuneration Committee, 
appointment  of female director on the Board 
and appointment of separate persons as 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive of 
the Company are illegal and unconstitutional 

and to strike them down; and to further declare 
that shareholders are lawfully entitled to elect 
Directors and to elect a Chairman of the Board 
of Directors without reference to the impugned 
provisions. The law officer of Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has 
undertaken that no action contrary to the law 
would be taken against the Company. 

 The Chairman and Chief Executive is the 
same person. The duties of both positions 
are distinct and clearly spelled out. These 
positions are handled by one person since long 
who is managing the affairs of the Company 
successfully. He has exhaustive knowledge and 
experience of the Company’s business and the 
Board is very much satisfied and considers him 
the most suitable person for these positions.

 The Board itself has constituted Audit Committee 
and HR & Remuneration Committee and also 
feels that there is no need to have separate 
Nomination Committee. 

 The Board itself and through its Audit Committee 
continuously reviews business risks facing 
the Company to ensure that a sound system 
of risk identification, risk management and 
implementation of related systemic and internal 
controls exists. Major risks and mitigating 
factors are also published in annual report of the 
Company.  The Board feels that there is no need 
to have separate Risk Management Committee. 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid 
committees have been formed, documented 
and advised to the committee for 
compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half 
yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per 
following:

Committee Frequency
Audit Committee Quarterly
HR and Remuneration 
Committee Yearly

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2023
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15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal 
audit, company secretary or director of the Company; 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard. 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with. Also refer paragraph 1 of the Statement.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 
and 36 of the Regulations have been given in paragraph 10 & 12.

 

SHUAIB A. MALIK  ABDUS SATTAR
Chairman & Chief Executive  Director

Rawalpindi
August 29, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Pakistan Oilfields Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Oilfields Limited (the Company), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information 
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming 
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit and other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
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Following are the key audit matters:

S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(i) Analysis of impairment of development and 

decommissioning costs and exploration and 
evaluation assets

(Refer note 4.13, 14 and 15 to the financial statements)

As at June 30, 2023, the development and 
decommissioning costs amounted to Rs 7,825 
million and exploration and evaluation assets 
amounted to Rs 1,761 million.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting 
period whether there is any indication that a Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired.

Where impairment indicator is triggered for any 
CGU, an impairment test is performed by the 
management based on estimates of the value in 
use of that CGU.

The calculation of value in use of development 
and decommissioning costs requires the exercise 
of significant management’s estimates and 
judgements on certain assumptions such as (i) 
estimation of the volume of oil and gas recoverable 
reserves; (ii) estimation of future oil and gas prices; 
(iii) cost profiles and inflation applied; (iv) foreign 
exchange rates; and (v) discount rates.

We considered this matter as key audit matter due 
to significant value of the related assets at reporting 
date and due to significance of judgements used by 
management.

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s 
impairment test, amongst others, included the following:

• Assessed the methodology used by management 
to estimate value in use of each CGU;

• Assessed the assumptions of cash flow projections 
in calculation of the value in use of CGUs, challenging 
the reasonableness of key assumptions i.e. oil and 
gas reserves, oil and gas prices, production costs, 
foreign exchange rates and discount rates based 
on our knowledge of the business and industry by 
comparing the assumptions to historical results, 
and published market and industry data;

• Assessed the impairment indicators as per IFRS 
6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral 
Resources” for material balances included in 
exploration and evaluation assets;

• Performed sensitivity analysis in consideration 
of the potential impact of reasonably possible 
downside changes in assumptions relating to oil 
and gas prices, discount rate and other assumptions 
and; 

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the financial statements.

(ii) Investment in associated company

(Refer note 4.14 and 16 to the financial statements)

The Company has investment in its associated 
company National Refinery Limited (NRL). As at 
June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of investment 
in above referred associated company amounted to 
Rs 8,047 million which carrying value is higher by 
Rs 5,048 million in relation to the quoted market 
value of such shares. The Company carries out 
impairment assessment, at each reporting period 
end, of the value of investment where there are 
indicators of impairment.

Our audit procedures in relation to assessment of 
carrying value of investment in associated company, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Assessed the appropriateness of management’s 
accounting for investment in associated company;

• Understood management’s process for identifying 
the existence of impairment indicators in respect 
of investment in associated company;

• Evaluated the independent external investment 
advisor’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

• Made inquiries of the independent external 
investment advisor and assessed the valuation 
methodology used;
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The Company has assessed the recoverable amount 
of the investment in associated company based 
on the higher of the Value-In-Use (“VIU”) and fair 
value (quoted market price as at June 30, 2023). VIU 
is based on a valuation analysis carried out by an 
independent external investment advisor engaged 
by the Company using a discounted cash flow model 
which involves estimation of future cash flows. This 
estimation is inherently uncertain and requires 
significant judgement on both future cash flows and 
the discount rate applied to the future cash flows.

In view of significant management judgement 
involved in the estimation of VIU, we consider this 
as a key audit matter. 

• Checked, on sample basis the reasonableness of 
the input data provided by the management to 
the independent external investment advisor, to 
supporting evidence;

• Assessed the reasonableness of cash flow 
projections, challenging and performing audit 
procedures on assumptions such as growth rate, 
future revenue and costs, terminal growth rate 
and discount rate by comparing the assumptions 
to historical results, budgets and comparing the 
current year’s results with prior year forecast and 
other relevant information;

• Checked mathematical accuracy of cash flows 
projection;

• Performed independently a sensitivity analysis in 
consideration of the potential impact of reasonably 
possible upside or downside changes in key 
assumptions;

• Checked quoted price of investment in NRL as 
of June 30, 2023 with publicly available stock 
exchange data; and

• Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s 
disclosures in the financial statements in this 
respect.

(iii) Recognition of Revenue

(Refer note 4.24 and 25 to the financial statements)

The Company is engaged in the production and 
sale of oil and gas resources. 

The Company recognised net sales during the year 
from the sale of crude oil, gas and POLGAS – Refill of 
cylinders amounting to Rs 33,564 million, Rs 15,841 
million and Rs 11,029 million respectively.

Revenue is recognised when control of the 
products has transferred, being when the 
products are delivered to the customer, and there 
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the 
customer’s acceptance of the product. Revenue 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring good / services. Effect 
of adjustments, if any, arising from revision in 
sale prices is reflected as and when the prices are 
finalised with the customers and / or approved by 
Government of Pakistan.

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included the following:

• Assessed the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of the relevant key internal 
controls over revenue recognition from the sale of 
products;

• Performed test of details on sample basis for sales 
transactions by inspecting respective invoices, 
delivery challans and acknowledgement of 
customers; 

• Checked on sample basis, notifications of OGRA for 
gas and POLGAS prices. For POLGAS, also checked 
on sample basis Company’s mechanism for the 
calculation of price based on OGRA’s notification. 
Performed, on; a sample basis, recalculation 
of crude oil and gas prices in accordance with 
applicable petroleum policies / agreements / 
decision of Economic Coordination Committee of 
the Cabinet;
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
We considered this as key audit matter due to the 
significance of the amounts requiring significant 
time and resource to audit due to magnitude, 
inherent risk of material misstatement and revenue 
being a key economic indicator of the Company.

• Where pricing is provisional / sales agreement not 
finalised, (a) inspected correspondence with the 
customers and relevant government authorities 
during the year and held discussions with the 
Company; (b) inspected term sheets etc; and (c) 
checked price recorded is in line with applicable 
petroleum policy / agreed with the customers;

• Assessed sales transactions on either side of the 
statement of financial position date to assess 
whether they are recorded in relevant accounting 
period;

• Performed analytical procedures to analyse 
variation in the price and quantity sold during the 
year;

• Tested journal entries related to revenue 
recognized during the year based on identified risk 
criteria; and 

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the financial statements.

(iv) Litigation with respect to conversion of TAL 
Block petroleum concession to Petroleum Policy 
2012

(Refer note 25.1 to the financial statements)

The Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) issued a 
notification dated December 27, 2017 (SRO) which 
required that the Supplemental Agreement already 
executed in respect of TAL block for conversion of 
petroleum concession from Petroleum Exploration 
and Production Policy 1997 to Petroleum 
Exploration and Production Policy 2012 shall be 
amended (within 90 days) to include Windfall Levy 
on Oil and Condensate (WLO), failing which the 
working interest owners will not remain eligible for 
gas price incentive as per Petroleum Policy 2012. 
The impugned notification was issued after the 
approval of Council of Common Interest (CCI) dated 
November 24, 2017.

The Company challenged the said notification 
in the Islamabad High Court and the matter is 
pending before the Court in principle on the 
ground that an already executed arrangement 
cannot be retrospectively altered unilaterally. The 
Honourable Court has restrained the Government 
for any action under the impugned notification and 
to maintain status quo. Company’s contention is 
duly supported by the legal advice on the matter. 

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included the following:

• Inspected Petroleum Concession Agreement (PCA) 
and Supplemental Agreements signed with the 
Government of Pakistan;

• Checked SRO issued by the Ministry of Energy; 

• Checked relevant clauses of Petroleum Exploration 
& Production Policy 2012 for applicability of WLO;

• Discussed the matter with directors, management 
and internal legal department of the Company;

• Obtained confirmation from the Company’s 
external legal advisor and checked legal opinion 
obtained by the Company and the order issued by 
the Islamabad High Court;

• Evaluated technical ability of the internal and 
external legal advisors used by the Company;

• Assessed the matter under applicable accounting 
frame work; and

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the financial statements in respect of this matter.
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The supplemental agreement was signed under the 
conversion package where gas price was enhanced 
and WLO was not applicable. The impugned SRO, 
by giving retrospective effect, amounted to taking 
away the vested rights already accrued in favour of 
the Company. As per the legal opinion Government 
has no authority to give any law or policy a 
retrospective effect.

The Company has not recognised the revenue 
(net of sales tax) to the extent of Rs 25,266 million 
since inception to June 30, 2023 on account of 
enhanced gas price incentive due to conversion 
from Petroleum Policy 1997 to Petroleum Policy 
2012 and will be accounted for upon resolution of 
this matter. 

We considered this as key audit matter due to 
the significant amounts involved and significant 
judgments made by management regarding the 
matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017); 

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are 
in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and 

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Asim Masood Iqbal. 

Chartered Accountants 

Islamabad
Date: August 30, 2023

UDIN: AR2023100538okgCTRnp
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees ('000)

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital 6         5,000,000         5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 6         2,838,551         2,838,551 

Revenue reserves 7       64,848,658       48,224,910 

      67,687,209       51,063,461 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term deposits 8           924,820           895,565 

Deferred liabilities
- Deferred tax liability         4,667,144         5,844,433 
- Provisions       26,093,605       19,125,971 

9       30,760,749       24,970,404 
      31,685,569       25,865,969 

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Trade and other payables 10       37,912,225       31,056,163 

Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by 
the authorized bank 11         9,433,214                   -   

Unclaimed dividend           317,153           275,702 

Provision for income tax       12,003,268         9,792,637 
      59,665,860       41,124,502 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

    159,038,638     118,053,932 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer
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2023 2022
Note Rupees ('000)

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 13         5,902,792         6,702,511 

Development and decommissioning costs 14         7,825,449       10,209,126 

Exploration and evaluation assets 15         1,760,799         3,019,833 

      15,489,040       19,931,470 

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY
 AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 16         9,615,603         9,615,603 

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 17             35,987             29,590 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 18         6,004,002         5,753,133 

Stock in trade 19           577,479           384,649 

Trade debts 20       12,733,069         9,967,152 

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21         8,320,383         4,649,659 

Other financial assets 22         1,112,163                   -   

Short term investments 23       34,855,131                   -   

Cash and bank balances 24       70,295,781       67,722,676 
    133,898,008       88,477,269 

    159,038,638     118,053,932 
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees ('000)

SALES      65,983,520      58,394,092 

Sales tax       (4,807,064)       (6,203,987)
Excise duty          (224,174)          (245,203)

NET SALES 25      60,952,282      51,944,902 

Operating costs 26     (11,159,973)       (9,115,363)

Royalty       (6,880,170)       (5,563,309)

Amortization of development and decommissioning costs 27       (1,175,285)       (3,318,737)

    (19,215,428)     (17,997,409)

GROSS PROFIT      41,736,854      33,947,493 

Exploration costs 28       (6,719,577)          (877,038)

     35,017,277      33,070,455 

Administration expenses 29          (312,111)          (205,632)

Finance costs - net 30       (9,619,432)       (5,548,542)

Other charges 31       (2,489,048)       (2,026,370)

    (12,420,591)       (7,780,544)

     22,596,686      25,289,911 

Other income - net 32      27,061,973      11,697,469 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION      49,658,659      36,987,380 

Provision for taxation 33     (13,206,077)     (11,052,267)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR      36,452,582      25,935,113 

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 40              128.42                 91.37 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

Profit for the year  36,452,582  25,935,113 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans  64,099  (60,235)

Tax (charge) / credit relating to remeasurement 
loss on staff retirement benefit plans  (23,076)  19,275 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax  41,023  (40,960)

Total comprehensive income for the year  36,493,605  25,894,153 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Share Revenue reserves Total
capital Insurance Investment Unappropriated

reserve reserve profit
Rupees ('000)

Balance at June 30, 2021  2,838,551  200,000  1,557,794  34,765,718  39,362,063 

Total comprehensive income for the year:

Profit for the year  -    -    -    25,935,113  25,935,113 
Other comprehensive (loss)  -    -    -    (40,960)  (40,960)

 -    -    -    25,894,153  25,894,153 
Transactions with owners:

Final dividend @ Rs 30 per share - Year ended June 30, 2021  -    -    -    (8,515,653)  (8,515,653)
Interim dividend @ Rs 20 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  -    -    -    (5,677,102)  (5,677,102)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -    (14,192,755)  (14,192,755)

Balance at June 30, 2022  2,838,551  200,000  1,557,794  46,467,116  51,063,461 

Total comprehensive income for the year:

Profit for the year  -    -    -    36,452,582  36,452,582 
Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    41,023  41,023 

 -    -    -    36,493,605  36,493,605 

Transactions with owners:

Final dividend @ Rs 50 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  -    -    -    (14,192,755)  (14,192,755)
Interim dividend @ Rs 20 per share - Year ended June 30, 2023  -    -    -    (5,677,102)  (5,677,102)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -    (19,869,857)  (19,869,857)

Balance at June 30, 2023  2,838,551  200,000  1,557,794  63,090,864  67,687,209 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer

2023 2022
Note Rupees ('000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers  59,172,845  49,995,416 

Operating and exploration costs paid  (11,008,183)  (7,672,724)

Royalty paid  (6,804,726)  (5,244,873)

Taxes paid  (12,195,811)  (9,171,786)
Cash provided by operating activities 35  29,164,125  27,906,033 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure  (5,781,362)  (4,570,241)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  7,288  6,088 

Income on bank deposits and investments at amortised cost  10,102,103  3,116,215 

Investment in mutual funds - net  (1,109,245)  917 

Dividend income received  660,102  526,278 

Cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  3,878,886  (920,743)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid  (10,395,192)  (14,161,548)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES  14,780,417  7,326,728 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  37,428,236  20,150,470 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  67,722,676  47,572,206 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 39  105,150,912  67,722,676 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the  
Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Pakistan Oilfields Limited (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company 
and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company 
is situated at Morgah, Rawalpindi. The Company is principally engaged in exploration, drilling 
and production of crude oil and gas in Pakistan. Its activities also include marketing of liquefied 
petroleum gas under the brand name POLGAS and transmission of petroleum. The Company is a 
subsidiary of The Attock Oil Company Limited, UK and its ultimate parent is Coral Holding Limited.

Geographical location and addresses of all other business units of the Company have been disclosed 
in note 44.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These are separate financial statements of the Company. These financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The 
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International 
 Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and 
have not been early adopted by the Company:

Effective date (annual 
reporting periods 

beginning on or after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2023 & 
January 1, 2024

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors (Amendments)

January 1, 2023

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2024

3.2 The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and 
interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other 
than the impact on presentation / disclosures.
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Further, the following standards and interpretations have been issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified or has been waived off by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in 
Pakistan:

-   IFRS 1 (First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards)
-   IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts)
-   IFRIC 12 (Service concession arrangements)

3.3 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.O. 67 (I)/2023 dated January 
20, 2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.O. 985(1)/2019 and S.R.O 1177 (I)/2021 dated 
September 2, 2019 and September 13, 2021 respectively, has notified that in respect of companies 
holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in respect of circular debt, the 
requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of expected credit loss (ECL) model 
shall not be applicable till December 31, 2024, provided that such companies shall follow relevant 
requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'  in respect of above 
referred financial assets during the exemption period. The Company has assessed that the above 
does not have any significant impact on its financial statements.  

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as 
otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policy notes.

4.2 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for 
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as 
the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The management has determined that the 
Company has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors views the Company's operations 
as one reportable segment. 

4.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistan 
Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency.

4.4 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the 
rates of exchange ruling on the date of the statement of financial position. Exchange differences are 
dealt with through the statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Taxation

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at applicable tax rates, adjusted for royalty 
payments to the Government.
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Deferred tax is accounted for on all temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred tax 
liability has been calculated at the estimated effective rate of 36% (2022: 32%) after taking into 
account availability of future depletion allowance and set off available in respect of royalty payments 
to the Government.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

4.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events and when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

4.7 Provision for decommissioning costs

Provision for decommissioning costs is recognized in full for development wells and production 
facilities. The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated cost to abandon a well 
and remove production facilities. A corresponding intangible asset of an amount equivalent to 
the provision is also created and is amortized on unit of production basis over the total proved 
developed reserves of the field or @ 5% where the life of a field is more than 20 years.

Most of these abandonment and removal events are many years in the future and the precise 
requirements that will have to be met when the abandonment and removal event actually occurs 
are uncertain. Abandonment and asset removal technologies and costs are constantly changing, as 
are political, environmental, safety and public expectations. Consequently, the timing and amount 
of future cash flows are subject to significant uncertainty.

The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with the interest rate 
to be used in discounting the cash flows. Any difference between the liability recognized and actual 
costs incurred are charged/credited to statement of profit or loss in the year of decommissioning.

The effect of changes resulting from revisions to the estimate of the liability are incorporated on a 
prospective basis.

The decommissioning cost has been discounted at a real discount rate of 2.15% (2022: 1.00%) per 
annum.

4.8 Employee compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Company.

4.9 Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates the following staff retirement benefits plans:

(i) A pension plan for its management staff and a gratuity plan for its management and non-
management staff. The pension and gratuity plans are invested through approved trust funds. 
Both are defined benefit final salary plans. The pension and gratuity plans are complementary 
plans for management staff. Pension payable to management staff is reduced by an amount 
determined by the actuary equivalent to amount paid by the gratuity fund. Management 
staff hired after January 1, 2012 are only entitled to benefits under gratuity fund. Actuarial  
valuations are conducted annually using the "Projected Unit Credit Method" and the latest 
valuation was conducted as at June 30, 2023. 
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Actuarial  gain and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial 
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period 
in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in statement of profit or loss.

Since both are complementary plans, combined details and valuation for pension plan and 
gratuity plan are given in note 38.

(ii) Separate approved contributory provident funds for management and non-management 
employees for which contributions are made by the Company and the employee at the rate of 
10% of basic salary. Charge included in these financial statements is Rs 38,900 thousand (2022: 
Rs 31,779 thousand).

4.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received. Trade and other payables are presented as 
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

4.11 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past 
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

4.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses (if any).

Depreciation is provided on straight line method at rates specified in note 13.1 to the financial 
statements. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the assets become available for 
the intended use up to the month in which these are derecognized. The useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The effect of any changes in estimate is 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, 
and are recognized net within “other income” in the statement of profit or loss.

4.13 Exploration assets / costs and development costs

4.13.1 Exploration and development costs are accounted for using the “Successful Efforts Method” of 
accounting.
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4.13.2 Exploration costs

All exploration costs, other than those relating to exploratory drilling, are charged to income as 
incurred. Exploratory drilling costs i.e. costs directly associated with drilling of an exploratory well, 
are initially capitalized pending determination of proven reserves. These costs are either charged to 
income if no proved reserves are found or transferred to development costs after impairment loss, 
if proved reserves are found.

All capitalized costs are subject to review for impairment at least once a year and any impairment 
determined is immediately charged to income.

4.13.3 Development costs

Development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. 
Expenditure on drilling of development wells, including unsuccessful development wells, is 
capitalized within development costs. Capitalized development costs are amortized on a unit of 
production basis over the total proved developed reserves of the field or @ 5% per annum where 
the life of the field is more than 20 years.

4.14 Investments in subsidiary and associated companies

These are carried at cost less impairment losses. The profits and losses of the subsidiary and 
associated companies are carried forward in the financial statements  of the subsidiary and 
associated companies and not dealt within or for the purpose of these financial statements except 
to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiary and associated companies. Gain and loss on 
disposal of investment is included in income currently.

4.15 Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at cost determined on moving average formula less allowance for 
obsolete items. Stores in transit are stated at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

4.16 Stock in trade

Stocks are valued at the lower of average annual cost (including appropriate production overheads) 
and net realizable value. Net realizable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of 
the product in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.

4.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to depreciation and are 
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment 
at each statement of financial position date, or wherever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for 
the amount for which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset's 
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible 
reversal of the impairment at each statement of financial position date. Reversals of the impairment 
loss are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no new impairment loss 
had been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in income for 
the year.
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4.18 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of 
business. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they 
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, 
unless they contain significant financing components when they are recognised at fair value. They 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less loss 
allowance. 

Other receivables are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. 

Refer note 4.21 for a description of the Company's impairment policies.

4.19 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial 
assets are derecognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights 
that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they 
are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or 
expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are 
taken to the statement of profit or loss.

4.20 Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

(ii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(iii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income (OCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, 
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI).

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.
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Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which 
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are derecognised when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and 
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of 
profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for 
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the Company can classify its debt instruments:

a) Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms 
of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely payments of 
principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other income together with 
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the 
statement of profit or loss.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent 
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest 
revenue, and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to statement of profit or loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in other income and impairment expenses are presented 
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or 
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and 
presented net within other income in the period in which it arises.
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Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s 
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, 
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the 
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in 
profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

4.21 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a historical as well as on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses 
(ECL) as associated with its trade debts, deposits and other receivables and cash and bank balances 
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade debts, the Company applies IFRS 9 simplified 
approach to measure the expected credit losses (loss allowance) which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance while general 3-stage approach for deposits and other receivables and cash and bank 
balances i.e to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL if credit 
risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

-   Trade debts
-   Advances, deposits and other receivables 
-   Cash and bank balances
-   Short term investments

(i) Simplified approach for trade debts

The Company recognises lifetime ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The 
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of 
possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past 
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Trade debts with individually significant balance are separately assessed for ECL measurement. 
All other receivables are grouped and assessed collectively based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses on these financial assets 
are estimated based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors 
that are specific to the debtors,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the 
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time 
value of money where appropriate.
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Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of 
significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, 
the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

- Nature of financial instruments;
- Past-due status;
- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure that constituents of each group 
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for 
all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through 
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured 
at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount 
of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Write-off

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical 
recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The 
assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s 
sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

(ii) General approach for short term investments, deposits and other receivables and cash 
and bank balances.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss 
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical 
data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted for factors that are specific to the 
counterparty,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well 
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money 
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by 
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward looking, 
based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in 
credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected losses.
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Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is 
determined by the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of 
a change in credit rating, allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net present 
value of expected cash flows. On a significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recognised 
without a change in the expected cash flows, although typically expected cash flows do also 
change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12 month to lifetime expectations.

Significant increase in credit risk 

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout 
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the 
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the reporting date 
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable 
and supportable forward-looking information.

The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions 
that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;
- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;
- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality 
of third-party guarantees, if applicable.

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit 
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either 
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the 

debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into 
account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Company considers that default 
has occurred when the debt is more than 365 days past due, unless the Company has 
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion 
is more appropriate.

Credit - impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial 
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s 
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would 
not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation; or

-  The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

4.22 Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

-  fair value through profit or loss; and
-  other financial liabilities. 

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial 
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities also include 
directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification, as follows:

a) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or 
loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value 
through profit or loss.

b) Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently measured 
at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit 
or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate 
amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

4.23 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are 
delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's 
acceptance of the product. Revenue is recognised as follows:

a) crude oil, upon delivery to customer; 
b) natural gas, upon delivery to the customer; and
c) Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG), upon delivery to distributors at LPG plant facility.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for transferring goods/services. Prices of crude oil and gas are calculated 
in accordance with Petroleum Concession Agreements / Petroleum Policy / or as notified by the 
Government Authorities. Effect of adjustment, if any, arising from revision in sale price is reflected as 
and when the prices are finalized with the customers and/or approved by the Government.

Billings are generally raised in the following month which are payable within 30 to 45 days in 
accordance with the contractual arrangement with customers.

4.25 Other Income

Income on investments at amortised costs and bank deposits is recognized on time proportion 
basis using the effective yield method.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

4.26 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending 
on the contractual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Company has assessed 
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint operations. The Company 
has recognized its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under 
the joint operations on the basis of latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and 
where applicable, the cost statements received from operators of the joint arrangements for the 
intervening period up to the statement of financial position date.

4.27 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, 
demand deposits and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and 
finances under mark up arrangements.

4.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is accounted for in the period in which dividend is declared.

4.29 Leases

4.29.1 Right of use asset

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. If the 
Company assesses that a contract contains a lease and meets requirements of IFRS 16, the Company 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

4.29.2 Lease liability

If applicable, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that 
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the 
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a. fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
b. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 
rate as at the commencement date;
c. amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
d. the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, 
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an 
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably 
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, 
extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that 
triggers those payments occurs.

The Company has opted not to recognize right-of use assets for short-term leases i.e. leases with a 
term of twelve(12) months or less. The payments associated with such leases are recognized in profit 
or loss when incurred.

4.29.3 During the year Rs 505,492 thousand (2022: Rs 568,925 thousand) have been capitalised in 
Development & Decommissioning costs and Exploration & Evaluation assets in respect of short-
term leases.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the 
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was exercised 
in application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Estimated crude oil/gas reserves used for amortization of development and decommissioning 
costs - note 4.13 and 14

ii) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment - note 4.12 and 13.1
iii) Estimated costs, discount and inflation rate used for provision for decommissioning costs - 

note 4.7 and 9.2
iv) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in associated Company - note 4.14 and 16
v) Estimated value of staff retirement benefits obligations - note 4.9 and 38
vi) Provision for taxation - note 4.5 and 33
vii) Price adjustment related to crude oil sales - note 4.24 and 25
viii) Impairment of financial assets - note 4.21
ix) Right of use asset and corresponding lease liability - note 4.29

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

6. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorized capital

500,000,000 (2022: 500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Shares issued for cash
20,200,000 (2022: 20,200,000) ordinary shares  202,000  202,000 

Shares issued as fully paid bonus shares
263,655,104 (2022: 263,655,104) ordinary shares  2,636,551  2,636,551 

283,855,104 (2022: 283,855,104) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  2,838,551  2,838,551 

6.1 The Company is a subsidiary of The Attock Oil Company Limited which held 149,794,518 (2022: 
149,794,518) ordinary shares at the year end.
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

7. REVENUE RESERVES

Insurance reserve - note 7.1  200,000  200,000 
Investment reserve - note 7.2  1,557,794  1,557,794 
Unappropriated profit  63,090,864  46,467,116 

 64,848,658  48,224,910 

7.1 The Company has set aside an insurance reserve for self insurance of assets which have not been 
insured and for deductibles against insurance claims.

7.2 The Company has set aside gain on sale of investments as investment reserve to meet any future 
losses/ impairment on investments.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

8. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits from distributors for cylinders / equipment  875,639  849,007 

Security deposits from distributors and others  49,181  46,558 
 924,820  895,565 

8.1 Amount received as security deposit is kept in a separate bank account and utilized/utilizable by the 
Company in accordance with the related agreements with customers.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

9. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liability - note 9.1  4,667,144  5,844,433 
Provisions

- Provision for decommissioning costs - note 9.2  26,090,656  19,123,431 
- Provision for staff compensated absences  2,949  2,540 

 26,093,605  19,125,971 
 30,760,749  24,970,404 

9.1 Deferred tax liability 

Deferred tax liability represents:

Temporary differences between accounting and
 tax depreciation/ amortization  5,096,340  6,207,692 

Provision for stores and spares  (274,292)  (213,732)
Provision for doubtful receivable  (112)  (99)
Deferred tax on remeasurement (loss) on

staff retirement benefit plans  (154,792)  (149,428)
 4,667,144  5,844,433 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

9.2 Provision for decommissioning costs

Balance brought forward  19,123,431  14,389,227 
Revision due to change in estimates - note 9.2.1  (2,542,530)  (727,537)
Provision made during the year  132,309  22,137 
Unwinding of discount - note 30  2,601,429  1,258,353 
Exchange loss - note 30  7,010,980  4,282,697 
Decommissioning cost incurred during the year  (234,963)  (101,446)

 26,090,656  19,123,431 

9.2.1 Revision due to change in estimates

(Credited) to related asset - note 14  (1,155,473)  (337,391)
Revision in excess of related asset credited to

statement of profit or loss - note 27  (1,387,057)  (390,146)
 (2,542,530)  (727,537)

10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors  253,400  377,790 
Due to related parties

Attock Hospital (Private) Limited  1,800  2,667 
Attock Petroleum Limited  67,015  83,623 
Capgas (Private) Limited  -  855 
Attock Refinery Limited  22,696  10,401 
National Refinery limited  8,058  601 
Attock Leisure and Management  -  857 
  Associates (Private) Limited
Management Staff Pension Fund - note 38  134,557  169,593 
Staff Provident Fund  -  1,663 
General Staff Provident Fund  -  312 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund - note 10.1  1,820,773  1,544,079 

Due to joint operating partners
The Attock Oil Company Limited  18,777  8,490 
Others  2,580,128  1,435,659 

Accrued liabilities  3,481,967  2,953,120 
Contract liabilities - advances from customers  81,750  73,008 
Royalty payable to Government of Pakistan  976,743  901,299 
Excise duty payable  31,851  576 
Petroleum levy payable  14,163  17,716 
Workers' Welfare Fund payable  1,381,299  1,178,273 
Liability for staff compensated absences  16,911  16,707 
Other liabilities - note 10.2  27,020,337  22,278,874 

 37,912,225  31,056,163 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

10.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Payable at beginning of the year  1,544,079  1,156,615 
Amount allocated during the year  1,835,242  1,557,700 
Amount paid to the Fund's trustees  (1,558,548)  (1,170,236)
Payable at end of the year  1,820,773  1,544,079 

10.2 This represents payment received from a customer on account of additional revenue and related 
sales tax due to enhanced gas price incentive as explained in note 25.1.

11. UNPAID DIVIDEND - AWAITING REMITTANCE BY THE AUTHORIZED BANK

This represents dividend payable to parent company (non-resident), The Attock Oil Company 
Limited in United Kingdom (UK), for the year June 30, 2022, and interim dividend for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 awaiting remittance by the authorized bank due to regulatory constraints.

12. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Contingencies:

There were no material contingencies which warrant disclosure as at June 30, 2023 (2022: Rs nil).

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

12.2 Commitments:

Share in joint operations  15,026,127  13,792,446 
Own fields  4,586,947  5,047,000 
Letter of credit issued by banks on behalf of the

Company  818,030  380,001 

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets - note 13.1  5,417,443  6,219,771 
Capital work in progress - note 13.5  485,349  482,740 

 5,902,792  6,702,511 



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 167

13
.1

Op
er

at
in

g a
sse

ts
Fre

eh
old

 
Bu

ild
ing

s 
Pip

eli
ne

s 
Pla

nt 
an

d m
ac

hin
ery

 
Ga

s 
Mo

tor
 

Ch
att

els
 

Co
mp

ute
r a

nd
 

To
tal

 
lan

d 
an

d p
um

ps
 

Fie
ld 

pla
nts

 
Rig

s 
cy

lin
de

rs 
ve

hic
les

 
so

ftw
are

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ru
pe

es 
('0

00
)

As
 at

 Ju
ly 

1, 
20

21
Co

st
 20

,74
2 

 54
3,1

96
 

 2,
54

6,3
12

 
 16

,27
7,1

30
 

 80
5,5

50
 

 81
3,4

54
 

 62
2,0

47
 

 19
2,3

44
 

 60
3,5

79
 

 22
,42

4,3
54

 
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 de
pre

cia
tio

n
 -  

 
 (2

92
,44

6)
 (1

,75
2,9

63
)

 (1
1,7

76
,38

3)
 (6

21
,86

0)
 (6

62
,26

6)
 (5

39
,99

1)
 (1

49
,76

0)
 (4

99
,34

2)
 (1

6,2
95

,01
1)

Ne
t b

oo
k v

alu
e

 20
,74

2 
 25

0,7
50

 
 79

3,3
49

 
 4,

50
0,7

47
 

 18
3,6

90
 

 15
1,1

88
 

 82
,05

6 
 42

,58
4 

 10
4,2

37
 

 6,
12

9,3
43

 

Ye
ar 

en
de

d J
un

e 3
0, 

20
22

Op
en

ing
 ne

t b
oo

k v
alu

e
 20

,74
2 

 25
0,7

50
 

 79
3,3

49
 

 4,
50

0,7
47

 
 18

3,6
90

 
 15

1,1
88

 
 82

,05
6 

 42
,58

4 
 10

4,2
37

 
 6,

12
9,3

43
 

Ad
dit

ion
s

 -  
 

 8,
55

0 
 57

,60
4 

 1,
37

0,6
87

 
 24

,87
4 

 38
,20

2 
 34

,05
3 

 7,
96

5 
 28

,30
5 

 1,
57

0,2
40

 
Dis

po
sal

s
Co

st
 -  

 
 (2

8)
 (3

,84
6)

 (1
1,0

97
)

 (6
4)

 (5
,58

7)
 (4

,37
9)

 (4
33

)
 (7

,89
0)

 (3
3,3

24
)

Ac
cu

mu
lat

ed
 de

pre
cia

tio
n

 -  
 

 28
 

 3,
84

6 
 10

,84
9 

 64
 

 5,
58

7 
 4,

37
9 

 42
2 

 7,
88

2 
 33

,05
7 

 -  
 

 -  
 

 -  
 

 (2
48

)
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 (1

1)
 (8

)
 (2

67
)

De
pre

cia
tio

n c
ha

rge
 

 -  
 

 (2
1,2

32
)

 (1
71

,52
0)

 (1
,11

0,7
50

)
 (3

9,4
86

)
 (4

5,2
16

)
 (3

2,8
31

)
 (1

0,1
30

)
 (4

8,3
80

)
 (1

,47
9,5

45
)

Clo
sin

g n
et 

bo
ok

 va
lue

 20
,74

2 
 23

8,0
68

 
 67

9,4
33

 
 4,

76
0,4

36
 

 16
9,0

78
 

 14
4,1

74
 

 83
,27

8 
 40

,40
8 

 84
,15

4 
 6,

21
9,7

71
 

As
 at

 Ju
ne

 30
, 2

02
2

Co
st

 20
,74

2 
 55

1,7
18

 
 2,

60
0,0

70
 

 17
,63

6,7
20

 
 83

0,3
60

 
 84

6,0
69

 
 65

1,7
21

 
 19

9,8
76

 
 62

3,9
94

 
 23

,96
1,2

70
 

Ac
cu

mu
lat

ed
 de

pre
cia

tio
n

 -  
 

 (3
13

,65
0)

 (1
,92

0,6
37

)
 (1

2,8
76

,28
4)

 (6
61

,28
2)

 (7
01

,89
5)

 (5
68

,44
3)

 (1
59

,46
8)

 (5
39

,84
0)

 (1
7,7

41
,49

9)
Ne

t b
oo

k v
alu

e
 20

,74
2 

 23
8,0

68
 

 67
9,4

33
 

 4,
76

0,4
36

 
 16

9,0
78

 
 14

4,1
74

 
 83

,27
8 

 40
,40

8 
 84

,15
4 

 6,
21

9,7
71

 

Ye
ar 

en
de

d J
un

e 3
0, 

20
23

Op
en

ing
 ne

t b
oo

k v
alu

e
 20

,74
2 

 23
8,0

68
 

 67
9,4

33
 

 4,
76

0,4
36

 
 16

9,0
78

 
 14

4,1
74

 
 83

,27
8 

 40
,40

8 
 84

,15
4 

 6,
21

9,7
71

 
Ad

dit
ion

s
 -  

 
 14

,02
8 

 56
,58

1 
 57

4,7
98

 
 -  

 
 11

,82
6 

 13
0,3

28
 

 13
,04

5 
 30

,01
8 

 83
0,6

24
 

Dis
po

sal
s

Co
st

 -  
 

 -  
 

 (2
,69

9)
 (9

2,0
99

)
 (6

,42
3)

 (6
,48

8)
 (3

0,5
37

)
 (2

,05
5)

 (4
,05

9)
 (1

44
,36

0)
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 de
pre

cia
tio

n
 -  

 
 -  

 
 2,

69
9 

 84
,26

5 
 6,

42
3 

 6,
48

8 
 30

,53
7 

 2,
03

5 
 4,

05
9 

 13
6,5

06
 

 -  
 

 -  
 

 -  
 

 (7
,83

4)
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 (2

0)
 -  

 
 (7

,85
4)

Tra
ns

fer
s t

o s
tor

es 
an

d s
pa

res
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 (1

9,2
48

)
 -  

 
 -  

 
 -  

 
 (1

9,2
48

)
De

pre
cia

tio
n c

ha
rge

 
 -  

 
 (2

1,4
21

)
 (1

70
,77

1)
 (1

,20
9,5

60
)

 (3
6,0

03
)

 (6
3,3

43
)

 (4
8,6

86
)

 (1
0,3

02
)

 (4
5,7

64
)

 (1
,60

5,8
50

)

Clo
sin

g n
et 

bo
ok

 va
lue

 20
,74

2 
 23

0,6
75

 
 56

5,2
43

 
 4,

11
7,8

40
 

 13
3,0

75
 

 73
,40

9 
 16

4,9
20

 
 43

,13
1 

 68
,40

8 
 5,

41
7,4

43
 

As
 at

 Ju
ne

 30
, 2

02
3

Co
st

 20
,74

2 
 56

5,7
46

 
 2,

65
3,9

52
 

 18
,11

9,4
19

 
 82

3,9
37

 
 83

2,1
59

 
 75

1,5
12

 
 21

0,8
66

 
 64

9,9
53

 
 24

,62
8,2

86
 

Ac
cu

mu
lat

ed
 de

pre
cia

tio
n

 -  
 

 (3
35

,07
1)

 (2
,08

8,7
09

)
 (1

4,0
01

,57
9)

 (6
90

,86
2)

 (7
58

,75
0)

 (5
86

,59
2)

 (1
67

,73
5)

 (5
81

,54
5)

 (1
9,2

10
,84

3)

Ne
t b

oo
k v

alu
e

 20
,74

2 
 23

0,6
75

 
 56

5,2
43

 
 4,

11
7,8

40
 

 13
3,0

75
 

 73
,40

9 
 16

4,9
20

 
 43

,13
1 

 68
,40

8 
 5,

41
7,4

43
 

An
nu

al 
rat

e o
f  

De
pre

cia
tio

n (
%)

 -  
 

 5 
 10

 
 10

 
 10

 
 10

 
 20

 
 12

.5 
 25

 



168 Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Notes to and Forming Part of the  
Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

13.2 Cost and accumulated depreciation include:
Cost Accumulated depreciation

2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000)

Share in joint operations operated by the 
Company  1,575,514  1,540,222  1,393,432  1,366,181 

Assets not in possession of the Company

Share in joint operations operated by 
following

MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V.  12,527,472  12,119,964  9,999,069  9,150,286 
Ocean Pakistan Limited  76,679  75,842  65,146  63,140 
Oil and Gas Development Company 
Limited  74,324  74,175  62,480  57,236 
Pakistan Petroleum Limited  2,325,458  2,312,037  1,607,319  1,412,957 

 15,003,933  14,582,018  11,734,014  10,683,619 

Gas cylinders - in possession of 
distributors*  786,771  786,673  730,729  668,329 

 17,366,218  16,908,913  13,858,175  12,718,129 

*Due to large number of distributors it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having possession 
of these assets, as required by 4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

13.3 The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Operating cost - Note 26  1,605,850  1,479,545 

13.4 Particulars of Company's immovable property including location and area of land are as follows:

District Location Total Area (In acres) 

Attock Khaur  297.59 
Attock Dhulian  746.17 
Attock Meyal  194.44 
Chakwal Balkassar  2.14 
Rawalpindi Rawalpindi  35.76 
Rawalpindi Rawalpindi - (Khaur-  Rawalpindi pipe line)  63.35 
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13.5 Capital work in progress
Buildings Plant and 

machinery / 
Pipelines and 

pumps

Computers 
and software 
development 

Total

Rupees ('000)

Balance as at July 1, 2021  4,397  546,540  -    550,937 
Additions during the year  521  383,277  -    383,798 
Transfers during the year  -    (451,995)  -    (451,995)

Balance as at June 30, 2022  4,918  477,822  -    482,740 
 

Balance as at July 1, 2022  4,918  477,822  -    482,740 
Additions during the year  8,745  366,679  5,080  380,504 
Transfers during the year  (12,210)  (360,762)  (4,923)  (377,895)

Balance as at June 30, 2023  1,453  483,739  157  485,349 

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

13.6 Break up of capital work in progress at
June 30 is as follows:

Own fields  37,676  6,102 

POLGAS plant  -    8,908 

Share in joint operations operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and - TAL Block  956  21,013 
Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block 269 269 

Oil and Gas Development - Jhal Magsi D&P Lease  446,448  446,448 
Company Limited

 485,349  482,740 
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14. DEVELOPMENT AND DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

Development Decommissioning Total
Cost Cost

Rupees ('000)

As at July 1, 2021

Cost  48,771,570  3,268,953  52,040,523 
Accumulated amortization  (35,848,686)  (2,519,162)  (38,367,848)

Net book value  12,922,884  749,791  13,672,675 

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value  12,922,884  749,791  13,672,675 
Additions  560,588  22,137  582,725 
Disposals
Cost  -  (20,476)  (20,476)
Accumulated amortization  -  20,476  20,476 

 -  -  - 
 (147,697)  (189,694)  (337,391)

Revision due to change in estimates - note 9.2.1 

Amortization for the year - note 27  (3,534,368)  (174,515)  (3,708,883)

Closing net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 

As at July 1, 2022

Cost  49,184,461  3,080,920  52,265,381 
Accumulated amortization  (39,383,054)  (2,673,201)  (42,056,255)

Net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 

Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 
Additions  1,201,829  132,309  1,334,138 
Disposals
Cost  -  (59,827)  (59,827)
Accumulated amortization  -  59,827  59,827 

 -  -  - 
Revision due to change in estimates - note 9.2.1  (969,945)  (185,528)  (1,155,473)
Amortization for the year - note 27  (2,474,109)  (88,233)  (2,562,342)
Closing net book value  7,559,182  266,267  7,825,449 

As at June 30, 2023

Cost  49,416,345  2,967,874  52,384,219 
Accumulated amortization  (41,857,163)  (2,701,607)  (44,558,770)

Net book value  7,559,182  266,267  7,825,449 

14.1 Net book value at year end represents:
2023 2022

Rupees ('000)

Wholly owned fields  1,537,127  2,510,518 
Joint operations  6,288,322  7,698,608 

 7,825,449  10,209,126 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

15. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Balance brought forward  3,019,833  512,223 

Additions during the year  3,765,548  2,507,610 
 6,785,381  3,019,833 

Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable cost charged to 
 profit or loss - note 28  (5,024,582)  -   

 1,760,799  3,019,833 

15.1 Break up of exploration and evaluation assets at June 30 is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

Own fields - Balkassar  1,740,737  -   

Share in joint operations operated by the 
Company

- DG Khan - 2,979,667 
- Bandhak 20,062 12,072

Share in joint operations operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V. - Margala - 28,094 

1,760,799 3,019,833 
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2023 2022
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount

holding Rs ('000) holding Rs ('000)

16. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES - AT COST

Subsidiary company

Unquoted 

Capgas (Private) Limited 
344,250 (2022: 344,250) fully paid
ordinary shares including 191,250
(2022: 191,250) bonus shares of Rs 10 each 51 1,530 51 1,530 

Associated companies 

Quoted 

National Refinery Limited
19,991,640 (2022: 19,991,640) fully paid
ordinary shares including 3,331,940
(2022: 3,331,940) bonus shares of Rs 10 each
Quoted market value as at June 30, 2023:
Rs 2,998,746 thousand (2022: Rs 5,049,289 25 8,046,635 25 8,046,635 

Attock Petroleum Limited (APL) 
8,730,892 (2022: 6,984,714) fully paid
ordinary shares including 5,362,492
(2022: 3,616,314) bonus shares of Rs 10 each
Quoted market value as at June 30, 2023:
Rs 2,621,450 thousand  (2022: Rs 2,242,258  thousand 7 1,562,938 7 1,562,938 

Unquoted 

Attock Information Technology Services (Pvt)  
Limited (AITSL)

450,000 (2022: 450,000) fully paid
ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 10 4,500 10 4,500 

9,615,603 9,615,603 

16.1 All subsidiary and associated companies are incorporated in Pakistan. Although the Company has less than 
20 percent shareholding in APL and AITSL, these have been treated as associates since the Company has 
representation on their Board of Directors. 

16.2 The Company has assessed the recoverable amount of the investment in National Refinery Limited based 
on higher of Value In Use (VIU) and fair value (level 1 in the fair value hirerarchy - qouted market price as at 
June 30, 2023). VIU is based on a valuation analysis carried out by an external investment advisor engaged by 
the Company. VIU has been assessed on discounted cash flow based valuation methodology which assumes 
gross profit margin of 5.52% (2022: 5.74%), a terminal growth rate of 4.0% (2022: 4.0%) and weighted average 
cost of capital of 30.20% (2022: 17.51%).
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

17. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - 
CONSIDERED GOOD

Long term loans and advances to employees  62,127  57,715 

Less: Amount due within twelve months, shown
under current loans and advances - note 21  26,140  28,125 

 35,987  29,590 

17.1 Loans and advances to employees are for general purpose and for house rent advance which are 
recoverable in up to 60 and 36 equal monthly installments respectively and are secured by an 
amount due to the employee against provident fund. These loans and advances are interest free. 
These do not include any amount receivable from the Chief Executive and Directors. These loans 
have not been discounted, as the impact is considered insignificant.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

18. STORES AND SPARES

Stores and spares - note 18.1, 18.2 and 18.3  6,765,924  6,421,046 

Less: Provision for slow moving items - note 18.4  761,922  667,913 
 6,004,002  5,753,133 

 
18.1 Stores and spares include:

Share in joint operations operated by the Company  777,909  684,310 
Share in joint operations operated by others

(assets not in possession of the Company)  1,663,332  1,687,046 
 2,441,241  2,371,356 

18.2 Stores and spares include stores and spares in transit of Rs 298,998 thousand (2022: Rs 760,285 thousand).

18.3 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yet 
distinguishable.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

18.4 Provision for slow moving items

Balance brought forward  667,913  639,575 
Provision for the year - charged to profit or loss  94,009  28,338 

 761,922  667,913 

19. STOCK IN TRADE 

Crude oil and other products - note 19.1  577,479  384,649 

19.1 These include Rs 132,805 thousand (2022: Rs 62,825 thousand) being the Company’s share in non-operated 
joint operations.
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

20. TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD

Due from related parties - note 20.1  5,405,172  6,749,456 
Others  7,327,897  3,217,696 

 12,733,069  9,967,152 

20.1 Due from related parties

Associated companies
Attock Refinery Limited  5,375,353  6,726,161 
National Refinery Limited  280  307 
Attock Petroleum Limited  29,539  22,988 

 5,405,172  6,749,456 

Ageing analysis of trade debts receivable from related parties is given in note 37.3.1 to the financial statements.

The maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs 6,469,809 thousand (2022: Rs 6,749,456 thousand).

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

21. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans and advances - considered good
Employees - note 17  26,140  28,125 
Suppliers  375,853  357,362 

 401,993  385,487 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Deposits  65,520  61,174 
Short-term prepayments  175,641  172,360 

 241,161  233,534 

Interest income accrued  817,493  248,977 

Other receivables
Joint operating partners  450,493  313,169 
Due from related parties 

Parent company
The Attock Oil Company Limited  144,436  82,657 

Subsidary company
Capgas (Private) Limited  2,879  -   

Gratuity Fund - note 38  334,177  226,505 
Staff Provident Fund  1,336  -   
General staff Provident Fund  5,743  -   

Sales tax refundable  5,385,787  3,140,501 
Others (net of loss allowance of Rs 310 thousand 

(2022: Rs 310 thousand))  534,885  18,829 

 6,859,736  3,781,661 
 8,320,383  4,649,659 
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21.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs 492,976 thousand (2022: Rs 82,657 thousand) respectively.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

21.2 The aging analysis of receivable from related parties is as follows:

Upto 3 month  488,571  82,657 
3 to 6 month  -    -   
More than 6 month  -    -   

 488,571  82,657 

22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in mutual funds classified as fair value
through profit or loss - note 22.1  1,112,163  -   

22.1 Investments classified as fair value through profit or loss

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Additions during the year  1,111,955  519,710 
Redemptions during the year  (2,710)  (520,627)

Fair Value adjustment  2,918  917 

Balance at the end of the year  1,112,163  -   
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balance on

Short term deposits  62,969,880  65,921,720 
Interest/mark-up bearing saving accounts  7,279,702  1,760,167 
Current accounts  42,198  36,270 

 70,291,780  67,718,157 

Cash in hand  4,001  4,519 

 70,295,781  67,722,676 

Balance with banks include foreign currency balances of US $ 201,024 thousand (2022: US $ 169,602 
thousand). The balances in saving accounts and short term deposits earned interest / mark-up 
ranging from 2.69% to 21.75% (2022: 0.25% to 18%).

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

25. NET SALES

Crude oil  33,563,998  29,718,142 

Gas - note 25.1  18,851,106  14,311,957 
Less: Shrinkages / own use  3,010,217  2,042,897 

 15,840,889  12,269,060 

POLGAS - Refill of cylinders  11,028,760  9,672,638 

Solvent oil  489,546  285,062 

Sulphur  29,089  -   

 60,952,282  51,944,902 

25.1 On August 28, 2015, the Company signed the Supplemental Agreement with the Government of 
Pakistan (the Government) for conversion of TAL Block Petroleum Concession Agreement (PCA) 
signed under the 1997 Petroleum Policy to Petroleum (Exploration & Production) Policy 2012 
(Petroleum Policy 2012). Price regimes prevailing in Petroleum Policy 2007, Petroleum Policy 
2009 and Petroleum Policy 2012 shall be applicable correlated with the spud date of wells in the 
respective policies starting from November 27, 2007 and for future exploratory efforts under the 
above mentioned block. The conversion package included Windfall levy on Natural gas only. Draft 
statements specifying sums aggregating US $ 34,213 thousand (Rs 3,393,389 thousand) till June 
30, 2015 due to the Company in respect of Mamikhel, Maramzi & Makori East discoveries in TAL 
block were submitted to the Government on December 8, 2015. On October 9, 2017 Oil and Gas 
Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued gas price notifications of the subject arrears.

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) notified certain amendments in 
Petroleum Policy 2012 which also included addition of the following explanation of conversion package:
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“the conversion package shall include (i) price of Natural Gas for New Exploration Efforts (ii) windfall levy 
on Natural Gas (iii) EWT gas production, pricing and obligations (iv) Windfall levy on Oil & Condensate, 
only for PCAs converting from 1994 and 1997 Petroleum Policies and (v) Financial obligations relating to 
production bonus, social welfare and training”.

Under the said Notification, the Supplemental Agreements already executed for conversion from 
Petroleum policies of 1994 & 1997 shall be amended within 90 days, failing which the working interest 
owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. On January 3, 2018, Directorate General Petroleum 
Concessions (DGPC) required all exploration and production companies to submit supplemental 
agreements to incorporate the aforementioned amendments in Petroleum Concession Agreements 
(PCAs) signed under 1994 and 1997 policies, for execution within the stipulated time as specified above. 

Based on legal advice, the Company is of the view that already executed Supplemental Agreement 
cannot be changed unilaterally, the Supplemental Agreement was signed under the Conversion 
Package where gas price was enhanced and Windfall Levy on Oil / Condensate (WLO) was not 
applicable, the impugned SRO by giving retrospective effect amounts to taking away the vested 
rights already accrued in favour of the Company. The Government has no authority to give any 
law or policy a retrospective effect. The Company filed Constitutional Petition challenging the 
imposition of WLO on February 19, 2018 against Federation of Pakistan through Ministry of Energy 
(Petroleum Division), Islamabad. The Honourable Islamabad High Court after hearing the petitioner 
on February 20, 2018, directed the parties to maintain the status quo in this respect. After multiple 
hearings, last hearing was fixed on June 30, 2022, however the same could not be heard and next 
date of hearing is yet to be announced.

On prudent basis additional revenue (net of sales tax) on account of enhanced gas price incentive 
due to conversion from Petroleum Policy 1997 to Petroleum Policy 2012 since inception to June 30, 
2023 amounting to Rs 25,265,875 thousand will be accounted for upon resolution of this matter 
(including Rs 19,658,634 thousand related to period since inception to June 30, 2022). Additional 
revenue on account of enhanced gas price incentive of Rs 23,092,312 thousand and sales tax of 
Rs 3,928,026 thousand received from customer on the basis of notified prices has been shown as 
“Other liabilities” under “trade and other payables”. Sales tax of Rs 3,928,026 thousand (June 30, 
2022: Rs 3,237,101 thousand) received from customer on the basis of notified prices is declared 
in the monthly sales tax return as well as duly deposited with Federal Board of Revenue by the 
Company. The amount so deposited is shown within “sales tax refundable” in “advances, deposits, 
prepayments and other receivables”.



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 179

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

26. OPERATING COSTS

Operating cost - Own fields  1,559,576  1,010,197 

 - Share in joint operations - note 26.1  4,991,302  3,308,818 

Well workovers  76,699  568,151 

POLGAS - Cost of LPG, carriage etc.  2,677,382  2,608,519 

Head office and insurance charges  335,991  170,191 

Pumping and transportation cost  106,003  77,060 

Depreciation  1,605,850  1,479,545 
 11,352,803  9,222,481 

Opening stock of crude oil and other products  384,649  277,531 

Closing stock of crude oil and other products  (577,479)  (384,649)

 11,159,973  9,115,363 

26.1 This includes Rs 652,229 thousand (2022: Rs nil) for stores and spares written off due to fire incident 
at Gas Processing Facility (GPF) store at TAL Block which is operated by MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Co. 
BV. POL has adequate insurance cover and related assessment by insurance surveyor is in progress.

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

27. AMORTIZATION OF DEVELOPMENT
AND DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

Amortization charge for the year - note 14  2,562,342  3,708,883 

Revision in estimates of provision for decommissioning
costs in excess of related assets credited to 
statement of profit or loss - note 9.2.1  (1,387,057)  (390,146)

 1,175,285  3,318,737 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

28. EXPLORATION COSTS

Geological and geophysical cost

Own fields  289  151 

Share in joint operations operated by the Company

- DG Khan  2,208  141,311 
- Ikhlas  61,448  101,263 
- Pindori  183,817  -   
- North Dhurnal  32,617  21,498 
- Kirthar South  79,240  58,313 

Share in joint operations operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and - TAL Block  (68)  9,747 
Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block  350,147  40,113 

- Margala North Block  (3,897)  (480)

Oil and Gas Development - Kotra  8,410  (1,767)
Company Limited - Gurgalot  18,045  14,112 

- Chah Bali  11,176  -   

Pakistan Petroleum Limited - Hisal  477,138  31,871 

Mari Petroleum Company Limited - Taung  66,372  449,484 
- Nareli  408,053  11,422 

 1,694,995  877,038 

Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable cost charged to
profit or loss - note 15

Share in Joint operations operated by the Company

- DG Khan  4,353,065  -   

Share in Joint operations operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and
  Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block  671,517  -   

 5,024,582  -   

 6,719,577  877,038 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

29. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Establishment charges  437,768  296,082 
Telephone and telex  1,297  1,141 
Medical expenses  16,615  15,238 
Printing, stationery and publications  8,546  6,707 
Insurance  9,438  7,881 
Travelling expenses  6,215  4,982 
Motor vehicle running expenses  22,710  22,024 
Rent, repairs and maintenance  115,131  79,036 
Auditor's remuneration - note 29.1  17,866  10,886 
Legal and professional charges  15,636  5,643 
Stock exchange and CDC fee  5,999  5,420 
Computer support and maintenance charges  50,830  38,239 
Donations - note 29.2  30,000  -   
Other expenses  7,378  6,391 

 745,429  499,670 
Less: Amount allocated to field expenses  433,318  294,038 

 312,111  205,632 

29.1 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit  2,542  2,311 

Review of half yearly accounts, audit of consolidated 
accounts, staff funds, special certifications  4,530  2,154 

Tax services  10,158  6,000 

Out of pocket expenses  636  421 

 17,866  10,886 

29.2 This includes donation made to “Prime Minister’s - Flood Relief Fund” through Parent company 
amounting to Rs 30,000 thousand (2022: Rs nil).
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

30. FINANCE COSTS - NET

Provision for decommissioning costs - note 9.2
- Unwinding of discount  2,601,429  1,258,353 
- Exchange loss  7,010,980  4,282,697 

Banks' commission and charges  7,023  7,492 

 9,619,432  5,548,542 

31. OTHER CHARGES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund  1,835,242  1,557,700 
Workers' Welfare Fund  653,806  468,670 

 2,489,048  2,026,370 

32. OTHER INCOME - NET

Income from financial assets - bank balances
 short term deposits and treasury bills  10,670,619  3,190,425 

Exchange gain on financial assets - net  14,780,417  7,326,728 

Dividend on Investments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss - note 32.1  16,764  29,240 

Dividend from subsidiary and associated 
companies - note 32.2  643,338  497,038 

Rental income  303,625  197,514 

Crude oil transportation income  447,302  405,858 

Gas processing fee  81,973  21,249 

(Loss) / gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  (566)  5,821 

Gain on sale of stores and scrap  111,470  6,673 

Fair value adjustment on investments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss  2,918  917 

Others  4,113  16,006 
 27,061,973  11,697,469 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

32.1 Dividend on Investments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss

Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund  3,450  -   
Pakistan Cash Management Fund  -    5,735 
NBP Money Market Fund  2,871  5,843 
Atlas Money Market Fund  3,176  -   
ABL Cash Fund  3,516  17,662 
HBL Cash Fund  3,751  -   

 16,764  29,240 

32.2 Dividend from subsidiary and associated companies

Subsidiary company

Capgas (Private) Limited  24,786  21,226 

Associated company

National Refinery Limited  299,875  199,916 
Attock Petroleum Limited  318,677  275,896 

 643,338  497,038 

33. PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current - for the year  14,406,442  10,774,352 

Deferred - for the year  (1,200,365)  277,915 

 13,206,077  11,052,267 

33.1 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Accounting profit - before taxation  49,658,659  36,987,380 

* Tax at applicable tax rate of 40.75% (2022: 44.98%)  20,235,904  16,636,924 

Tax effect of depletion allowance, royalty payments
and amounts not taxable or taxed at lower rates  (11,720,913)  (8,076,344)

Impact of super tax  3,269,023  2,386,544 

Tax effect of change in applicable rate in respect 
of deferred tax  730,554  364,161 

Others  691,509  (259,018)

Tax charge for the year  13,206,077  11,052,267 

* The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of tax rates applicable to income from oil and gas 
concessions and income from other activities.
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34. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. Revenue 
from external customers for products of the Company is disclosed in note 25.

Revenue from two major customers of the Company constitutes 79% of the total revenue during 
the year ended June 30, 2023 (June 30, 2022: 75%).

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

35. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation  49,658,659  36,987,380 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation  1,605,850  1,479,545 
Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable cost  5,024,582  -   
Fair value adjustment on investments 

classified as fair value through profit or loss  (2,918)  (917)
Amortization of development and decommissioning costs  1,175,285  3,318,737 
Finance costs  9,612,409  5,541,050 
Exchange gain on financial assets  (14,780,417)  (7,326,728)
Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment  566  (5,821)
Dividend from subsidiary and associated companies  (643,338)  (497,038)
Income from financial assets - bank balances

short term deposits and treasury bills  (10,670,619)  (3,190,425)
Dividend on investments classified as fair value 

through profit or loss  (16,764)  (29,240)
Provision for staff compensated absences  409  (759)
Provision for slow moving stores and spares  94,009  28,338 
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement 

benefit plans  64,099  (60,235)

Cash flows before working capital changes  41,121,812  36,243,887 

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes:

(Increase) in stores and spares  (344,878)  (1,122,928)
(Increase) in stock in trade  (192,830)  (107,118)
(Increase) in trade debts  (2,765,917)  (2,628,621)
(Increase) in advances, deposits,

prepayments and other receivables  (3,102,208)  (596,434)
Increase in trade and other payables  6,856,062  5,360,770 

 450,229  905,669 

Cash flows generated from operations  41,572,041  37,149,556 

(Increase) / decrease in long term loans and advances  (6,397)  7,556 
Increase in long term deposits  29,255  22,153 
Taxes paid  (12,195,811)  (9,171,786)
Actual decommissioning cost paid  (234,963)  (101,446)

Net cash generated from operating activities  29,164,125  27,906,033 
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36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration, including 
benefits and perquisites to chief executive, directors and executives of the Company are given 
below:

Chief Executive Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022

Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000)

Managerial remuneration  9,514  8,373  185,504  136,098 

Bonus  9,071  5,708  142,920  87,798 

Housing, utility and conveyance  7,752  6,613  155,974  127,040 

Company's contribution to
pension, gratuity and provident funds  -    -    71,506  52,421 

Leave passage  1,269  1,269  19,865  19,902 

Other benefits  7,344  4,685  93,303  54,270 

 34,950  26,648  669,072  477,529 

No of persons, including those
who worked part of the year 1 1 73 57

In addition to remuneration, the Chief Executive and certain executives were provided with use 
of the Company’s cars and residential telephone facilities. The Company also provides medical 
facilities to its staff. Remuneration of executives are net of charge to subsidiary and associated 
companies amounting to Rs 56,473 thousand (2022: Rs 22,395 thousand).

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of fee to 7 directors (2022: 
7) was Rs 11,859 thousand (2022: Rs 9,139 thousand). This includes Rs 7,702 thousand (2022: Rs 
5,618 thousand) paid to 4 non-executives (2022: 4) of the Company.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

37.1 Financial assets and liabilities

Amortised cost Investments 
classifed as fair 
value through 
profit or loss

Total

Rupees ('000)

June 30, 2023

Financial assets

 Maturity up to one year
Trade debts 12,733,069 - 12,733,069 
Advances, deposits and other receivables 2,041,846 - 2,041,846 
Other financial assets - 1,112,163 1,112,163 
Short term investments - at amortised cost 34,855,131 - 34,855,131 
Cash and bank balances 70,295,781 - 70,295,781 

Maturity after one year
Long term loans and advances 35,987 - 35,987 

119,961,814 1,112,163 121,073,977 

Financial liabilities

Maturity up to one year
Trade and other payables 32,313,861 - 32,313,861 
Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by 

authorized bank 9,433,214 - 9,433,214 
Unclaimed dividend 317,153 - 317,153 

Maturity after one year
Long term deposits 924,820 - 924,820 

42,989,048 - 42,989,048 

June 30, 2022

Financial assets

Maturity up to one year
Trade debts 9,967,152 - 9,967,152 
Advances, deposits and other receivables 752,932 - 752,932 
Cash and bank balances 67,722,676 - 67,722,676 

Maturity after one year
Long term loans and advances 29,590 - 29,590 

78,472,350 - 78,472,350 

Financial liabilities

Maturity up to one year
Trade and other payables 26,012,620 - 26,012,620 
Unclaimed dividend 275,702 - 275,702 

Maturity after one year
Long term deposits 895,565 - 895,565 

27,183,887 - 27,183,887 
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37.2 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of Company’s financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external credit ratings 
of counter parties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR - VIS Credit Rating 
Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been 
assessed by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults 
in meeting obligations.

2023 2022
Rating Rupees (‘000)

Trade debts

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+ 5,414,966 6,733,199 
A1 7,064,767 3,164,485 
A2 173,262 1,984 

Counterparties without external credit rating

Existing customers with no default in the past 80,074 67,484 

12,733,069 9,967,152 

Advances, deposits and other receivables

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+ 1,318,183 322,587 

Counterparties without external credit rating
Existing customers / joint operating partners

with no default in the past 550,208 289,023 
Receivable from employees 26,140 28,126 
Receivable from parent company 144,436 82,657 
Others 2,879 30,539 

2,041,846 752,932 

Other financial assets

Counterparties with external credit rating AM2+ / AA+(f ) 203,099 - 
AM1 / AA(f ) 200,979 - 

AM1 / AA+(f ) 708,085 - 
1,112,163 - 

Short term investments

Counterparties without external credit rating
Treasury Bills issued by the Government of Pakistan 34,855,131 - 

Bank balances

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+ 70,291,598 67,715,821 
A1 182 2,336 

70,291,780 67,718,157 

Long term loans and advances

Counterparties without external credit rating
Receivable from employees 35,987 29,590 
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37.3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk (including currency risk, interest rates risk and price risk). The Company’s overall risk 
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the 
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

As of June 30, 2023, trade debts of Rs 4,870,997 thousand (2022: Rs 740,525 thousand) were past 
due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

Related parties

Up to 3 months 1,999 3,126 
3 to 6 months 1,476 9,708 
6 to 12 months 106,018 95,400 
Above 12 months - - 

109,493 108,234 

Others

Up to 3 months 1,900,830 73,559 
3 to 6 months 2,289,838 69,459 
6 to 12 months 462,300 453,388 
Above 12 months 108,536 35,885 

4,761,504 632,291 

4,870,997 740,525 

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. At 
June 30, 2023, the Company had financial assets of Rs 121,073,977 thousand (2022: Rs 78,472,350 
thousand).

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows which have been inflated using appropriate 
inflation rate, where applicable.
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Less than 1 
year

Between 1 to 
5 years

Over 5 years

Rupees (‘000)

At June 30, 2023

Long term deposits - 924,820 - 
Trade and other payables 32,313,861 - - 
Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by

authorized bank 9,433,214 - - 
Unclaimed dividend 317,153 - - 

At June 30, 2022

Long term deposits - 895,565 - 
Trade and other payables 26,012,620 - - 
Unclaimed dividend 275,702 - - 

(c) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign 
currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure with respect to the US 
dollar. Currently foreign exchange risk is restricted to trade debts, bank balances, receivable from / 
payable to joint operating partners, payable to suppliers.

Financial assets include Rs 59,591,245 thousand (2022: Rs 36,827,358 thousand) and financial 
liabilities include Rs 2,798,153 thousand (2022: Rs 139,193 thousand) which are subject to currency 
risk.

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2023 2022
Rupees per USD Rupees

Average rate  247.55  176.98 
Reporting date rate  286.60  205.75 

If exchange rates had been 10% lower / higher with all other variables held constant, profit after tax 
for the year would have been Rs 3,975,516 thousand (2022: Rs 2,568,172) lower / higher.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significant long term interest bearing financial assets and liabilities whose fair 
value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

37.3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk (including currency risk, interest rates risk and price risk). The Company’s overall risk 
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the 
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

As of June 30, 2023, trade debts of Rs 4,870,997 thousand (2022: Rs 740,525 thousand) were past 
due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

Related parties

Up to 3 months 1,999 3,126 
3 to 6 months 1,476 9,708 
6 to 12 months 106,018 95,400 
Above 12 months - - 

109,493 108,234 

Others

Up to 3 months 1,900,830 73,559 
3 to 6 months 2,289,838 69,459 
6 to 12 months 462,300 453,388 
Above 12 months 108,536 35,885 

4,761,504 632,291 

4,870,997 740,525 

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. At 
June 30, 2023, the Company had financial assets of Rs 121,073,977 thousand (2022: Rs 78,472,350 
thousand).

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows which have been inflated using appropriate 
inflation rate, where applicable.
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Financial assets include Rs 106,216,876 thousand (2022: Rs 67,718,157 thousand) which are subject 
to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rates for financial assets have been indicated in respective 
notes.

If interest rates had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for 
the year would have been Rs 530,391 thousand (2022: Rs 403,060 thousand) higher / lower, mainly 
as a result of higher / lower interest income from these financial assets.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar instruments traded in the market.

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Company 
and classified on the statement of financial position as investments classified as fair value through 
profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company 
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the investment 
policy of the Company.

Financial assets include Rs 1,112,163 thousand (2022: Rs nil) which are subject to price risk.

If prices had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for the 
year would have been Rs 6,784 thousand (2022: Rs nil) higher / lower, mainly as a result of exposure 
to fluctuation in prices of these financial assets.

37.3.2 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Company’s ability not only to 
continue as a going concern but also to meet its requirements for expansion and enhancement 
of its business, maximize return of shareholders and optimize benefits for other stakeholders to 
maintain an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, issue new shares through bonus or right issue or sell assets to reduce debts or raise 
debts, if required.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing 
ratio. The gearing ratio of the Company has always been low and the Company has mostly financed 
its projects and business expansions through equity financing. Further, the Company is not subject 
to externally imposed capital requirements.

37.3.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration paid 
or received, net of transaction costs as appropriate. The carrying values of other financial assets 
and liabilities of the Company not carried at fair value is a reasonable approximation of their fair 
values. The table below analyzes financial assets are measured at fair value, by valuation method. 
The different levels have been defined as follows:

 -  Level 1 : Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
 -  Level 2 : Observable inputs; and 
 -  Level 3 : Unobservable inputs
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The Company held the following financial assets at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
June 30, 2023  Rupees ('000)

Other financial assets
classified as fair value through 
profit or loss  1,112,163  -  -  1,112,163 

June 30, 2022

Other financial assets
classified as fair value through 
profit or loss  -  -  -  - 

38. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The details of actuarial valuation of defined benefit funded plans carried out as at year end are as 
follows:

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

38.1 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial 
position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations  1,959,276  1,769,240 
Fair value of plan assets  (2,158,896)  (1,826,152)

 (199,620)  (56,912)

Amounts in the statement of financial position:
Gratuity Fund - (Asset) - note 21  (334,177)  (226,505)
Management Staff Pension Fund - Liability - note 10  134,557  169,593 

Net (Assets)  (199,620)  (56,912)

38.2 The amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss are 
as follows:

Current service cost  51,027  44,108 
Net interest income  (14,859)  (10,505)

 36,168  33,603 

38.3 The amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income are as follows:

Remeasurement due to:
Change in financial assumptions  (21,638)  (1,369)
Experience adjustments  73,149  69,163 
Investment loss  (115,610)  (7,559)

 (64,099)  60,235 
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2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

38.4 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  1,769,240  1,618,605 
Current service cost  51,027  44,108 
Interest cost  221,304  155,997 
Remeasurement loss  51,511  67,794 
Benefits paid  (133,806)  (117,264)
Closing defined benefit obligation  1,959,276  1,769,240 

38.5 Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets  1,826,152  1,677,955 
Interest income  236,163  166,502 
Remeasurement gain  115,610  7,559 
Contribution by employer  114,777  91,399 
Benefits paid  (133,806)  (117,263)
Closing fair value of plan assets  2,158,896  1,826,152 

38.6 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets of defined pension and 
gratuity plan are as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)  % Rupees ('000)  % 

Unquoted:
Government bonds / securities  2,146,677  99  4,992  - 
Cash and cash equivalents  12,219  1  1,821,160  100 

 2,158,896  100  1,826,152  100 

The funds have no investment in the Company's own securities.

38.7 Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:

2023 2022
 %  % 

Discount rate 15.25 13
Expected rate of salary increase 13.75 12
Expected rate of pension increase 9 6.75

38.8 Mortality was assumed to be 70% of the EFU (61-66) Table at valuations on both dates, June 30, 2022 
and 2023.

38.9 The pension and gratuity plans are defined benefits final salary plans and both plans are invested 
through approved trust funds. The trustees of the funds are responsible for plan administration and 
investment. The Company appoints the trustees who are employees of the Company.
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The plans expose the Company to various actuarial risks: investment risk and salary risk from both 
plans and longevity risk from the pension plan.

The asset ceiling does not apply. The Company can use the surplus in the pension and gratuity fund 
to reduce its future contributions or can apply to the Commissioner of Income Tax for a refund.

38.10 Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The 
following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions 
by one percent.

 Defined benefit obligation 
 1 percent 
increase 

 1 percent 
decrease 

Rupees ('000)

Discount rate  (156,362)  183,857 
Salary increase  64,615  (58,868)
Pension increase  119,015  (105,080)

If life expectancy increases by 1 year, the obligation increases by Rs 58,089 thousand.

The impact of changes in financial assumptions has been determined by revaluation of the obligations 
on different rates. The impact of increase in longevity has been calculated on the aggregate for each 
class of employees.

38.11 The weighted average number of the defined benefit obligation is given below:

Plan Duration Pension Gratuity
Years

June 30, 2023 11.7 7.9
June 30, 2022 11.4 8

38.12 The Company contributes to the pension and gratuity funds on the advice of the fund's actuary. The 
contributions are equal to the current service cost with adjustment for any deficit.

Projected payments Pension Gratuity
Rupees ('000)

Contributions FY 2024  66,068  - 

Benefit payments:
FY 2024  114,173  30,979 
FY 2025  125,221  49,821 
FY 2026  135,341  37,840 
FY 2027  150,322  63,534 
FY 2028  163,091  55,674 
FY 2029-33  1,179,833  575,161 
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2023 2022
Note Rupees ('000)

39. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 24  70,295,781  67,722,676 
Short term investment 23  34,855,131  - 

 105,150,912  67,722,676 

40. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year (in thousand rupees)  36,452,582  25,935,113 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year (in thousand shares)  283,855  283,855 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)  128.42  91.37 

41. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

41.1 Aggregate transactions with related parties, other than remuneration to the chief executive, directors and 
executives of the Company under their terms of employment, were as follows:

2023 2022
Basis of Relationship Rupees ('000)

Parent company - The Attock Oil Company 
Limited

Holding company

Dividend paid  1,052,458  7,489,766 
Rental expense  83,596  58,783 
Purchase of LPG  126,216  134,942 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
  AOC on behalf of POL  2,098  4,045 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
  POL on behalf of AOC  376  -   

Subsidiary company - Capgas (Private) 
Limited

Subsidiary with 51% 
shareholding

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
  POL on behalf of CAPGAS  14,761  11,990 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
  CAPGAS on behalf of POL  14,041  8,838 
Rental Income  1,404  1,404 
Dividend received  24,786  21,226 
Purchase of LPG  -    51,223 
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2023 2022
Basis of Relationship Rupees ('000)

Associated companies

Attock Refinery Limited Common directorship
Sale of crude oil and gas  32,990,224  28,278,660 
Crude oil and gas transmission charges  4,798  4,201 
Rental Income  2,955  2,908 
Rental expense  1,509  1,466 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
   POL on behalf of ARL  1,120  1,012 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 
   ARL on behalf of POL  18,519  26,665 
Purchase of fuel  34,507  21,473 
Purchase of LPG  278,069  209,391 

National Refinery Limited 25% share holding & 
Sale of crude oil common directorship  -    18,603 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
   POL on behalf of NRL  69  6 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by  
   NRL on behalf of POL  284  615 
Rental expense  3,891  3,102 
Purchase of LPG  207,221  241,019 
Dividend received  299,875  199,916 

Attock Petroleum Limited 7.0175% share
Purchase of fuel and lubricants holding & common  1,247,821  993,916 
Sale of solvent oil directorship  489,546  285,063 
Rental income  1,239  1,186 
Purchase of services  795  613 
Purchase of goods  1,784  1,753 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred   
   by POL on behalf of APL  39,354  31,354 
Dividend received  318,677  275,896 
Profit disbursement  -    1,074 

Attock Information Technology  
(Private) Limited

10% share holding  & 
common directorship

Purchase of services  71,822  63,481 

Attock Hospital (Private) Limited Common
Purchase of medical services directorship  19,376  17,322 

Attock Leisure and Management Associates Common
(Private) Limited directorship

Purchase of services  -    8,480 
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2023 2022
Basis of Relationship Rupees ('000)

Attock Energy (Private) Limited Common directorship
Purchase of services  -    2,091 

Other associated entities
Dividend paid  15,062  9,259 

Other related parties

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors 
Honorarium & Key Management personnel 
including benefits & perquisites

 156,728  163,654 

Dividend paid to key management personnel  232,706  164,568 

Contribution to staff retirement benefits plans
Management Staff Pension Fund and Gratuity Fund  114,777  91,399 
Approved Contributory Provident Funds  39,026  31,873 

Contribution to Workers' Profit Participation Fund  1,835,242  1,557,700 

41.2 Details of associated Company incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had 
entered into transaction or had agreements are as follows:

i) Name of undertaking The Attock Oil Company Limited
ii) Country of Incorporation United Kingdom

iii) Basis of association Parent Company
iv) Aggregate %age of shareholding 52.77%

42. CONTRIBUTORY PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.
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43. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Description Explanation

i) Loans and advances Non-interest bearing

ii) Deposits Non-interest bearing

iii) Segment revenue Disclosed in note 34

2023 2022
Rupees ('000)

iv) Bank Balances

Placed under interest arrangements  61,893,386  67,679,367 

Placed under Shariah permissible arrangements  8,356,196  2,520 
 70,249,582  67,681,887 

v) Income on bank deposits

Placed under interest arrangements 9,349,480 67,679,367

Placed under Shariah permissible arrangements 1,321,139 2,520
10,670,619 67,681,887

vi) Dividend income Disclosed in note 32.1 & 32.2

vii) All sources of other income Disclosed in note 32

viii) Exchange gain Earned from actual currency

ix) Relationship with banks having 
Islamic windows

Following is the list of banks with which the Company has 
a relationship with Islamic window of operations:

1. Meezan Bank Limited
2. Albaraka Islamic Investment bank
3. Bank Islami Limited
4. Faysal Bank Limited
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44. GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF ALL OTHER BUSINESS UNITS INCLUDING INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATIONS

Geographical location and addresses of all other business units of the Company including interest in joint operations are as follows:

Working interest 
Exploration licenses / Leases Location and address 2023 2022

District(s) Province(s) %

Operated by the Company
Ikhlas Petroleum Concession (3372-18) Attock Punjab  80.00  80.00 
Kirthar South Petroleum Concession (2567-7) Dadu, Jamshoro, Lasbela, 

Thatta
Sindh and Balochistan  85.00  85.00 

Khaur D&Production Lease (153/PAK/2002) Attock Punjab  100.00  100.00 
Minwal D&Production Lease (123/PAK/98) Chakwal Punjab  82.50  82.50 
Pariwali D&Production Lease (119/PAK/97) Attock Punjab  82.50  82.50 
Pindori D&Production Lease (105/PAK/96) Rawalpindi Punjab  35.00  35.00 
Turkwal D&Production Lease (133/PAK/99) Chakwal and Rawalpindi Punjab  67.37  67.37 
D.G. Khan Petroleum Concession (2969-10) Barkhan, DG Khan, 

Rajanpur
Punjab and Balochistan  70.00  70.00 

North Dhurnal (3372-27) Attock Punjab  60.00  60.00 

Non-operated

Operated by MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V.
Margala Petroleum Concession (Block 3372-20) Rawalpindi, Islamabad, 

Haripur, Abbottabad
Punjab and Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa (KPK)

30.00 30.00 

Margala North Petroleum Concession (Block 3372-21) Rawalpindi, Islamabad, 
Haripur, Abbottabad, 
Attock

Punjab and KPK 30.00 30.00 

TAL Petroleum Concession (Block 3370-3) Kohat, Karak, Bannu KPK *25.00 *25.00 
Maramzai Development and Production lease Kohat, Hangu KPK
Manzalai D&Production lease (175/PAK/2007) Karak KPK
Makori D&Production lease (184/PAK/2012) Karak KPK
Makori East D&Production lease (205/PAK/2013) Karak KPK
Mamikhel Development and Production lease Kohat KPK
Tolanj West D&P lease 234/PAK/2017 Kohat KPK
Tolanj D&P lease 233/PAK/2017 Kohat KPK
Mardankhel D&P lease 233/PAK/2017 Hangu KPK
Mamikhel South D& P lease 272/PAK/2021 Kohat KPK

Operated by Oil and Gas Company Limited
Chaknaurang Mining Lease (125/PAK/98) Chakwal Punjab 15.00 15.00 
Gurgalot Petroleum Concession Block (3371-5) Kohat, Attock Punjab and KPK 20.00 20.00 
Jhal Magsi Development and Production Lease (2867-4) Jhalmagsi Balochistan 24.00 24.00 
Chah Bali Exploration License (2996-2) Mach, Mastung and Kalat Balochistan  30.00  -   

Operated by Ocean Pakistan Limited
Bhangali D&P Lease (65/PAK/90) Rawalpindi Punjab 7.00 7.00 
Dhurnal Mining Lease (59/PAKISTAN) Attock Punjab 5.00 5.00 
Ratana D&P Lease (94/PAK/94) Attock Punjab 4.55 4.55 

Operated by Pakistan Petroleum Limited
Adhi Mining Lease (72/PAKISTAN) Rawalpindi, Chakwal Punjab 11.00 11.00 
Hisal Petroleum Concession (3372-23) Rawalpindi, Chakwal, 

Attock
Punjab 25.00 25.00 

Operated by Mari Petroleum Company Limited 
Taung Petroleum Concession (2567-12) Jamshoro Sindh 40.00 40.00 
Nareli (3068-9) Loralai, Sibi, Harnai Balochistan 32.00 32.00 

* Pre-commerciality interest



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 199

45. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 29, 2023 has proposed a final dividend for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 @ Rs 60 per share, amounting to Rs 17,031,306 thousand for approval of 
the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 09, 2023.

46. GENERAL 

46.1 Capacity

Following is production from the Company’s fields including proportionate share from all operated 
and non-operated joint ventures:

Product Unit 2023 2022

Crude Oil US Barrels  1,829,336  2,017,581 
Gas Million Cubic Feet  23,726  25,825 
LPG Metric Tonnes  53,177  55,418 
Sulphur Metric Tonnes  609  475 
Solvent Oil US Barrels  18,334  18,605 

Considering the nature of the Company's business, information regarding installed capacity has no 
relevance.

46.2 Number of employees 2023 2022

Total number of employees as at June 30 669 694
Total number of employees at fields as at June 30 495 511
Average number of employees during the year 673 700
Average number of employees at fields during the year 494 514

46.3 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

46.4 Date of authorization

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 
August 29, 2023.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Pakistan Oilfields Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Pakistan Oilfields Limited and its subsidiary 
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of  profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position 
of the Group as at June 30, 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Following are the key audit matters:

S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(i) Analysis of impairment of development and 

decommissioning costs and exploration and 
evaluation assets

(Refer note 4.15, 15 and 16 to the consolidated 
financial statements)

As at June 30, 2023, the development and 
decommissioning costs amounted to Rs 7,825 
million and exploration and evaluation assets 
amounted to Rs 1,761 million.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting 
period whether there is any indication that a Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired.

Where impairment indicator is triggered for any 
CGU, an impairment test is performed by the 
management based on estimates of the value in 
use of that CGU.

The calculation of value in use of development 
and decommissioning costs requires the exercise 
of significant management’s estimates and 
judgements on certain assumptions such as (i) 
estimation of the volume of oil and gas recoverable 
reserves; (ii) estimation of future oil and gas prices; 
(iii) cost profiles and inflation applied; (iv) foreign 
exchange rates; and (v) discount rates.

We considered this matter as key audit matter 
due to the significant value of the related assets 
at reporting date and due to significance of 
judgements used by management.

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s 
impairment test, amongst others, included the following:

• Assessed the methodology used by management 
to estimate value in use of each CGU;

• Assessed the assumptions of cash flow projections 
in calculation of the value in use of CGUs, challenging 
the reasonableness of key assumptions i.e. oil and 
gas reserves, oil and gas prices, production costs, 
foreign exchange rates and discount rates based 
on our knowledge of the business and industry by 
comparing the assumptions to historical results, 
and published market and industry data;

• Assessed the impairment indicators as per IFRS 
6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral 
Resources” for material balances included in 
exploration and evaluation assets;

• Performed sensitivity analysis in consideration 
of the potential impact of reasonably possible 
downside changes in assumptions relating to oil 
and gas prices, discount rate and other assumptions 
and;

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the consolidated financial statements.
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(ii) Investment in associated companies

(Refer note 18 to the consolidated financial 
statements)

The Group has investment in its associated 
companies National Refinery Limited (NRL) and 
Attock Petroleum Limited (APL). As at June 30, 
2023, the carrying amount of investment in above 
referred associated companies amounted to Rs 
11,395 million (net of recognised impairment loss 
of Rs 3,625 million) and Rs 4,416 million respectively 
which carrying values are higher by Rs 8,396 million 
and Rs 1,795 million respectively in relation to the 
quoted market value of their respective shares. The 
Group carries out impairment assessment at each 
reporting period end of the value of investment 
where there are indicators of impairment.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount 
of the investment in associated companies based 
on the higher of the value-in-use (“VIU”) and fair 
value (quoted market price as at June 30, 2023). 
VIU is based on valuation analysis carried out by an 
independent external investment advisor engaged 
by the Group for NRL and by the management’s 
expert for APL. VIU is based on a discounted cash 
flow model which involves estimation of future 
cash flows. This estimation is inherently uncertain 
and requires significant judgement on both future 
cash flows and the discount rate applied to the 
future cash flows.  

In view of significant management judgement 
involved in the determination of recoverable value 
i.e. higher of VIU and fair value, we considered this 
as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in relation to assessment of 
carrying value of investment in associated companies, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Assessed the appropriateness of management’s 
accounting for investment in associated companies;

• Understood management’s process for identifying 
the existence of impairment indicators in respect 
of investment in associated companies;

• Evaluated the independent external investment 
advisor’s and management expert’s competence, 
capabilities and objectivity;

• Made inquiries of the independent external 
investment advisor/ management expert and 
assessed the valuation methodology used;

• Checked, on sample basis, the reasonableness of 
the input data provided by the management to the 
independent external investment advisor and the 
management’s expert, to supporting evidence;

• Assessed the reasonableness of cash flow 
projections, challenging and performing audit 
procedures on assumptions such as growth rate, 
future revenue and costs, terminal growth rate 
and discount rate by comparing the assumptions 
to historical results, budgets and comparing the 
current year’s results with prior year forecast and 
other relevant information;

• Checked mathematical accuracy of cash flows 
projections;

• Performed independently a sensitivity analysis in 
consideration of the potential impact of reasonably 
possible upside or downside changes in key 
assumptions; and

• Checked quoted price of investment in NRL and  
APL as of June 30, 2023 with publicly available 
stock exchange data; and

• Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements in this 
respect.
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(iii) Recognition of Revenue

(Refer note 4.25 and 27 to the consolidated financial 
statements)

The Group is engaged in the production and sale of 
oil and gas resources. 

The Group recognised net sales during the year from 
the sale of crude oil, gas and POLGAS/CAPGAS – Refill 
of cylinders amounting to Rs 33,564 million, Rs 15,841 
million and Rs 12,511 million respectively.

Revenue is recognised when control of the products 
has transferred, being when the products are 
delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled 
obligation that could affect the customer’s 
acceptance of the product. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration to which 
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring good/ services. Effect of adjustments, if 
any, arising from revision in sale prices is reflected 
as and when the prices are finalised with the 
customers and / or approved by Government of 
Pakistan.

We considered this as key audit matter due to the 
significance of the amounts requiring significant 
time and resource to audit due to magnitude, 
inherent risk of material misstatement and revenue 
being a key economic indicator of the Group.

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included the following:

• Assessed the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of the relevant key internal 
controls over revenue recognition from the sale of 
products;

• Performed test of details on sample basis for sales 
transactions by inspecting respective invoices, 
delivery challans and acknowledgement of 
customers; 

• Checked on sample basis, notifications of OGRA 
for natural gas and POLGAS/CAPGAS prices. For 
POLGAS/CAPGAS, also checked on sample basis 
Group’s mechanism for the calculation of price 
based on OGRA’s notification. Performed, on a 
sample basis, recalculation of crude oil and natural 
gas prices in accordance with applicable petroleum 
policies / agreements / decision of Economic 
Coordination Committee of the Cabinet;

• Where pricing is provisional / sales agreement not 
finalised, (a) inspected correspondence with the 
customers and relevant government authorities 
during the year and held discussions with the 
Group; (b) inspected term sheets etc; and (c) 
checked price recorded is in line with applicable 
petroleum policy / agreed with the customers;

• Assessed sales transactions on either side of the 
consolidated statement of financial position date 
to assess whether they are recorded in relevant 
accounting period;

• Performed analytical procedures to analyse 
variation in the price and quantity sold during the 
year;

• Tested journal entries related to revenue 
recognized during the year based on identified risk 
criteria; and 

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the consolidated financial statements.
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S.No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
(iv) Litigation with respect to conversion of TAL 

Block petroleum concession to Petroleum Policy 
2012

((Refer note 27.1 to the consolidated financial 
statements)

The Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) issued a 
notification dated December 27, 2017 (SRO) which 
required that the Supplemental Agreement already 
executed in respect of TAL block for conversion of 
petroleum concession from Petroleum Exploration 
and Production Policy 1997 to Petroleum 
Exploration and Production Policy 2012 shall be 
amended (within 90 days) to include Windfall Levy 
on Oil and Condensate (WLO), failing which the 
working interest owners will not remain eligible for 
gas price incentive as per Petroleum Policy 2012. 
The impugned notification was issued after the 
approval of Council of Common Interest (CCI) dated 
November 24, 2017.

The Group challenged the said notification in the 
Islamabad High Court and the matter is pending 
before the Islamabad High Court in principle on 
the ground that an already executed arrangement 
cannot be retrospectively altered unilaterally. 
The Islamabad High Court has restrained the 
Government for any action under the impugned 
notification and to maintain status quo. Group’s 
contention is duly supported by the legal advice on 
the matter. 

The supplemental agreement was signed under the 
conversion package where gas price was enhanced 
and WLO was not applicable. The impugned SRO, 
by giving retrospective effect, amounted to taking 
away the vested rights already accrued in favour of 
the Group. As per the legal opinion Government has 
no authority to give any law or policy a retrospective 
effect.

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included the following:

• Inspected Petroleum Concession Agreement (PCA) 
and Supplemental Agreements signed with the 
Government of Pakistan;

• Checked SRO issued by the Ministry of Energy;   

• Checked relevant clauses of Petroleum Exploration 
& Production Policy 2012 for applicability of WLO;

• Discussed the matter with directors, management 
and internal legal department of the Group;

• Obtained confirmation from the Group’s external 
legal advisor and checked legal opinion obtained 
by the Group and the order issued by the Islamabad 
High Court;

• Evaluated technical ability of the internal and 
external legal advisors used by the Group;

• Assessed the matter under applicable accounting 
frame work; and

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made 
in the consolidated financial statements in respect 
of this matter.

The Group has not recognised the revenue (net 
of sales tax) to the extent of Rs 25,266 million 
since inception to June 30, 2023 on account of 
enhanced gas price incentive due to conversion 
from Petroleum Policy 1997 to Petroleum Policy 
2012 and will be accounted for upon resolution of 
this matter. 

We considered this as key audit matter due to 
the significant amounts involved and significant 
judgments made by management regarding the 
matter.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control.
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Asim Masood Iqbal.

Chartered Accountants 

Islamabad
Date: September 08, 2023

UDIN: AR202310053yxNH4gjZp
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Financial Position 
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2023 2022
Note Rupees (‘000)

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Equity attributable to owners of POL

Authorised capital 6  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 6  2,838,551  2,838,551 

Capital reserves 7  2,069,400  2,031,097 

Revenue reserves 8  68,110,002  50,599,086 

Gain on remeasurement of investment at fair value
through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)  3,639  4,368 

 73,021,592  55,473,102 

Non-Controlling Interest  122,926  114,974 
 73,144,518  55,588,076 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term deposits 9  1,048,113  1,015,727 
 
Deferred liabilities
- Deferred tax liability  5,713,972  6,383,854 
- Provisions  26,129,254  19,213,057 

10  31,843,226  25,596,911 
 32,891,339  26,612,638 

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Trade and other payables 11  37,992,958  31,134,788 

Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by the authorized bank 12  9,433,214  -   

Unclaimed dividend  317,153  275,702 

Provision for income tax  12,018,991  9,802,862 
 59,762,316  41,213,352 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

 165,798,173  123,414,066 
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2023 2022
Note Rupees (‘000)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 14  5,952,098  6,755,903 

Development and decommissioning costs 15  7,825,449  10,209,126 

Exploration and evaluation assets 16  1,760,799  3,019,833 

Intangible assets 17  146,785  189,939 

Deferred tax asset  3,304  11,177 

 15,688,435  20,185,978 

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS IN
 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 18  15,868,873  14,445,000 

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 19  35,987  29,590 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 20  6,008,241  5,754,403 

Stock in trade 21  583,030  423,253 

Trade debts 22  12,733,338  9,967,911 

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 23  8,346,928  4,697,611 

Other financial assets 24  1,112,163  -   

Short term investments 25  35,055,731  -   

Cash and bank balances 26  70,365,447  67,910,320 
 134,204,878  88,753,498 

 165,798,173  123,414,066 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
Note Rupees (‘000)

SALES  67,725,392  59,934,299 

Sales tax  (5,066,406)  (6,438,430)

Excise duty  (224,174)  (245,203)

NET SALES 27  62,434,812  53,250,666 

Operating costs 28  (12,515,195)  (10,358,550)

Royalty  (6,880,170)  (5,563,309)

Amortization of development and decommissioning costs 29  (1,175,285)  (3,318,737)

 (20,570,650)  (19,240,596)

GROSS PROFIT  41,864,162  34,010,070 

Exploration costs 30  (6,719,577)  (877,038)
 35,144,585  33,133,032 

Administration expenses 31  (348,609)  (234,304)

Finance costs - net 32  (9,631,770)  (5,548,567)

Other charges 33  (2,495,747)  (2,029,809)
 (12,476,126)  (7,812,680)

 22,668,459  25,320,352 

Other income - net 34  26,440,550  11,211,117 
 49,109,009  36,531,469 

Share of (loss) / profit of associated companies 18 & 35  (231,540)  3,577,350 

Reversal of impairment / (impairment) on 
investment in associated company 18  2,164,811  (1,981,825)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  51,042,280  38,126,994 

Provision for taxation 36  (13,741,673)  (11,350,380)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  37,300,607  26,776,614 

Attributable to:
Owners of Pakistan Oilfields Limited (POL)  37,268,512  26,762,990 
Non-Controlling Interest  32,095  13,624 

 37,300,607  26,776,614 

Earnings per share attributable to owners of
POL - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 43  131.29  94.28 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

Profit for the year  37,300,607  26,776,614 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans  63,155  (61,040)

Tax (charge) / credit relating to remeasurement 
gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans  (22,802)  19,508 

 40,353  (41,532)
Share of other comprehensive income / (loss) of 

associated companies - net of tax  109,154  (12,305)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax  149,507  (53,837)

Total comprehensive income for the year  37,450,114  26,722,777 

Attributable to:
Owners of Pakistan Oilfields Limited (POL)  37,418,347  26,709,433 
Non-Controlling Interest  31,767  13,344 

 37,450,114  26,722,777 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Attributable to owners of Pakistan Oilfields Limited
Share

capital
Capital Reserves Revenue reserves Gain/(loss)

on 
revaluation

of investment
at fair value
through OCI

Total Non-
controlling

interest

Total
Bonus 
shares

issued by
subsidiary/
associated
companies

Special
reserve

Utilised
special
reserve

Insurance 
reserve

General
reserve

Unappropriated
profit

Rupees (‘000)

Balance at June 30, 2021 2,838,551  71,395  15,437 1,941,044  200,000 7,077,325  30,810,225  2,447  42,956,424  122,024  43,078,448 

Total comprehensive income for the year:

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    26,762,990  -    26,762,990  13,624  26,776,614 
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  -    -    -    -    -    -    (55,478)  1,921  (53,557)  (280)  (53,837)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    26,707,512  1,921  26,709,433  13,344  26,722,777 

Transferred to special reserve by an associated company  -    -    1,466,263  -    -    -    (1,466,263)  -    -    -    -   
Accumulated loss of an associated company offset against special reserve  -    -    (1,463,042)  -    -    -    1,463,042  -    -    -    -   

POL dividends:

Final dividend @ Rs 30 per share - Year ended June 30, 2021  -    -    -    -    -    -    (8,515,653)  -    (8,515,653)  -    (8,515,653)
Interim dividend @ Rs 20 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  -    -    -    -    -    -    (5,677,102)  -    (5,677,102)  -    (5,677,102)

Dividend to CAPGAS non - controlling interest holders:

Final dividend @ Rs 21.6 per share - Year ended June 30, 2021  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (7,144)  (7,144)
First Interim dividend @ Rs 19.26 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  (6,370)  (6,370)
Second Interim dividend @ Rs 16.3 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  (5,391)  (5,391)
Third Interim dividend @ Rs 4.5 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (1,489)  (1,489)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -    -    -    -    (14,192,755)  -    (14,192,755)  (20,394)  (14,213,149)

Balance at June 30, 2022 2,838,551  71,395  18,658 1,941,044  200,000 7,077,325  43,321,761  4,368  55,473,102  114,974  55,588,076 

Total comprehensive income for the year:

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    37,268,512  -    37,268,512  32,095  37,300,607 
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  -    -    -    -    -    -    150,564  (729)  149,835  (328)  149,507 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    37,419,076  (729)  37,418,347  31,767  37,450,114 

Transferred to special reserve by an associated company  -    -    20,841  -    -    -    (20,841)  -    -    -    -   

Bonus shares issued by an associated company - APL  -    17,462  -    -    -    (17,462)  -    -    -    -   

POL dividends:

Final dividend @ Rs 50 per share - Year ended June 30, 2022  -    -    -    -    -    -    (14,192,755)  -    (14,192,755)  -    (14,192,755)
Interim dividend @ Rs 20 per share - Year ended June 30, 2023  -    -    -    -    -    -    (5,677,102)  -    (5,677,102)  -    (5,677,102)

Dividend to CAPGAS non - controlling interest holders:

First Interim dividend @ Rs 22.5 per share - Year ended June 30, 2023  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (7,443)  (7,443)
Second Interim dividend @ Rs 20 per share - Year ended June 30, 2023  (6,615)  (6,615)
Third Interim dividend @ Rs 29.5 per share - Year ended June 30, 2023  (9,757)  (9,757)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -    -    -    -    (19,869,857)  -    (19,869,857)  (23,815)  (19,893,672)

Balance at June 30, 2023 2,838,551  88,857  39,499 1,941,044  200,000 7,077,325  60,832,677  3,639  73,021,592  122,926  73,144,518 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note Rupees (‘000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers  60,644,260  51,301,107 

Operating and exploration costs paid  (12,365,619)  (8,902,612)

Royalty paid  (6,804,726)  (5,244,873)

Taxes paid  (12,210,353)  (9,187,784)

Cash provided by operating activities 46  29,263,562  27,965,838 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure  (5,786,746)  (4,670,235)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  7,288  6,088 

(Investment in) / redemption of mutual funds - net  (1,109,245)  917 

Income on bank deposits and investments at amortised cost  10,139,273  3,133,938 

Dividend income received  635,316  505,052 

Cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  3,885,886  (1,024,240)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid  (10,395,192)  (14,161,548)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest holders  (23,815)  (20,394)

Cash used in financing activities  (10,419,007)  (14,181,942)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES  14,780,417  7,326,728 
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  37,510,858  20,086,384 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  67,910,320  47,823,936 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 41  105,421,178  67,910,320 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer



216 Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Notes to and Forming Part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023
1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS        

 Pakistan Oilfields Limited (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company and its 
shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated 
at Morgah, Rawalpindi. The Company is principally engaged in exploration, drilling and production of 
crude oil and gas in Pakistan. Its activities also include marketing of liquefied petroleum gas under the 
brand name POLGAS and transmission of petroleum. The Company is a subsidiary of The Attock Oil 
Company Limited, UK and its ultimate parent is Coral Holding Limited.

 CAPGAS (Private) Limited (CAPGAS), the subsidiary company is incorporated in Pakistan as a private 
limited company under the Companies Act, 2017 and is principally engaged in buying, filling, distribution 
and dealing in Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG). 

 For the purpose of these financial statements, POL  and its consolidated subsidiary are referred as the 
Group.

 Geographical location and addresses of all other business units of the Group have been disclosed in note 48.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE        

 These are consolidated financial statements of the Group. These financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting 
and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International  Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Group: 

Effective date 
(annual reporting 
periods beginning 

on or after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2023 & 
January 1, 2024

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 
and errors (Amendments) January 1, 2023

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2024
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3.2 The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and 
interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other 
than the impact on presentation / disclosures.

Further, the following standards and interpretations have been issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified or has been waived off by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in 
Pakistan:

-   IFRS 1 (First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards)
-   IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts)
-   IFRIC 12 (Service concession arrangements)

3.3 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.O. 67 (I)/2023 dated January 
20, 2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.O. 985(1)/2019 and S.R.O 1177 (I)/2021 dated 
September 2, 2019 and September 13, 2021 respectively, has notified that in respect of companies 
holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in respect of circular debt, the 
requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of expected credit loss (ECL) model 
shall not be applicable till December 31, 2024, provided that such companies shall follow relevant 
requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'  in respect of above 
referred financial assets during the exemption period. The Company has assessed that the above 
does not have any significant impact on its financial statements.  

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as 
otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policy notes.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of POL and its subsidiary 
CAPGAS with 51% holding (2022: 51%).

a) Subsidiary

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The 
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of subsidiary company have been consolidated on a line by line basis and 
the carrying value of investments held by the parent company is eliminated against the subsidiary 
shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Material intra-group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of the operations and of net assets of the 
subsidiary attributable to interests which are not owned by the parent company. Non-controlling 
interest are presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial statements.
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b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally 
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in 
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under this method, the 
investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to 
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The 
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a 
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to statement of profit or loss where applicable.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, and its 
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognized in statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its 
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize 
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf 
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence if the associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference 
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying amount and recognises the 
amount adjacent to share of profit/ (loss) of associates in the statement of profit or loss.

4.3 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for 
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as 
the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The management has determined that the 
Group has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors views the Group's operations as 
one reportable segment. 

4.4 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Group operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistan 
Rupees, which is the Group's functional currency.

4.5 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the 
rates of exchange ruling on the date of the statement of financial position. Exchange differences are 
dealt with through the statement of profit or loss.

4.6 Taxation

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at applicable tax rates, adjusted for royalty 
payments to the Government.
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Deferred tax is accounted for on all temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred 
tax liability has been calculated at the estimated effective rate of 36% (2022: 32%) after taking 
into account availability of future depletion allowance and set off available in respect of royalty 
payments to the Government whereas deferred tax asset / liability of CAPGAS has been calculated 
at applicable tax rate.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

4.7 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events and when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

4.8 Provision for decommissioning costs

Provision for decommissioning costs is recognized in full for development wells and production 
facilities. The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated cost to abandon a well 
and remove production facilities. A corresponding intangible asset of an amount equivalent to 
the provision is also created and is amortized on unit of production basis over the total proved 
developed reserves of the field or @ 5% where the life of a field is more than 20 years.

Most of these abandonment and removal events are many years in the future and the precise 
requirements that will have to be met when the abandonment and removal event actually occurs 
are uncertain. Abandonment and asset removal technologies and costs are constantly changing, as 
are political, environmental, safety and public expectations. Consequently, the timing and amount 
of future cash flows are subject to significant uncertainty.

The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with the interest rate 
to be used in discounting the cash flows. Any difference between the liability recognized and actual 
costs incurred are charged/credited to statement of profit or loss in the year of decommissioning.

The effect of changes resulting from revisions to the estimate of the liability are incorporated on a 
prospective basis.

The decommissioning cost has been discounted at a real discount rate of 2.15% (2022: 1.00%) per 
annum.

4.9 Employee compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Group.
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4.10 Staff retirement benefits

The Company and its subsidiary operates the following staff retirement benefits plans:

POL

POL operates the following staff retirement benefits plans:

(i) A pension plan for its management staff and a gratuity plan for its management and non-
management staff. The pension and gratuity plans are invested through approved trust funds. Both 
are defined benefit final salary plans. The pension and gratuity plans are complementary plans for 
management staff. Pension payable to management staff is reduced by an amount determined by 
the actuary equivalent to amount paid by the gratuity fund. Management staff hired after January 1, 
2012 are only entitled to benefits under gratuity fund. Actuarial  valuations are conducted annually 
using the "Projected Unit Credit Method" and the latest valuation was conducted as at June 30, 
2023. 

Actuarial  gain and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions 
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in statement of profit or loss.

Since both are complementary plans, combined details and valuation for pension plan and gratuity 
plan are given in note 40.

(ii) Separate approved contributory provident funds for management and non-management 
employees for which contributions are made by the Company and the employee at the rate of 10% 
of basic salary. Charge included in these financial statements is Rs 38,900 thousand (2022: Rs 31,779 
thousand).

CAPGAS

The subsidiary is operating a non funded gratuity plan for management and non-management 
employees. The liability for gratuity plan is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation conducted as 
at June 30, 2023 using the "Project Unit Credit Method".

4.11 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received. Trade and other payables are presented as 
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

4.12 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past 
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

4.13 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses (if any).
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Depreciation is provided on straight line method at rates specified in note 14.1 to the financial 
statements. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the assets become available for 
the intended use up to the month in which these are derecognized.The useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The effect of any changes in estimate is 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, 
and are recognized net within “other income” in the statement of profit or loss.

4.14 Other intangible assets

These are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Amortization is calculated using the straight line method over the period of useful life of the asset 
at the rates specified in note 17. Costs associated with maintaining intangibles are recognized as 
expense as and when incurred. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
intangible asset is acquired or capitalized, while no amortization is charged for the month in which 
the intangible asset is disposed off.

4.15 Exploration assets / costs and development costs

4.15.1 Exploration and development costs are accounted for using the “Successful Efforts Method” of 
accounting.

4.15.2 Exploration costs

All exploration costs, other than those relating to exploratory drilling, are charged to income as 
incurred. Exploratory drilling costs i.e. costs directly associated with drilling of an exploratory well, 
are initially capitalized pending determination of proven reserves. These costs are either charged to 
income if no proved reserves are found or transferred to development costs after impairment loss, 
if proved reserves are found.

All capitalized costs are subject to review for impairment at least once a year and any impairment 
determined is immediately charged to income.

4.15.3 Development costs

Development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. 
Expenditure on drilling of development wells, including unsuccessful development wells, is 
capitalized within development costs. Capitalized development costs are amortized on a unit of 
production basis over the total proved developed reserves of the field or @ 5% per annum where 
the life of the field is more than 20 years.

4.16 Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at cost determined on moving average formula less allowance for 
obsolete items. Stores in transit are stated at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

4.17 Stock in trade

Stocks are valued at the lower of average annual cost (including appropriate production overheads) 
and net realizable value. Net realizable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of 
the product in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.
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4.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to depreciation and are 
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment 
at each statement of financial position date, or wherever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for 
the amount for which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset's 
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible 
reversal of the impairment at each statement of financial position date. Reversals of the impairment 
loss are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no new impairment loss 
had been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in income for 
the year.

4.19 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of 
business. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they 
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, 
unless they contain significant financing components when they are recognised at fair value. They 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less loss 
allowance. 

Other receivables are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. 

Refer note 4.22 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.

4.20 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when 
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets 
are derecognized at the time when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise 
the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished 
that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gains 
or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the statement 
of profit or loss.

4.21 Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

(ii) Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

(iii) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this 
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are derecognised when the 
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the 
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of 
profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the Group’s business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into 
which the Group can classify its debt instruments:

a) Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms 
of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely payments of 
principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other income together with 
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the 
statement of profit or loss.

b) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent 
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest 
revenue, and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to statement of profit or loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in other income and impairment expenses are presented 
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or 
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and 
presented net within other income in the period in which it arises.
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Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s 
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, 
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the 
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in 
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

4.22 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a historical as well as on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses 
(ECL) as associated with its trade debts, deposits and other receivables and cash and bank balances 
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk. For trade debts, the Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to 
measure the expected credit losses (loss allowance) which uses a life time expected loss allowance 
while general 3-stage approach for deposits and other receivables and cash and bank balances i.e 
to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL if credit risk on a 
financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts
- Deposits and other receivables 
- Cash and bank balances
- Short term investments

(i) Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The 
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of 
possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past 
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Trade debts with individually significant balance are separately assessed for ECL measurement. 
All other receivables are grouped and assessed collectively based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are 
estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are 
specific to the debtors,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current 
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of 
money where appropriate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of 
significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, 
the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

- Nature of financial instruments;
- Past-due status;
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- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
- external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group 
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all 
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through 
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured 
at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount 
of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Write-off

The Group write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical 
recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The 
assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s 
sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

(ii)      General approach for short term investment, deposits and other receivables and cash 
and bank balances.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss 
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical 
data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted for factors that are specific to the 
counterparty,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money 
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by 
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward looking, 
based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in 
credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected losses.

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is 
determined by the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of 
a change in credit rating, allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net present 
value of expected cash flows. On a significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recognised 
without a change in the expected cash flows, although typically expected cash flows do also 
change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12 month to lifetime expectations.

Significant increase in credit risk 

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each 
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the reporting date with 
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and 
supportable forward-looking information.
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The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions 
that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;
- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality 

of third-party guarantees, if applicable.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk 
management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of 
the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the 

debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into 
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Group considers that default has 
occurred when the debt is more than 365 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable 
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more 
appropriate.

Credit - impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial 
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would 
not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

4.23 Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

-  fair value through profit or loss; and
-  other financial liabilities. 

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial 
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities also include 
directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification, as follows:
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a) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. 
The Group has not designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through 
profit or loss.

b) Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently measured 
at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in profit 
or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate 
amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Group's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

4.24 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if the Group has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognized amounts and the Group 
intends to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are 
delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's 
acceptance of the product. Revenue is recognised as follows:

a) crude oil, upon delivery to customer; 
b) natural gas, upon delivery to the customer; and
c) Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG), upon delivery to distributors at LPG plant facility

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled 
in exchange for transferring goods/services. Prices of crude oil and gas are calculated in accordance 
with Petroleum Concession Agreements / Petroleum Policy / or as notified by the Government 
Authorities. Effect of adjustment, if any, arising from revision in sale price is reflected as and when 
the prices are finalized with the customers and/or approved by the Government.

Billings are generally raised in the following month which are payable within 30 to 45 days in 
accordance with the contractual arrangement with customers.

4.26 Other Income 

Income on investments at amortised costs and bank deposits is recognized on time proportion 
basis using the effective yield method.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
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4.27 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures 
depending on the contractual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Group 
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint operations. The 
Group has recognized its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred 
under the joint operations on the basis of latest available audited accounts of the joint operations 
and where applicable, the cost statements received from operators of the joint arrangements for the 
intervening period up to the statement of financial position date.

4.28 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, 
demand deposits and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and 
finances under mark up arrangements.

4.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is accounted for in the period in which dividend is declared.

4.30 Leases

4.30.1 Right of use asset

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. If the Group 
assesses that a contract contains a lease and meets requirements of IFRS 16, the Group recognises 
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred 
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

4.30.2 Lease liability

If applicable, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that 
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the 
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a. fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
b. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date;
c. amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
d. the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early.
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The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension 
or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Variable lease payments are recongnised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that 
triggers those payments occurs.

The Group has opted not to recognize right of use asssets for short-term leases i.e. leases with a term 
of twelve(12) months or less. The payments associated with such leases are recognized in profit or 
loss when incurred.

4.30.3 During the year Rs 505,492 thousand (2022: Rs 568,925 thousand) have been capitalised in 
Development & Decommissioning costs and Exploration & Evaluation assets in respect of short-
term leases.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the 
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the Group's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in 
application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Estimated crude oil/gas reserves used for amortization of development and decommissioning 
costs - note 4.15 and 15

ii) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment - note 4.13 and 14.1
iii) Estimated costs, discount and inflation rate used for provision for decommissioning costs - 

note 4.8 and 10.2
iv) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in associated companies - note 4.2 and 18
v) Estimated value of staff retirement benefits obligations - note 4.10 and 40
vi) Provision for taxation - note 4.6 and 36
vii) Price adjustment related to crude oil sales - note 4.25 and 27
viii) Impairment of financial assets - note 4.22
ix) Right of use assets and corresponding lease liability - note 4.30
x) Estimated useful life of intangible assets - note 4.14 and note 17
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2023 2022
6. SHARE CAPITAL Rupees (‘000)

Authorised capital
500,000,000 (2022: 500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Shares issued for cash
20,200,000 (2022: 20,200,000) ordinary shares  202,000  202,000 

Shares issued as fully paid bonus shares  2,636,551  2,636,551 
263,655,104 (2022: 263,655,104) ordinary shares

283,855,104 (2022: 283,855,104) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  2,838,551  2,838,551 

6.1 The Company is a subsidiary of The Attock Oil Company Limited which held 149,794,518 (2022: 
149,794,518) ordinary shares at the year end.

2023 2022
7. CAPITAL RESERVE Rupees (‘000)

Bonus shares issued by
subsidiary/associated companies  88,857  71,395 
Special reserve - note 7.1  39,499  18,658 
Utilised special reserve - note 7.2  1,941,044  1,941,044 

 2,069,400  2,031,097 

7.1 This represents the Group’s share of post-acquisition profit set aside as a special reserve by 
associated companies on account of expansion and modernisation of refineries or to offset against 
any future loss of Rs 39,217 thousand (2022: Rs 18,415 thousand), as a result of the directive of the 
Government to divert net profit after tax above 50 percent of paid-up capital and maintenance 
reserve of Rs 282 thousand (2022: Rs 243 thousand) retained by an Attock Gen Limited (an associate 
of Attock Petroleum Limited) to pay for major maintenance expenses in terms of Power Purchase 
Agreement. Special reserves are not available for distribution.

7.2 This represents the Group’s share of amounts utilised by associated companies out of the Special 
Reserve for upgradation and expansion of the refineries. 

2023 2022
8. REVENUE RESERVES Rupees (‘000)

Insurance reserve - note 8.1  200,000  200,000 
General reserve - note 8.2  7,077,325  7,077,325 
Unappropriated profit  60,832,677  43,321,761 

 68,110,002  50,599,086 
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8.1 The Group has set aside an insurance reserve for self insurance of assets which have not been 
insured and for deductibles against insurance claims.

8.2 This includes Rs 1,557,794 thousand (2022: Rs 1,557,794 thousand) set aside by POL on account 
of gain on sale of investments as investment reserve to meet any future losses/ impairment on 
investments.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

9. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits from distributors against equipment  989,182  960,019 
Security deposits from distributors against

distributorship and others  58,931  55,708 
 1,048,113  1,015,727 

9.1 Amount received as security deposit is utilized/utilizable by the Group in accordance with the 
related agreements with customers.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

10. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liability - note 10.1  5,713,972  6,383,854 
Provisions

- Provision for decommissioning costs - note 10.2  26,090,656  19,123,431 

- Provision for staff compensated absences  2,949  2,540 

- Provision for un-funded gratuity plan - CAPGAS  10,344  7,840 

- Renewal fee  25,305  79,246 

 26,129,254  19,213,057 
 31,843,226  25,596,911 

10.1 Deferred tax liability 

Deferred tax liability represents:

Temporary differences between accounting and
tax base of non current assets  6,143,168  6,747,113 

Provision for stores and spares  (274,292)  (213,732)
Provision for doubtful receivable  (112)  (99)
Deferred tax on remeasurement loss on

staff retirement benefit plans  (154,792)  (149,428)
 5,713,972  6,383,854 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

10.2 Provision for decommissioning costs

Balance brought forward  19,123,431  14,389,227 
Revision due to change in estimates - note 10.2.1  (2,542,530)  (727,537)
Provision made during the year  132,309  22,137 
Unwinding of discount - note 32  2,601,429  1,258,353 
Exchange loss - note 32  7,010,980  4,282,697 
Decommissioning cost incurred during the year  (234,963)  (101,446)

 26,090,656  19,123,431 

10.2.1 Revision due to change in estimates

Credited to related asset - note 15  (1,155,473)  (337,391)
Revision in excess of related asset credited to

statement of profit or loss - note 29  (1,387,057)  (390,146)
 (2,542,530)  (727,537)
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2023 2022
11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees (‘000)

Creditors  253,400  389,271 
Due to related parties

Attock Hospital (Private) Limited  1,800  2,667 
Attock Petroleum Limited  67,015  83,623 
Attock Refinery Limited  22,696  10,401 
National Refinery limited  8,058  601 
Attock Lesiure and Management Associates 

(Private) Limited  -  857 
Management Staff Pension Fund - note 40  134,557  169,593 
Staff Provident Fund  -  1,663 
General Staff Provident Fund  -  312 
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund - note 11.1  1,825,792  1,546,307 

Due to joint operating partners
The Attock Oil Company Limited  18,777  8,490 
Others  2,580,128  1,435,659 

Accrued liabilities  3,484,017  2,957,301 
Contract Liabilities - Advances from customers  89,874  80,613 
Royalty payable to Government of Pakistan  976,743  901,299 
Excise duty payable  31,851  576 
Petroleum levy payable  14,163  17,716 
Workers’ Welfare Fund payable  1,383,240  1,179,131 
Liability for staff compensated absences  16,911  16,707 
Current portion of deferred liabilites - renewal fee  51,150  45,515 
Other Liabilities - note 11.2  27,032,786  22,286,486 

 37,992,958  31,134,788 

11.1 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

Payable at beginning of the year  1,546,307  1,156,780 

Amount allocated during the year  1,840,261  1,559,928 

Amount paid to the Fund’s trustees  (1,561,548)  (1,170,401)

Amount under provided in previous years  772  - 

Payable at end of the year  1,825,792  1,546,307 

11.2 This represents payment received from a customer on account of additional revenue and related 
sales tax due to enhanced gas price incentive as explained in note 27.1.
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12 UNPAID DIVIDEND - AWAITING REMITTANCE BY THE AUTHORIZED BANK

This represents dividend payable to parent company (non-resident), The Attock Oil Company 
Limited in United Kingdom (UK), for the year June 30, 2022, and interim dividend for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 awaiting remittance by the authorized bank due to regulatory constraints.

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

13.1.1 POL

There were no material contingencies which warrant disclosure as at June 30, 2023 (2022: Rs nil).

13.1.2 CAPGAS

In 2018, the Islamabad High Court held that the use of cylinders for the supply of LPG by the 
Company did not attract the levy and charge of sales tax under sales tax Act, 1990 and consequently 
the Company was not entitled to claim and adjust input tax amounting to Rs 5,644 thousand. The 
Company has filed an appeal with the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication. 
The management and legal advisor of the Company are confident that the matter will be decided 
in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements of 
CAPGAS.

13.2 Group’s share in contingencies of associated companies
2023 2022

 Rupees (‘000) 

a) Claims not acknowledged as debt including claims  in 
respect of delayed payment charges by crude oil suppliers 
and freight claims  1,340,000  1,417,500 

b) Claims raised on certain Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) 
in respect of delayed payment charges not acknowledged 
as debt by the OMCs  1,267,500  1,267,500 

c) Corporate guarantees and indemnity bonds issued by 
associated companies  1,055,105  826,264 

d) Guarantees issued by bank on behalf of associated 
companies  349,583  180,836 

e) Other contingencies based on financial statements of 
associated companies  142,238  166,622 

f ) An associated company has filed an Intra Court Appeal before Division Bench of Lahore High 
Court in respect of report of Inquiry Commission constituted to probe shortage of Petroleum 
Products in the Country. The Inquiry Commission held OGRA and OMCs responsible for 
Petroleum Products shortage crises in the month of June, 2020. The associated company is 
confident that it will be able to defend its stance effectively in the Lahore High Court.
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2023 2022
 Rupees (‘000) 

13.3 Capital expenditure commitments outstanding

POL

Share in joint operations  15,026,127  13,792,446 
Own fields  4,586,947  5,047,000 

Letter of credit issued by banks on behalf of POL  818,030  380,001 

NRL

Commitments outstanding for capital expenditure  231,518  166,330 

APL

Commitments outstanding for capital expenditure/ import
of petroleum products against letter of credit facility  914,776  802,804 

AITSL

Commitments outstanding for capital expenditure  -  205 

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets - note 14.1  5,466,582  6,272,321 
Capital work in progress - note 14.5  485,516  483,582 

 5,952,098  6,755,903 
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14.2 Cost and accumulated depreciation include:
Cost Accumulated depreciation

2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000)

Share in joint operations operated by the Group  1,575,514  1,540,222  1,393,432  1,366,181 

Assets not in possession of the Group

Share in joint operations operated by following

MOL Pakistan Oil and  
    Gas Company B.V. 12,527,472 12,119,964  9,999,069  9,150,286 
Ocean Pakistan Limited  76,679  75,842  65,146  63,140 
Oil and Gas Development 
    Company Limited  74,324  74,175  62,480  57,236 
Pakistan Petroleum Limited  2,325,458  2,312,037  1,607,319  1,412,957 

 15,003,933  14,582,018  11,734,014  10,683,619 
* Gas cylinders - in possession of distributors  908,077  805,305  837,153  742,686 

 17,487,524  16,927,545  13,964,599  12,792,486 

* Due to large number of distributors it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having 
possession of these assets, as required by 4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

14.3 The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Operating costs  1,615,192  1,488,825 
Administrative expenses  128  24 

 1,615,320  1,488,849 

14.4 Particulars of Group’s immovable property including location and area of land are as follows:

District Location  Total Area (In acres) 

Attock Khaur  297.59 
Attock Dhulian  746.17 
Attock Meyal  194.44 
Chakwal Balkassar  2.14 
Rawalpindi Rawalpindi  35.76 
Rawalpindi Rawalpindi - (Khaur- Rawalpindi pipe line)  63.35 

Rawalpindi - Adhi  4.77 
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14.5 Capital work in progress
Buildings Plant and 

machinery / 
Pipelines and 

pumps

Computers 
and software 
development 

Total

 Rupees (‘000)

Balance as at July 1, 2021  5,523  546,540  -  552,063 

Additions during the year  237  383,277  -  383,514 

Transfers during the year  -  (451,995)  -  (451,995)

Balance as at June 30, 2022  5,760  477,822  -  483,582 

Balance as at July 1, 2022  5,760  477,822  -  483,582 

Additions during the year  8,745  366,846  5,080  380,671 

Transfers during the year  (13,052)  (360,762)  (4,923)  (378,737)

Balance as at June 30, 2023  1,453  483,906  157  485,516 

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

14.6 Break up of capital work in progress at
June 30 is as follows:

POL
Own fields  37,676  6,102 

POL Gas  -  8,908 

Share in Joint Ventures operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and - TAL Block  956  21,013 
Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block  269  269 

Oil and Gas Development
Company Limited - Jhal Magsi D&P Lease  446,448  446,448 

CAPGAS  167  842 
 485,516  483,582 
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15. DEVELOPMENT AND DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

Development Decommissioning Total
Cost Cost

Rupees (‘000)

As at July 1, 2021

Cost  48,771,570  3,268,953  52,040,523 
Accumulated amortization  (35,848,686)  (2,519,162)  (38,367,848)
Net book value  12,922,884  749,791  13,672,675 

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value  12,922,884  749,791  13,672,675 
Additions  560,588  22,137  582,725 
Disposals
Cost  -  (20,476)  (20,476)
Accumulated amortization  -  20,476  20,476 

 -  -  - 
Revision due to change in estimates note 10.2.1  (147,697)  (189,694)  (337,391)
Amortization for the year - note 29  (3,534,368)  (174,515)  (3,708,883)
Closing net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 

As at July 1, 2022

Cost  49,184,461  3,080,920  52,265,381 
Accumulated amortization  (39,383,054)  (2,673,201)  (42,056,255)
Net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 

Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net book value  9,801,407  407,719  10,209,126 
Additions  1,201,829  132,309  1,334,138 
Disposals
Cost  -  (59,827)  (59,827)
Accumulated amortization  -  59,827  59,827 

 -  -  - 
Revision due to change in estimates note 10.2.1  (969,945)  (185,528)  (1,155,473)
Amortization for the year - note 29  (2,474,109)  (88,233)  (2,562,342)
Closing net book value  7,559,182  266,267  7,825,449 

As at June 30, 2023

Cost  49,416,345  2,967,874  52,384,219 
Accumulated amortization  (41,857,163)  (2,701,607)  (44,558,770)
Net book value  7,559,182  266,267  7,825,449 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

15.1 Net book value at year end represents:

Wholly owned fields  1,537,127  2,510,518 

Joint operations  6,288,322  7,698,608 

 7,825,449  10,209,126 

16. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Balance brought forward  3,019,833  512,223 

Additions during the year  3,765,548  2,507,610 
 6,785,381  3,019,833 

Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable cost charged to 
the profit or loss - note 30 (5,024,582)  - 

 1,760,799  3,019,833 

16.1 Break up of exploration and evaluation assets at
June 30 is as follows:

Own fields - Balkassar  1,740,737  - 

Share in joint operations operated by the POL
- DG Khan  -  2,979,667 
- Bhandak  20,062  12,072 

Share in joint operations operated by others

MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V. - Margala  -  28,094 

 1,760,799  3,019,833 

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Written down value  189,939  47,283 
Addition  -  203,921 
Less: Amortization for the year  43,154  61,265 

 146,785  189,939 

Useful lives (years)  1-5  1-5 

17.1 Intangible assets and addtitions represents amounts paid / present value of amount payable 
by CAPGAS to LPG producing companies against renewal fees of LPG supplies of 5 M.Tons/day. 
Amount payable have been discounted at  one year  KIBOR rate.



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 241

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

18. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES - 
EQUITY BASIS

Beginning of the year  14,445,000  13,337,592 
Share of (Loss) / profit of associated companies  (231,540)  3,577,350 
Share of other comprehensive income / (loss) of

associated companies  109,154  (12,305)
Reversal of impairmnet / (Impairment loss) against

investment in National Refinery Limited  2,164,811  (1,981,825)
Dividend received during the year  (618,552)  (475,812)

 15,868,873  14,445,000 

18.1 The Group’s interest in associates are as follows:

Quoted 

National Refinery Limited (NRL) - note 18.3
19,991,640 (2022: 19,991,640) fully paid
ordinary shares including 3,331,940
(2022: 3,331,940) bonus shares of Rs 10 each
Quoted market value as at June 30, 2023:
Rs 2,998,746 thousand (2022: Rs 5,049,289 thousand) 11,395,235 10,535,594 

Attock Petroleum Limited (APL) - note 18.3
 8,730,892 (2022: 6,984,714) fully paid
 ordinary shares including 5,362,492
 (2022: 3,616,314) bonus shares of Rs 10 each
 Quoted market value as at June 30, 2023:
 Rs 2,621,450 thousand (2022: Rs 2,242,258 thousand) 4,416,290 3,861,854 

Unquoted 

Attock Information Technology Services (Pvt) Limited (AITSL)
450,000 (2022: 450,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 57,348 47,550 

 15,868,873  14,445,000 
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18.3 All associated companies are incorporated in Pakistan. All associated companies have share capital 
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. Although the Group has less 
than 20 percent shareholding in APL and AITSL, these have been treated as associates since the Group 
has representation on their Board of Directors.

18.2 No investment was made in subsidiary and associated companies during the year.

18.3 The tables below provide summarised financial information for associated companies. The information 
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the audited financial statements of the relevant associated 
companies, for the year ended June 30, 2023 (2022: June 30, 2022) and not the reporting entity’s share 
of those amounts.

National Refinery Limited Attock Petroleum Limited

Attock Information 
Technology  

Services (Pvt) Limited

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000)

Summarised financial position

Current assets  78,788,494  69,590,902  87,219,524  78,375,032  529,425  413,769 

Non- current assets  32,991,424  33,115,406  20,734,741  17,976,013  77,910  86,994 

Current liabilities  76,445,155  61,869,415  54,099,015  51,685,732  24,447  18,925 

Non- current liabilities  736,084  1,017,535  8,635,345  7,346,158  9,406  6,334 

Net assets  34,598,679  39,819,358  45,219,905  37,319,155  573,482  475,504 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

Net assets as at July 1  39,819,762  31,587,791  37,319,155  22,720,934  475,504  407,416 

(Loss) / profit for the year  (4,463,086)  9,079,013  12,460,790  18,536,343  97,977  68,088 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)  441,906  (47,376)  (18,856)  (6,576)  -  - 

Dividends paid  (1,199,499)  (799,666)  (4,541,184)  (3,931,546)  -  - 
Net assets as at June 30  34,599,083  39,819,762  45,219,905  37,319,155  573,481  475,504 

Group’s percentage shareholding in the associate 25% 25% 7.0175% 7.0175% 10% 10%

Group’s share in net assets  8,649,771  9,954,941  3,173,307  2,618,872  57,348  47,550 

Excess of purchase consideration over carrying

amount at the date of acquisition  6,371,355  6,371,355  1,242,982  1,242,982  -  - 

Proportionate share in carrying value of net assets 

before impairment  15,021,126  16,326,296  4,416,290  3,861,854  57,348  47,550 

Impairment  (3,625,891)  (5,790,702)  -  -  -  - 

Carrying amount of investment  11,395,235  10,535,594  4,416,290  3,861,854  57,348  47,550 

Summarised statements of comprehensive income

Net revenue  298,805,449  251,875,728  473,938,329  370,074,929  184,189  161,769 

(Loss) / profit for the year  (4,463,086)  9,079,013  12,460,790  18,536,343  97,977  68,088 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)  441,906  (47,376)  (18,856)  (6,576)  -  - 

Total comprehensive (loss) / income  (4,021,180)  9,031,637  12,441,934  18,529,767  97,977  68,088 

Dividend received from associates  299,875  199,917  318,677  275,896  -  - 
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18.4 The carrying value of investment in National Refinery Limited at June 30, 2023 is net of impairment loss of Rs 
3,625,891 thousand (2022: Rs 5,790,702 thousand). The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the 
investment in National Refinery Limited based on higher of Value In Use (VIU) and fair value (level 1 in the fair 
value hirerarchy - qouted market price as at June 30, 2023). VIU is based on a valuation analysis carried out by 
an external investment advisor engaged by the Group. VIU has been assessed on discounted cash flow based 
valuation methodology which assumes gross profit margin of 5.52% (2022: 5.74%), a terminal growth rate of 
4.0% (2022: 4.0%) and weighted average cost of capital of 30.20% (2022: 17.51%).

18.5 Based on a valuation analysis carried out by the management, the recoverable amount of investment in Attock 
Petroleum Limited exceeds its carrying amount. The recoverable amount has been estimated based on a value 
in use calculation. These calculations have been made on discounted cash flow based valuation methodology 
which assumes an average gross profit margin of 4.92% (2022:5.83%), a terminal growth rate of 4.0% (2022: 4.0%) 
and a capital asset pricing model based discount rate of 23.10% (2022: 20.51%).

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

19. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES, CONSIDERED GOOD

Long term loans and advances to employees  62,127  57,715 

Less: Amount due within twelve months, shown
   under current loans and advances - note 23  26,140  28,125 

 35,987  29,590 

19.1 Loans and advances to employees are for general purpose and for house rent advance which are 
recoverable in up to 60 and 36 equal monthly installments respectively and are secured by an 
amount due to the employee against provident fund. These loans and advances are interest free. 
These do not include any amount receivable from the Chief Executive and Directors. These loans 
have not been discounted, as the impact is considered insignificant.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

20. STORES AND SPARES

Stores and spares - note 20.1 , 20.2 and 20.3  6,770,163  6,422,316 

Less: Provision for slow moving items - note 20.4  761,922  667,913 
 6,008,241  5,754,403 

20.1 Stores and spares include:

Share in joint operations operated by the Group  777,909  684,310 
Share in joint operations operated by others
  (assets not in possession of the Group)  1,663,332  1,687,046 

 2,441,241  2,371,356 

20.2 Stores and spares include stores and spares in transit of Rs 298,998 thousand (2022: Rs 760,285 
thousand).
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20.3 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yet 
distinguishable.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

20.4 Provision for slow moving items

Balance brought forward  667,913  639,575 
Provision for the year - charged to profit or loss  94,009  28,338 

 761,922  667,913 

21. STOCK IN TRADE 

Crude oil and other products - note 21.1  583,030  423,253 

21.1 These include Rs 132,805 thousand (2022: Rs 62,825 thousand) being the Group’s share in non-
operated joint operations.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

22. TRADE DEBTS - Considered good

Due from related parties - note 22.1  5,405,172  6,749,456 
Others  7,328,166  3,218,455 

 12,733,338  9,967,911 

22.1 Due from related parties

Associated companies
Attock Refinery Limited  5,375,353  6,726,161 
National Refinery Limited  280  307 
Attock Petroleum Limited  29,539  22,988 

 5,405,172  6,749,456 

Ageing analysis of trade debts receivable from related parties is given in note 39.3.1 to the financial 
statements.

The maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs 6,469,809 thousand (2022: Rs 6,749,456 thousand).
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

23. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans and advances - considered good

Employees - note 19  27,537  30,023 

Suppliers  402,631  387,618 
 430,168  417,641 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Deposits  65,520  75,532 

Short-term prepayments  175,641  172,404 

 241,161  247,936 

Interest income accrued  817,493  248,977 

Other receivables

Joint operating partners  450,493  313,169 

Due from related parties 

Parent company

The Attock Oil Company Limited  144,436  82,657 

Gratuity Fund - note 40  334,177  226,505 

General Staff Provident Fund  5,743  - 

Staff Provident Fund  1,336  - 

Sales tax refundable  5,387,036  3,141,897 

Other (net of loss allowance of

 Rs 310 thousand (2022: Rs 310 thousand))  534,885  18,829 

 6,858,106  3,783,057 

 8,346,928  4,697,611 

23.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs 492,976 thousand (2022: Rs 82,657 thousand) respectively.
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

23.2 The ageing analysis of receivable from related parties is as follows:

Upto 3 months  488,571  82,657 
3 to 6 months  -  - 
More than 6 months  -  - 

 488,571  82,657 

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in mutual funds classified as fair value
through profit or loss - note 24.1  1,112,163  - 

24.1 Investments classified as fair value through profit or loss

Balance at the beginning of the year  -  - 
Additions during the year  1,111,955  519,710 
Redemptions during the year  (2,710)  (520,627)

Fair Value adjustment  2,918  917 

Balance at the end of the year  1,112,163  - 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balance on

Short term deposits  62,969,880  66,046,782 
Interest/mark-up bearing saving accounts  7,349,266  1,822,642 
Current accounts  42,264  36,338 

 70,361,410  67,905,762 

Cash in hand  4,037  4,558 
 70,365,447  67,910,320 

Balance with banks include foreign currency balances of US $ 201,024 thousand (2022: US $ 169,602 
thousand). The balances in saving accounts and short term deposits earned interest / mark-up 
ranging from 2.69% to 21.75% (2022: 0.25% to 18%).

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

27. NET SALES

Crude oil  33,563,998  29,718,142 
Gas - note 27.1  18,851,106  14,311,957 
Less: Shrinkages/own use  3,010,217  2,042,897 

 15,840,889  12,269,060 
POLGAS/CAPGAS - Refill of cylinders  12,511,290  10,978,402 
Solvent oil  489,546  285,062 
Sulphur  29,089  - 

 62,434,812  53,250,666 

27.1 On August 28, 2015, the Company signed the Supplemental Agreement with the Government of 
Pakistan (the Government) for conversion of TAL Block Petroleum Concession Agreement (PCA) 
signed under the 1997 Petroleum Policy to Petroleum (Exploration & Production) Policy 2012 
(Petroleum Policy 2012). Price regimes prevailing in Petroleum Policy 2007, Petroleum Policy 
2009 and Petroleum Policy 2012 shall be applicable correlated with the spud date of wells in 
the respective policies starting from November 27, 2007 and for future exploratory efforts under 
the above mentioned block. The conversion package included Windfall levy on Natural gas only. 
Draft statements specifying sums aggregating US $ 34,213 thousand (Rs 3,393,389 thousand) till 
June 30, 2015 due to the Company in respect of Mamikhel, Maramzi & Makori East discoveries 
in TAL block were submitted to the Government on December 8, 2015. On October 9, 2017 Oil 
and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued gas price notifications of the subject arrears.

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) notified certain amendments 
in Petroleum Policy 2012 which also included addition of the following explanation of conversion 
package:
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“the conversion package shall include (i) price of Natural Gas for New Exploration Efforts (ii) windfall 
levy on Natural Gas (iii) EWT gas production, pricing and obligations (iv) Windfall levy on Oil & 
Condensate, only for PCAs converting from 1994 and 1997 Petroleum Policies and (v) Financial 
obligations relating to production bonus, social welfare and training”.

Under the said Notification, the Supplemental Agreements already executed for conversion from 
Petroleum policies of 1994 & 1997 shall be amended within 90 days, failing which the working 
interest owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. On January 3, 2018, Directorate 
General Petroleum Concessions (DGPC) required all exploration and production companies to 
submit supplemental agreements to incorporate the aforementioned amendments in Petroleum 
Concession Agreements (PCAs) signed under 1994 and 1997 policies, for execution within the 
stipulated time as specified above. 

Based on legal advice, the Company is of the view that already executed Supplemental Agreement 
cannot be changed unilaterally, the Supplemental Agreement was signed under the Conversion 
Package where gas price was enhanced and Windfall Levy on Oil / Condensate (WLO) was not 
applicable, the impugned SRO by giving retrospective effect amounts to taking away the vested 
rights already accrued in favour of the Company. The Government has no authority to give any 
law or policy a retrospective effect. The Company filed Constitutional Petition challenging the 
imposition of WLO on February 19, 2018 against Federation of Pakistan through Ministry of Energy 
(Petroleum Division), Islamabad. The Honourable Islamabad High Court after hearing the petitioner 
on February 20, 2018, directed the parties to maintain the status quo in this respect. After multiple 
hearings, last hearing was fixed on June 30, 2022, however the same could not be heard and next 
date of hearing is yet to be announced.

On prudent basis additional revenue (net of sales tax) on account of enhanced gas price incentive 
due to conversion from Petroleum Policy 1997 to Petroleum Policy 2012 since inception to June 30, 
2023 amounting to Rs 25,265,875 thousand will be accounted for upon resolution of this matter 
(including Rs 19,658,634 thousand related to period since inception to June 30, 2022). Additional 
revenue on account of enhanced gas price incentive of Rs 23,092,312 thousand and sales tax of 
Rs 3,928,026 thousand received from customer on the basis of notified prices has been shown as 
“Other liabilities” under “trade and other payables”. Sales tax of Rs 3,928,026 thousand (June 30, 
2022: Rs 3,237,101 thousand) received from customer on the basis of notified prices is declared 
in the monthly sales tax return as well as duly deposited with Federal Board of Revenue by the 
Company. The amount so deposited is shown within “sales tax refundable” in “advances, deposits, 
prepayments and other receivables”.
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

28. OPERATING COSTS

Operating cost   - Own fields  1,605,754  1,043,106 
                          - Share in joint operations - note 28.1  4,991,302  3,308,818 

Well work over  76,699  568,151 
POLGAS/CAPGAS -Cost of gas/LPG, carriage etc.  3,898,785  3,764,470 
Head office and insurance charges  338,083  171,751 
Pumping and transportation cost  106,003  77,060 
Depreciation and amortization  1,658,346  1,550,090 

 12,674,972  10,483,446 

Opening stock of crude oil and other products  423,253  298,357 
Closing stock of crude oil and other products  (583,030)  (423,253)

 12,515,195  10,358,550 

28.1 This includes Rs 652,229 thousand (2022: Rs nil) for stores and spares written off due to fire incident 
at Gas Processing Facility (GPF) store at TAL Block which is operated by MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Co. 
BV. POL has adequate insurance cover and related assessment by insurance surveyor is in progress.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

29. AMORTIZATION OF DEVELOPMENT
AND DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

Amoritzation charge for the year - note 15  2,562,342  3,708,883 

Revision in estimates of provision for decommissioning
costs in excess of related decommissioning costs
asset credited to statement of profit or loss - note 10.2.1  (1,387,057)  (390,146)

 1,175,285  3,318,737 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

30. EXPLORATION COSTS

Geological and geophysical cost
Own fields  289  151 
Share in joint operations operated by the POL

- DG Khan  2,208  141,311 
- Ikhlas  61,448  101,263 
- Pindori  183,817  - 
- North Dhurnal  32,617  21,498 
- Kirthar South  79,240  58,313 

Share in joint operations operated by others
MOL Pakistan Oil and - TAL Block  (68)  9,747 
  Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block  350,147  40,113 

- Margala North Block  (3,897)  (480)

Oil and Gas Development - Kotra  8,410  (1,767)
  Company Limited - Gurgalot  18,045  14,112 

- Chah Bali  11,176  - 

Pakistan Petroleum Limited - Hisal  477,138  31,871 
Mari Petroleum Company Limited - Taung  66,372  449,484 

- Nareli  408,053  11,422 
 1,694,995  877,038 

Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable
cost charged to profit or loss - note 15

Share in Joint operations operated by the POL
- DG Khan  4,353,065  - 

Share in Joint operations operated by others
MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V. - Margala Block  671,517  - 

 5,024,582  - 
 6,719,577  877,038 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

31. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Establishment charges  467,999  319,725 

Telephone and telex  1,412  1,242 

Medical expenses  16,615  15,238 

Printing, stationery and publications  8,686  6,806 

Insurance  9,500  7,922 

Travelling expenses  7,518  5,252 

Motor vehicle running expenses  23,122  22,395 

Rent, repairs and maintenance  115,131  79,036 

Auditor’s remuneration - note 31.1  18,511  11,468 

Legal and professional charges  16,504  7,190 

Stock exchange and CDC fee  5,999  5,420 

Computer support and maintenance charges  50,830  39,139 

Depreciation and Amortisation  128  24 

Donations - note 31.2  30,000  - 

Other expenses  9,972  7,485 
 781,927  528,342 

Less: Amount allocated to field expenses  433,318  294,038 

 348,609  234,304 

31.1 Auditor’s remuneration

Statutory audit - POL  2,542  2,311 
- Capgas  475  475 

Review of half yearly accounts, audit of consolidated 
accounts, staff funds, special certifications  4,530  2,154 

Tax services  10,158  6,000 

Out of pocket expenses  806  528 
 18,511  11,468 

31.2 This represents (2022: Rs nil) donation made to “Prime Minister’s - Flood Relief Fund” through Parent 
Company.
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

32. FINANCE COSTS - NET

Provision for decommissioning cost - note 10.2
    - Unwinding of discount  2,601,429  1,258,353 
    - Exchange loss / (gain)  7,010,980  4,282,697 
Banks’ commission and charges  7,066  7,517 
Unwinding of renewal fee liability  12,295  - 

 9,631,770  5,548,567 

33. OTHER CHARGES

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  1,840,261  1,559,928 
Workers’ Welfare Fund  655,486  469,881 

 2,495,747  2,029,809 

34. OTHER INCOME - NET

Income from financial assets - bank balances, 
short term deposits and treasury bills  10,707,789  3,196,672 

Income on investments at amortised cost  -  11,476 

Exchange gain on financial assets - net  14,780,417  7,326,728 

Dividend on Investments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss- note 34.1  16,764  29,240 

Fair value adjustment on investments classified as fair value   
through profit or loss  2,918  917 

Rental income  302,221  196,110 

Crude oil  transportation income  432,963  405,858 

Gas processing fee  81,973  21,249 

(Loss) / gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  (566)  5,821 

Gain on sale of stores and scrap  111,958  7,651 

Others  4,113  9,395 
 26,440,550  11,211,117 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

34.1 Dividend on Investments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund  3,450  - 
Pakistan Cash Management Fund  -  5,735 
NBP Money Market Fund  2,871  5,843 
Atlas Money Market Fund  3,176  - 
ABL Cash Fund  3,516  17,662 
HBL Cash Fund  3,751  - 

 16,764  29,240 

35. SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Share of profits of associated companies is net of taxation and based on the audited financial 
statements of the associated companies for the year ended June 30, 2023.

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

36. PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current
 - for the year  14,424,974  10,791,314 
 - for prior year  1,508  427 

 14,426,482  10,791,741 
Deferred - for the year  (684,809)  558,639 

 13,741,673  11,350,380 

36.1 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Accounting profit - before taxation  51,042,280  38,126,994 

* Tax at applicable tax rate of 40.40% (2022: 44.37% )  20,621,081  16,916,947 

Tax effect of depletion allowance, royalty payments
and amounts not taxable or taxed at lower rates (11,477,065)  (8,510,555)

Impact of super tax  3,269,023  2,386,544 
Tax effect of change in applicable rate in respect 

of deferred tax  900,897  432,063 
Others  427,737  125,381 
Tax charge for the year  13,741,673  11,350,380 

* The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of tax rates applicable to income from oil and gas 
concessions and income from other activities.
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37. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. Revenue 
from external customers for products of the Group is disclosed in note 27.

Revenue from two major customers of the Company constitutes 79% of the total revenue during 
the year ended June 30, 2023 (June 30, 2022: 75%).

38. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statement in respect of remuneration, including 
benefits and perquisites to the chief executive, directors and executives of the Group are given 
below:

Chief Executive Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022

Rupees (‘000) Rupees (‘000)

Managerial remuneration  9,514  8,373  188,500  138,474 

Bonus  9,071  5,708  150,274  93,343 

Housing, utility and conveyance  7,752  6,613  155,974  127,040 

Group’s contribution to pension,
gratuity and provident funds  -  -  71,506  52,421 

Leave passage  1,269  1,269  19,865  19,902 

Other benefits  7,344  4,685  93,303  54,270 

 34,950  26,648  679,422  485,450 

No. of persons, including those
who worked part of the year 1 1 74 57

In addition to remuneration, the Chief Executive and certain executives were provided with use of 
the Group’s cars and residential telephone facilities. The Group also provides medical facilities to its 
staff.

The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements in respect of fee to 
7 directors (2022: 7) was Rs 11,859 thousand (2022: Rs 9,139 thousand). This includes Rs 7,702 
thousand (2022: Rs 5,618 thousand) paid to 4 non-executive directors (2022: 4) of the Group.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

39.1 Financial assets and liabilities
Amortised 

cost
Investments 
classifed as 
fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total

Rupees (‘000)

June 30, 2023

Financial assets

Maturity up to one year
Trade debts  12,733,338  -  12,733,338 
Advances, deposits and other receivables  2,040,364  -  2,040,364 
Other financial assets  -  1,112,163  1,112,163 
Short term investments  35,055,731  -  35,055,731 
Cash and bank balances  70,365,447  -  70,365,447 

Maturity after one year
Long term loans and advances  35,987  -  35,987 

 120,230,867  1,112,163  121,343,030 

Financial liabilities
Maturity up to one year

Trade and other payables  32,328,360  -  32,328,360 
Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by 

authorized bank  9,433,214  -  9,433,214 
Unclaimed dividend  317,153  -  317,153 

Maturity after one year
Long term deposits  1,048,113  -  1,048,113 

 43,126,840  -  43,126,840 
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Amortised 
cost

Investments 
classifed as 
fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total

Rupees (‘000)

June 30, 2022

Financial assets

Maturity up to one year
Trade debts  9,967,911  -  9,967,911 
Advances, deposits and other receivables  769,187  -  769,187 
Cash and bank balances  67,910,320  -  67,910,320 

Maturity after one year
Long term loans and advances  29,590  -  29,590 

 78,677,008  -  78,677,008 

Financial liabilities
Maturity up to one year

Trade and other payables  26,035,039  -  26,035,039 
Unclaimed dividend  275,702  -  275,702 

Maturity after one year
Long term deposits  1,015,727  -  1,015,727 

 27,326,468  -  27,326,468 
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39.2 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of Group’s financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external 
credit ratings of counter parties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) 
and JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit 
ratings were not available have been assessed by reference to internal credit ratings determined 
based on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations.

2023 2022
Rating Rupees (‘000)

Trade debts

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+  5,414,966  6,733,199 
A1  7,064,767  3,164,485 
A2  173,262  1,984 

Counterparties without external credit rating
Existing customers  with no default in the past  80,343  68,243 

 12,733,338  9,967,911 

Advances, deposits and other receivables

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+  1,318,183  336,945 

Counterparties without external credit rating
Existing customers/ joint operating partners

with no default in the past  550,208  289,023 
Receivable from employees  27,537  30,023 
Receivable from parent company  144,436  82,657 
Others  -  30,539 

 2,040,364  769,187 

Other financial assets

Counterparties with external credit rating AM2+ / AA+s(f )  203,099  - 
AM1 / AA(f )  200,979  - 

AM1 / AA+(f )  708,085  - 
 1,112,163  - 

Short term investments

Counterparties without external credit rating
Treasury Bills issued by the Government of Pakistan  35,055,731  - 

 35,055,731  - 



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 259

2023 2022
Rating Rupees (‘000)

Bank balances

Counterparties with external credit rating A1+  70,361,228  67,903,426 
A1  182  2,336 

 70,361,410  67,905,762 
Long term loans and advances

Counterparties without external credit rating
Receivable from employees  35,987  29,590 

39.3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

39.3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market 
risk (including currency risk, interest rates risk and price risk). The Group’s overall risk management 
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

As of June 30, 2023, trade debts of Rs 4,870,997 thousand (2022: Rs 740,525 thousand) were past 
due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

Due from related parties

Up to 3 months  1,999  3,126 
3 to 6 months  1,476  9,708 
6 to 12 months  106,018  95,400 
Above 12 months  -  - 

 109,493  108,234 

Due from others

Up to 3 months  1,900,830  73,559 
3 to 6 months  2,289,838  69,459 
6 to 12 months  462,300  453,388 
Above 12 months  108,536  35,885 

 4,761,504  632,291 

 4,870,997  740,525 
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(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. At June 
30, 2023, the Group had financial assets of Rs 121,343,030 thousand (2022: Rs 78,677,008 thousand).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows which have been inflated using appropriate 
inflation rate, where applicable.

Less than 1 
year

Between 1 to 
5 years

Over 5 years

Rupees (‘000)

At June 30, 2023

Long term deposits  -  924,820  123,293 
Trade and other payables  32,328,360  -  - 
Unpaid dividend - awaiting remittance by

authorized bank  9,433,214  -  - 
Unclaimed dividend  317,153  -  - 

At June 30, 2022

Long term deposits  -  895,565  120,162 
Trade and other payables  26,035,039  -  - 
Unclaimed dividend  275,702  -  - 

 (c) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign 
currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure with respect to the US dollar. 
Currently foreign exchange risk is restricted to trade debts, bank balances, receivable from/ payable 
to joint operating partners and payable to suppliers.

Financial assets include Rs 59,591,245 thousand (2022: Rs 36,827,358 thousand) and financial liabilities 
include Rs 2,798,153 thousand (2022: Rs 139,193 thousand) which are subject to currency risk.
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The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2023 2022
Rupees per USD Rupees

Average rate  247.55  176.98 
Reporting date rate  286.60  205.75 

If exchange rates had been 10% lower / higher with all other variables held constant, profit after tax 
for the year would have been Rs 3,975,516 thousand (2022: Rs 2,568,172) lower / higher. 

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group has no significant long term interest bearing financial assets and liabilities whose fair 
value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Financial assets include Rs 106,487,040 thousand (2022: Rs 67,780,632 thousand) which are subject 
to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rates for financial assets have been indicated in respective 
notes.

If interest rates had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for 
the year would have been Rs 557,657 thousand (2022: Rs 369,607 thousand) higher / lower, mainly 
as a result of higher/lower interest income from these financial assets.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and 
classified on the statement of financial position as investments classified as fair value through profit 
or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies 
its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the investment policy of the 
Group.

Financial assets include Rs 1,112,163 thousand (2022: Rs nil) which are subject to price risk.

If prices had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for the 
year would have been Rs 6,784 thousand (2022: Rs nil) higher / lower, mainly as a result of exposure 
to fluctuation in prices of these financial assets.
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39.3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Group’s ability not only to continue 
as a going concern but also to meet its requirements for expansion and enhancement of its 
business, maximize return of shareholders and optimize benefits for other stakeholders to maintain 
an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, issue new shares through bonus or right issue or sell assets to reduce debts or raise 
debts, if required.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. 
The gearing ratio of the Group has always been low and the Group has mostly financed its projects 
and business expansions through equity financing. Further, the Group is not subject to externally 
imposed capital requirements.

39.3.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration paid 
or received, net of transaction costs as appropriate. The carrying values of other financial assets and 
liabilities of the Group not carried at fair value is a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The 
table below analyzes financial assets are measured at fair value, by valuation method. The different 
levels have been defined as follows:

 -  Level 1 : Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
 -  Level 2 : Observable inputs; and 
 -  Level 3 : Unobservable inputs

The Group held the following financial assets at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
June 30, 2023 Rupees (‘000)
Other financial assets
classified as fair value through 
profit or loss  1,112,163  -  -  1,112,163 

June 30, 2022

Other financial assets
classified as fair value through 
profit or loss  -  -  -  - 
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40. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The details of actuarial valuation of defined benefit funded plans carried out as at year end are as 
follows:

40.1 Funded gratuity and pension plan

POL - defined benefit funded plan

40.2 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

Present value of defined benefit obligations  1,959,276  1,769,240 
Fair value of plan assets  (2,158,896)  (1,826,152)

 (199,620)  (56,912)

Amounts in the statement of financial position:
Gratuity Fund - (Asset)  (334,177)  (226,505)
Management Staff Pension Fund Liability  134,557  169,593 
Net (Assets)  (199,620)  (56,912)

40.3 The amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
are as follows:

Current service cost  51,027  44,108 
Net interest cost  (14,859)  (10,505)

 36,168  33,603 

40.4 The amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income are as follows:

Remeasurement due to:
Change in financial assumptions  (21,638)  (1,369)
Experience adjustments  73,149  69,163 
Investment loss  (115,610)  (7,559)

 (64,099)  60,235 

40.5 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  1,769,240  1,618,605 
Current service cost  51,027  44,108 
Interest cost  221,304  155,997 
Remeasurement loss  51,511  67,794 
Benefits paid  (133,806)  (117,264)
Closing defined benefit obligation  1,959,276  1,769,240 
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

40.6 Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets  1,826,152  1,677,955 
Interest income  236,163  166,502 
Remeasurement gain  115,610  7,559 
Contribution by employer  114,777  91,399 
Benefits paid  (133,806)  (117,263)
Closing fair value of plan assets  2,158,896  1,826,152 

40.7 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets of defined pension and 
gratuity plans are as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000) %age Rupees (‘000) %age

Unquoted:
Government bonds / securities  2,146,677  99  4,992  - 
Cash and cash equivalents  12,219  1  1,821,160  100 

 2,158,896  100  1,826,152  100 

The funds have no investment in the Company’s own securities.

40.8 Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:

2023 2022
 %  % 

Discount rate 15.25 13
Expected rate of salary increase 13.75 12
Expected rate of pension increase 9 6.75

40.9 Mortality was assumed to be 70% of the EFU(61-66) Table at valuations on both dates, June 30, 2022 
and 2023.

40.10 The pension and gratuity plans are defined benefits final salary plans and both plans are invested 
through approved trust funds. The trustees of the funds are responsible for plan administration and 
investment. The Company appoints the trustees who are employees of the Company.

The plans expose the Company to various actuarial risks: investment risk and salary risk from both 
plans and longevity risk from the pension plan.

The asset ceiling does not apply. The Company can use the surplus in the pension and gratuity fund 
to reduce its future contributions or can apply to the Commissioner of Income Tax for a refund.
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40.11 Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The 
following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions 
by one percent.

 Defined benefit obligation 
 1 percent 
increase 

 1 percent 
decrease 

Rupees (‘000)

Discount rate  (156,362)  183,857 
Salary increase  64,615  (58,868)
Pension increase  119,015  (105,080)

If life expectancy increases by 1 year, the obligation increases by Rs 58,089 thousand.

The impact of changes in financial assumptions has been determined by revaluation of the 
obligations on different rates. The impact of increase in longevity has been calculated on the 
aggregate for each class of employees.

40.12 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is given below:

Plan Duration Pension Gratuity
Years

June 30, 2023 11.7 7.9
June 30, 2022 11.4 8

40.13 The Company contributes to the pension and gratuity funds on the advice of the fund’s actuary. The 
contributions are equal to the current service cost with adjustment for any deficit.

Projected payments Pension Gratuity
Rupees (‘000)

Contributions FY 2024  66,068  - 

Benefit payments:
FY 2024  114,173  30,979 
FY 2025  125,221  49,821 
FY 2026  135,341  37,840 
FY 2027  150,322  63,534 
FY 2028  163,091  55,674 
FY 2029-33  1,179,833  575,161 
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CAPGAS - unfunded defined benefit plan

40.14 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

Present value of defined benefit obligation  10,344  7,840 

40.15 The amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss  are as 
follows:

Current service cost  541  467 
Interest cost  1,019  671 

 1,560  1,138 

40.16 The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are as 
follows:

Remeasurement loss on staff retirement benefit plan  944  805 

40.17 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as 
follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  7,840  7,862 
Current service cost  541  467 
Interest cost  1,019  671 
Benefits paid  -  (1,965)
Remeasurement  944  805 
Closing defined benefit obligation  10,344  7,840 

40.18 Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:
2023 2022

 %  % 

Discount rate 15.25  13.00 
Expected rate of salary increase 15.25  13.00 

40.19 Mortality was assumed to be 70% of the EFU (61-66) Table at valuations on both dates, June 30, 2023 
and 2022.

40.20 Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The 
following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period would have increased/ (decreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions 
by one percent.
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 Defined benefit obligation 
 1 percent 
increase 

 1 percent 
decrease 

Rupees (‘000)

Discount rate  (663)  750 
Salary increase  743  (669)

The impact of changes in financial assumptions has been determined by revaluation of the 
obligation on different rates.

40.21 The weighted average number of the defined benefit obligation is given below:

Plan Duration Years

June 30, 2023 8.0
June 30, 2022 8.5

40.22 Projected payments are as follows:

Rupees (‘000)

FY 2024  1,966 
FY 2025  591 
FY 2026  571 
FY 2027  694 
FY 2028  816 
FY 2029-33  17,547 

2023 2022
Note Rupees (‘000)

41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 26  70,365,447  67,910,320 
Short term investments 25  35,055,731  - 

 105,421,178  67,910,320 

42. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY

42.1 CAPGAS is only subsidiary of POL as at June 30, 2023. CAPGAS has share capital consisting solely of 
ordinary shares that are held directly by POL, and the proportion of ownership interest held equals 
the voting right held by POL. POL holds 51% (2022: 51%) interest in CAPGAS. There are no significant 
restrictions on Company’s ability to use assets, or settle liabilities of CAPGAS.

42.2 Non-controlling interest

Following is the summarised financial information of CAPGAS that has 49% (2022: 49%) ownership 
interest held by non-controlling interests. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company 
eliminations:
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 2023  2022 
Rupees (‘000)

Summarised financial position

Current assets  313,489  276,938 
Non-current assets  199,395  254,508 
Current liabilities  103,075  89,559 
Non-current liabilities  158,942  207,248 
Net assets  250,867  234,639 

Accumulated NCI  122,926  114,974 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Net revenue  1,482,530  1,356,987 

Profit for the year  65,498  27,804 
Other comprehensive (loss)  (670)  (572)
Total comprehensive income for the year  64,828  27,232 

Profit attributable to NCI  32,094  13,624 

Total comprehensive income attributable to NCI  31,766  13,344 

Dividend paid to NCI  23,815  20,394 

Summarised statement of cash flows 

Cash flow from operating activities  99,436  61,307 
Cash flow from investing activities  31,786  (83,771)
Cash flow from financing activities  (48,600)  (41,622)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent  82,622  (64,086)

43. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF POL - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of POL (in thousand rupees)  37,268,512  26,762,990 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year (in thousand shares)  283,855  283,855 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)  131.29  94.28 
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44. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

44.1 Aggregate transactions with related parties, other than remuneration to the chief executive, directors and 
executive of the Group under their terms of employment, were as follows:

2023 2022
Basis of Relationship Rupees (‘000)

Parent company - The Attock Oil Company Limited Holding company
Dividend paid  1,052,458  7,489,766 
Rental expense  83,596  58,783 
Purchase of LPG  126,216  134,942 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by AOC 
   on behalf of POL

 2,098  4,045 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by POL 
   on behalf of AOC

 376  - 

Associated companies

Attock Refinery Limited Common directorship
Sale of crude oil and gas  32,990,224  28,278,660 
Crude oil and gas transmission charges  4,798  4,201 
Rental income  2,955  2,908 
Rental expense  1,509  1,466 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 
   POL on behalf of ARL

 1,120  1,012 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
   ARL on behalf of POL  18,519  26,665 
Purchase of fuel  34,507  21,473 
Purchase of LPG  278,069  209,391 

National Refinery Limited 25% share holding  & 
common directorship Sale of crude oil  -  18,603 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
   POL on behalf of NRL  69  6 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 
   NRL on behalf of POL  284  615 
Rental expense  3,891  3,102 
Purchase of LPG  207,221  241,019 
Dividend received  299,875  199,916 

Attock Petroleum Limited 7.0175% share 
holding  & common 

directorship
Purchase of fuel and lubricants  1,247,821  993,916 
Sale of solvent oil  489,546  285,063 
Rental income  1,239  1,186 
Purchase of services  795  613 
Purchase of goods  1,784  1,753 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred
   by POL on behalf of APL  39,354  31,354 
Dividend received  318,677  275,896 
Profit Disbursement  -  1,074 
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2023 2022
Basis of Relationship Rupees (‘000)

Attock Information Technology (Private) Limited 10% share holding &  
Common directorshipPurchase of services  71,822  64,363 

Attock Hospital (Private) Limited Common directorship
Purchase of medical services  19,376  17,322 

Attock Leisure and management Associates Common directorship
(Private) Limited

Purchase of services  -  8,480 

Attock Energy (Private) Limited Common directorship
Purchase of services  -  2,091 

Other associated entities
Dividend paid  15,062  9,259 

Other related parties

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors Honorarium & Key 
Management personnel including benefits & perquisites  156,728  163,654 

Dividend paid to key management personnel  232,706  164,568 

Contribution to staff retirement benefits plans
Management Staff Pension Fund and Gratuity Fund  114,777  91,399 
Approved Contributory Provident Funds  39,026  31,873 

Contribution to Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  1,840,261  1,559,617 

44.2 Associated Companies incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Group had entered 
into transaction or had agreements are as follows:

i) Name of undertaking The Attock Oil Company Limited
ii) Country of Incorporation United Kingdom

iii) Basis of association Parent Company
iv) Aggregate %age of shareholding 52.77%

45. CONTRIBUTORY PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.
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2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

46. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation  51,042,280  38,126,994 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation  1,615,320  1,488,849 
Dry and abandoned wells and irrecoverable cost  5,024,582  - 
Fair value adjustment on investments

classified as fair value through profit or loss  (2,918)  (917)
Amortization of other intangible assets  43,154  61,265 
Amortization of development and

decommissioning costs  1,175,285  3,318,737 
Finance costs  9,624,704  5,541,050 
Exchange gain on financial assets (14,780,417)  (7,326,728)
Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment  566  (5,821)
Share of loss / (profit) of associated companies  231,540  (3,577,350)
(Reversal of impairment) / Impairment on investment 

in associated company  (2,164,811)  1,981,825 
Income from financial assets - bank balances

short term deposits and treasury bills (10,707,789)  (3,196,672)
Income on investments at amortised cost  -  (11,476)
Dividend on investments classified as fair value 

through profit or loss  (16,764)  (29,240)
Provision for slow moving stores and spares  94,009  28,338 
Provision for staff compensated absences  409  (759)
Provision for un-funded gratuity plan - CAPGAS  2,504  (22)
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on staff retirement benefit plans  63,155  (61,040)

Cash flows before working capital changes  41,244,809  36,337,033 

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes:

(Increase) in stores and spares  (347,847)  (1,123,245)
(Increase) in stock in trade  (159,777)  (124,896)
(Increase) in trade debts  (2,765,427)  (2,628,845)
(Increase) in advances, deposits,

prepayments and other receivables  (3,080,801)  (609,014)
Increase in trade and other payables  6,791,932  5,369,511 

 438,080  883,511 

Cash flows generated from operations  41,682,889  37,220,544 
(Increase) / decrease in long term loans and advances  (6,397)  7,556 
Increase in long term deposits  32,386  26,968 
Taxes paid  (12,210,353)  (9,187,784)
Actual decommissioning cost paid  (234,963)  (101,446)

Net cash generated from operating activities  29,263,562  27,965,838 
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47. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Description Explanation

i) Loans and advances Non-interest bearing
ii) Deposits Non-interest bearing

iii) Segment revenue Disclosed in note 37

2023 2022
Rupees (‘000)

iv) Bank Balances

Placed under interest arrangements  61,962,950  67,866,904 
Placed under Shariah permissible arrangements  8,356,196  2,520 

 70,319,146  67,869,424 

v) Income on bank deposits

Placed under interest arrangements  9,362,759  3,208,041 
Placed under Shariah permissible arrangements  1,321,139  107 

 10,683,898  3,208,148 

vi) Dividend income Disclosed in note 34.1 

vii) All sources of other income Disclosed in note 34

viii) Exchange gain Earned from actual currency

ix) Relationship with banks having 
Islamic windows

Following is the list of banks with which the Company has 
a relationship with Islamic window of operations:

1. Meezan Bank Limited 
2. Albaraka Islamic Investment bank 
3. Bank Islami Limited 
4. Faysal Bank Limited
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48 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF ALL OTHER BUSINESS UNITS INCLUDING INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATIONS

Geographical location and addresses of all other business units of the Company including interest in joint operations are as follows:

Exploration licenses / Leases Location and address  Working interest 
District(s) Province(s) 2023 2022

Operated by the Company

Ikhlas Petroleum Concession (3372-18) Attock  Punjab  80.00  80.00 
Kirthar South Petroleum Concession (2567-7) Dadu, Jamshoro, Lasbela, Thatta  Sindh and Balochistan  85.00  85.00 
Khaur D&Production Lease (153/PAK/2002) Attock  Punjab  100.00  100.00 
Minwal D&Production Lease (123/PAK/98) Chakwal  Punjab  82.50  82.50 
Pariwali D&Production Lease (119/PAK/97) Attock  Punjab  82.50  82.50 
Pindori D&Production Lease (105/PAK/96) Rawalpindi  Punjab  35.00  35.00 
Turkwal D&Production Lease (133/PAK/99) Chakwal and Rawalpindi  Punjab  67.37  67.37 
D.G. Khan Petroleum Concession (2969-10) BarKhan, DG Khan, Rajanpur  Punjab and Balochistan  70.00  70.00 
North Dhurnal (3372-27) Attock  Punjab  60.00  60.00 
Non-operated

Operated by MOL Pakistan Oil and Gas Company B.V.

Margala Petroleum Concession (Block 3372-20) Rawalpindi, Islamabad, Haripur, 
Abbottabad

Punjab and Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa (KPK)

 30.00  30.00 

Margala North Petroleum Concession (Block 3372-21) Rawalpindi, Islamabad, Haripur, 
Abbottabad, Attock

Punjab and KPK  30.00  30.00 

TAL Petroleum Concession (Block 3370-3) Kohat, Karak, Bannu KPK  *25.00 
Maramzai Development and Production lease Kohat, Hangu KPK
Manzalai D&Production lease (175/PAK/2007) Karak KPK
Makori  D&Production lease (184/PAK/2012) Karak KPK
Makori East D&Production lease (205/PAK/2013) Karak KPK
Mamikhel Development and Production lease Kohat KPK
Tolanj West D&P lease 234/PAK/2017 Kohat KPK
Tolanj  D&P lease 233/PAK/2017 Kohat KPK
Mardankhel D&P lease 233/PAK/2017 Hangu KPK
Mamikhel South D& P lease 272/PAK/2021 Kohat KPK

Operated by Oil and Gas Company Limited
Chaknaurang Mining Lease (125/PAK/98) Chakwal Punjab  15.00  15.00 
Gurgalot Petroleum Concession Block (3371-5) Kohat, Attock Punjab and KPK  20.00  20.00 
Jhal Magsi Development and Production Lease (2867-4) Jhalmagsi Balochistan  24.00  24.00 
Chah Bali Exploration License (2996-2) Mach, Mastung and Kalat Balochistan  30.00  - 

Operated by Ocean Pakistan Limited

Bhangali D&P Lease (65/PAK/90) Rawalpindi Punjab  7.00  7.00 
Dhurnal Mining Lease (59/PAKISTAN) Attock Punjab  5.00  5.00 
Ratana D&P Lease (94/PAK/94) Attock Punjab 4.55 4.55

Operated by Pakistan Petroleum Limited

Adhi Mining Lease (72/PAKISTAN) Rawalpindi, Chakwal Punjab  11.00  11.00 
Hisal Petroleum Concession (3372-23) Rawalpindi, Chakwal, Attock Punjab  25.00  25.00 

Operated by Mari Petroleum Company Limited 

Taung  Petroleum Concession (2567-12) Jamshoro Sindh  40.00  40.00 
Nareli (3068-9) Loralai, Sibi, Harnai Balochistan  32.00  32.00 

*Pre-commerciality interest Pre-commerciality interest
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Notes to and Forming Part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

49. GENERAL 

49.1 Non-adjusting event after the consolidated statement of financial position date

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 29, 2023 has proposed a final dividend for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 @ Rs 60 per share, amounting to Rs 17,031,306 thousand for approval of 
the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 09, 2023.

49.2 Capacity

POL

Following is production from the Company’s fields including proportionate share from all operated 
and non-operated joint ventures:

Product Unit 2023 2022

Crude oil US Barrels  1,829,336  2,017,581 
Gas Million Cubic Feet  23,726  25,825 
LPG Metric Tonnes  53,177  55,418 
Sulphur Metric Tonnes  609  475 
Solvent Oil US Barrels  18,334  18,605 

Considering the nature of the Company’s business, information regarding installed capacity has no 
relevance.

CAPGAS

Considering the nature of the Company’s business, information regarding capacity has no relevance.

2023 2022

49.3 Number of employees

Total number of employees as at June 30 687 712
Total number of employees at fields as at June 30 495 511
Average number of employees during the year 691 718
Average number of employees at fields during the year 494 514

49.4 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

49.5 Date of authorization

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the 
Company on August 29, 2023.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chief Executive

Abdus Sattar
Director

Khalid Nafees
Chief Financial Officer
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S.No. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

1 2189 1 100 86,397
2 1929 101 500 545,836
3 998 501 1000 791,512
4 1911 1001 5000 4,589,403
5 498 5001 10000 3,658,551
6 218 10001 15000 2,703,495
7 117 15001 20000 2,076,955
8 76 20001 25000 1,756,186
9 48 25001 30000 1,342,358

10 38 30001 35000 1,242,388
11 37 35001 40000 1,404,537
12 25 40001 45000 1,068,852
13 32 45001 50000 1,547,073
14 16 50001 55000 847,648
15 16 55001 60000 937,404
16 17 60001 65000 1,058,413
17 11 65001 70000 745,189
18 7 70001 75000 513,487
19 13 75001 80000 1,004,771
20 5 80001 85000 418,992
21 6 85001 90000 531,397
22 3 90001 95000 277,304
23 10 95001 100000 987,390
24 8 100001 105000 822,041
25 3 105001 110000 321,079
26 4 110001 115000 451,741
27 8 115001 120000 943,695
28 1 120001 125000 120,960
29 1 125001 130000 128,800
30 1 130001 135000 130,380
31 3 135001 140000 412,569
32 1 140001 145000 145,000
33 5 145001 150000 739,395
34 2 150001 155000 307,251
35 2 155001 160000 313,491
36 1 165001 170000 168,458
37 2 170001 175000 343,094
38 3 175001 180000 535,255
39 1 180001 185000 182,261
40 2 185001 190000 375,591
41 1 190001 195000 192,000
42 6 195001 200000 1,186,801
43 3 200001 205000 608,418
44 1 205001 210000 205,146

Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2023
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S.No. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

45 3 210001 215000 636,302
46 1 215001 220000 216,000
47 1 220001 225000 220,700
48 1 225001 230000 226,423
49 3 235001 240000 714,576
50 1 240001 245000 245,000
51 2 245001 250000 492,062
52 1 250001 255000 252,816
53 4 255001 260000 1,031,385
54 1 265001 270000 265,152
55 1 275001 280000 275,382
56 1 280001 285000 284,617
57 1 285001 290000 289,213
58 1 290001 295000 291,978
59 3 295001 300000 896,800
60 1 300001 305000 300,188
61 1 310001 315000 310,280
62 1 320001 325000 321,484
63 1 330001 335000 332,174
64 1 340001 345000 343,200
65 1 350001 355000 350,305
66 2 355001 360000 716,344
67 1 365001 370000 366,500
68 1 370001 375000 372,689
69 1 385001 390000 385,827
70 3 390001 395000 1,181,699
71 1 400001 405000 403,600
72 1 410001 415000 411,147
73 1 425001 430000 427,267
74 2 430001 435000 865,688
75 1 445001 450000 448,930
76 1 450001 455000 453,751
77 2 455001 460000 918,675
78 1 480001 485000 481,160
79 1 490001 495000 494,531
80 1 495001 500000 500,000
81 1 505001 510000 508,586
82 1 520001 525000 525,000
83 2 560001 565000 1,125,298
84 4 595001 600000 2,400,000
85 1 600001 605000 601,426
86 1 605001 610000 608,756
87 1 610001 615000 612,000
88 1 615001 620000 619,076
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S.No. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

89 1 655001 660000 656,885
90 1 675001 680000 678,500
91 1 690001 695000 695,000
92 1 720001 725000 725,000
93 1 745001 750000 747,868
94 1 765001 770000 768,702
95 1 770001 775000 774,500
96 1 785001 790000 785,314
97 1 800001 805000 802,787
98 2 810001 815000 1,625,450
99 1 940001 945000 943,530

100 1 950001 955000 954,045
101 1 1050001 1055000 1,052,796
102 3 1055001 1060000 3,165,295
103 1 1225001 1230000 1,230,000
104 1 1725001 1730000 1,729,461
105 1 1855001 1860000 1,858,965
106 1 1910001 1915000 1,913,137
107 1 1980001 1985000 1,982,591
108 1 2920001 2925000 2,922,677
109 1 3155001 3160000 3,155,810
110 1 4945001 4950000 4,950,000
111 1 6010001 6015000 6,011,430
112 1 6095001 6100000 6,100,000
113 1 6445001 6450000 6,447,093
114 1 18950001 18955000 18,952,559
115 1 149730001 149735000 149,732,758

8,372 283,855,104

Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2023
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Categories of Shareholders
As at June 30, 2023

S.No. Categories of Shareholders No. of 
Shareholders

Shares Held Percentage 
(%)

1 Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
 Mr. Laith G. Pharaon  1  200 *  0.00 
 Mr. Wael G. Pharaon  1  200 *  0.00 
 Mr. Shuaib A. Malik (Chairman & Chief Executive)  3  3,191,150  1.12 
 Mr. Abdus Sattar  1  200 *  0.00 
 Mr. Agha Sher Shah  1  1  0.00 
 Mr. Sajid Nawaz  1  200 *  0.00 
 Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan  1  500  0.00 
 Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz  1  145,000  0.05 
 Mrs. Mehnaz Babar 
(Spouse of Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz)  1  76,550  0.03 

2 Associated Companies, undertakings and 
related parties  24  150,018,935  52.85 

3 NIT & ICP  2  357,782  0.13 

4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, 
Non Banking Financial Institutions.  11  9,919,360  3.49 

5 Insurance Companies  19  25,771,574  9.08 

6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds  71  5,860,411  2.06 

7 General Public
a. Local  7,489  58,304,134  20.54 
b. Foreign  378  738,011  0.26 

8 Foreign Companies  47  12,919,623  4.55 

9 Others  320  16,551,273  5.83 

Totals  8,372  283,855,104  100.00 

* 200 shares shown against the name of each Director are held in trust.

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage 

The Attock Oil Company Limited  149,794,518  52.77 
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Key Shareholding and Shares Traded
As at June 30, 2023

S.No. Categories of Shareholders No. of 
Shareholders

Shares Held Percentage 
(%)

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

1  Mr. Laith G. Pharaon 1 200 * 0.00
2  Mr. Wael G. Pharaon 1 200 * 0.00
3  Mr. Shuaib A. Malik (Chairman & Chief Executive) 3  3,191,150 1.12
4  Mr. Abdus Sattar 1 200 * 0.00
5  Mr. Agha Sher Shah 1  1 0.00
6  Mr. Sajid Nawaz 1 200 * 0.00
7  Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 1  500 0.00
8  Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 1  145,000 0.05
9 Mrs. Mehnaz Babar (Spouse of Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz) 1  76,550 0.03

Associated Companies, undertakings and related 
parties

1 The Attock Oil Company Limited 2  149,794,518 52.77
2 Trustees of ARL General Staff Provident Fund 1  37,000 0.01
3 Trustees of ARL Staff Provident Fund 1  57,000 0.02
4 Trustees of ARL Management Staff Pension Fund 1  61,480 0.02
5 Trustees of NRL Officers Provident Fund 1  37,560 0.01
6 Trustee National Refinery Ltd. Management Staff 

Pension Fund
1  22,135 0.01

Executives 17  9,242 0.00

Public sector companies and corporations 49  13,277,405 4.68

Banks, Development Finance Institution, Non Banking 
Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, 
Modarabas and Pension Funds

421  58,102,618 20.47

Others 7,867  59,042,145 20.80

8,372  283,855,104 100.00

* 200 shares shown against the name of each Director are held in trust.

S.No. Categories No. of Shares 
Traded

No trade has been made in Shares of the Company by Associated Company, Substantial 
shareholder, Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Executives and their spouses 
and minor children except for shares mentioned below:

1 Dr. Ehsan-ul-Haq Danish Executive  300 
2 Mr. Shakir Ali Executive  1,272 
3 Mr. Ahsan Akbar Abbasi Executive  (1)
4 Mr. Rashid Hussain Executive  200 
5 Mr. Omar Hafeez Executive  520 
6 Mr. Shuaib A. Malik Chief Executive  10,000 
7 Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz Alternate Director  56,550 



ANNUAL  
REPORT2023 281

Notice of  
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that Seventy Second (72nd) Annual General Meeting (being the 94th General Meeting) 
of the Company will be held on Monday, October 09, 2023 at 10:30 hours at 4th Floor, Attock House, Morgah, 
Rawalpindi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

i. To receive, consider and approve the audited financial statements of the Company together with Directors’ 
and Auditors’ Reports for the year ended June 30, 2023;

ii. To approve final cash dividend of Rs. 60 per share i.e. 600% as recommended by the Board of Directors. It is 
in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 20 per share i.e. 200% already paid to the shareholders, thus 
making a total cash dividend of Rs. 80 per share i.e. 800% for the year ended June 30, 2023;

iii. To appoint auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024 and fix their remuneration. The 
present auditors Messer A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer 
themselves for reappointment; and

iv. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

i. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 
2023 has allowed the listed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet and profit and loss account, 
auditor’s report and directors’ report, etc. (“annual audited financial statements”) to its members through 
QR enabled code and weblink, subject to approval of shareholders in AGM. Therefore, the shareholders 
are requested to consider, and if deemed fit, approve the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“Resolved that Pakistan Oilfields Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby authorized to circulate its annual 
audited financial statements, to the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in 
accordance with S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 issued by the SECP, and that the practice of circulation of the annual 
financial statements through CD /DVD/USB may be discontinued.

Further resolved that the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, 
take or cause to be taken any action as may be necessary, incidental or consequential to give effect to this 
resolution.” 

ii. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

                      For & on behalf of the board

Registered Office:
POL House, 
Morgah, Rawalpindi.       Khalid Nafees
September 18, 2023. Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be 
accepted for registration from October 3, 2023 to October 9, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers 
received in order at the Registered Office / Share Registrar of the Company by the close of business 
on October 2, 2023 will be treated in time for the purpose of payment of the final cash dividend, if 
approved by the shareholders.

2. PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

A member entitled to participate and vote at this meeting is also entitled to appoint another proxy to 
participate and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered 
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

For appointing proxies

a.  In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders whose registration details are 
uploaded as per regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements. The 
proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall 
be mentioned on the proxy form. Copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the 
proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

b.  In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen 
signature of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall 
be submitted (unless it has not been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. 

3. CONFIRMATION OF “FILER” STATUS FOR INCOME TAX WITHHOLDING ON CASH DIVIDEND

For cash dividend, the rates of deduction of income tax, under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 are as follows:

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15%

b. Rate of tax deduction for non filer of income tax returns 30%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will 
be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, 
in writing to the Company / Share Registrar. If no notification is received, each joint holder shall be 
assumed to have an equal number of shares. 

The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the 
Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time.
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4. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX / ZAKAT:

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced 
rate are requested to submit a valid tax withholding exemption certificate or necessary documentary 
evidence for this purpose. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a 
valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

CDC account holders are requested to submit their declaration for non-deduction of zakat to the relevant 
member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

5. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH BANK ACCOUNT OF THE SHAREHOLDER:

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders are MANDATORILY 
required to provide their International Bank Account Number (IBAN) to receive their cash dividend 
directly in their bank accounts instead of dividend warrants. In this regard and in pursuance of the 
directives of the SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, shareholders are requested 
to submit their written request (if not already provided) to the Company’s registered address, giving 
particulars of their bank account. In the absence of shareholder’s valid bank account detail by October 
03, 2023, the Company will be constrained to withhold dividend of such members.

CDC account holders are requested to submit their mandate instruction to the relevant member stock 
exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

6. SUBMISSION OF COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD (CNIC) FOR PAYMENT OF FINAL CASH 
DIVIDEND 2022-23

Pursuant to the directives of SECP, CNIC number of shareholders is MANDATORILY required for payment 
of dividend. Shareholders are therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC (if not already 
provided) to the Company on its registered address / Share Registrar. In the absence of a member’s valid 
CNIC, the Company will be constrained to withhold payment of cash dividend to such members.

CDC account holders are requested to submit attested copy of their CNIC to the relevant member stock 
exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNDELIVERED SHARE CERTIFICATES

The Company has previously discharged its responsibility under Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017 
whereby the Company approached the shareholders to claim their unclaimed dividends and undelivered 
share certificates in accordance with the law.

Shareholders, whose dividends still remain unclaimed and/or undelivered share certificates are available 
with the Company, are hereby once again requested to approach the Company to claim their outstanding 
dividend amounts and/or undelivered share certificates.
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8. DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace 
its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by 
SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 2017. 
Further SECP vide its letter dated March 26, 2021 has advised to comply with Section 72 of the Act and 
encourage shareholders to convert their shares in book-entry form. 

In light of above, shareholders holding physical share certificates are requested to deposit their shares 
in Central Depository by opening CDC sub-accounts with any of the brokers or Investor Accounts 
maintained directly with CDC to convert their physical shares into scripless form. This will facilitate the 
shareholders to streamline their information in member’s register enabling the Company to effectively 
communicate with the shareholders and timely disburse any entitlements. Further, shares held shall 
remain secure and maintaining shares in scripless form allows for swift sale/purchase.

9. CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO SHAREHOLDERS THROUGH 
EMAIL/CD/USB/DVD OR ANY OTHER MEDIA:

SECP through SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 and SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 has 
allowed the companies to circulate its Annual Audited Financial Statements to its members through 
Email/CD/DVD/USB/ or any other Electronic Media at their registered Addresses.

The Company circulates its Annual Audited Financial Statements to its members through CD. However, 
shareholders who wish to receive the hard copy of Financial Statements shall have to fill the standard 
request form (available on the Company’s website www.pakoil.com.pk) and send it to the Company’s 
registered address.

In addition to above, the Company also placed its Financial Statements on its website www.pakoil.com.pk

10. CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY:

Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017,if the Company receives a request from member(s) 
holding an aggregate ten percent (10%) or more shareholding residing at another city, such member(s) 
may request a video conferencing facility for the purposes of participating in the meeting at such a 
location by sending a request to the Company at least 7 (seven) days prior to the date of meeting, the 
Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to the availability of such facility in 
that city. 

11. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON THE COMPANY’S WEBSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 have been made 
available on the Company’s website www.pakoil.com.pk at least 21 days before the date of AGM.
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12. CHANGE IN ADDRESS:

The members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses.

13. STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017:

To circulate the Annual Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Accounts, Auditor’s Report and Directors’ Report, 
etc. (“Annual Audited Financial Statements”) to its members through QR enabled code and weblink:

The approval of the shareholder to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements to its members 
through QR enabled code and weblink as required u/section 223 (7) of Companies Act and subsequently 
advised by SECP through its Notification S.R.O. 389 (1)/ 2023 dated March 21, 2023 is to be obtained.
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Dated this                      day of                   2023            Signature of Proxy
For beneficial owners as per CDC list

Witnesses:
1.  Signature  2.  Signature 
 Name   Name 
 Address   Address 
 CNIC  CNIC
 or  Passport  No.   or  Passport  No. 

I/We _______________________________________________ of ________________________________ 

being a member of Pakistan Oilfields Limited and holder of ________________Ordinary Shares as per Share 

Register Folio No.________ and in case of members, who have deposited their shares into Central Depository 

Company of Pakistan Limited (“CDC”) shall mention following particulars;

CDC Participant I.D. No. ________________   Sub-Account No. _______________________

CNIC No.                                               or Passport  No.  _______________________ ,

hereby appoint _________________ of ________________, Folio No. (if member) ________ or Participant 

I.D___________ Sub. Account No.__________ failing him/her Mr./Mrs./Ms. ______________________

of ______________________, Folio No. (if member) _________ or Participant I.D _____________  

Sub. Account No._____________ as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and to vote/act for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the Seventy Second Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 

Monday, October 09, 2023 at 10.30 a.m or at any adjournment thereof.

Note:  

Fifty Rupees
Revenue Stamp

Signature of Shareholder
(The signature should agree with the specimen 

registered with the Company)

• Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company 
at P.O.L. House, Morgah, Rawalpindi not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

• Shareholders and their Proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of 
their CNIC or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the Company.

Form of Proxy
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